
City of Prosser 
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Council Chambers, 601 7th Street, Prosser WA  99350 

Tuesday, September 8, 2015 at 7:00 P.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

5. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS

6. CONSENT AGENDA

a) Approve Payment of Payroll Check Nos. 600487 through 600531 in the amount
of $41,996.83 and Direct Deposits in the Amount of $103,743.56 for the Period
Ending August 31, 2015 ........................................................................................................ Page 3 

b) Approve Payment of Claim Checks Nos. 12989 through 12997 and 12999 through
13065, in the Amount of $269,378.26 and Electronic Payments in the Amount of
$85,783.17 for the Period Ending September 8, 2015 ........................................................... Page 7 

c) Approve Resolution 15-_____ Surplusing City of Prosser Property ................................... Page 14

d) Approve a Contract with the Wesley Group to Provide Professional Labor
Negotiation Services ............................................................................................................ Page 17 

e) Approve Amended Fee Schedule to Service Agreement with Benton County
Emergency Services (BCES) for 800 MHz Radio Access .................................................. Page 21 

f) Approve August 11, 2015 Meeting Minutes........................................................................ Page 24

g) Approve August 25, 2015 Meeting Minutes........................................................................ Page 28

7. COUNCIL ACTION

a.) Claim Checks ................................................................................................................... Page 30 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Payment of Claim Check No. 12998 and 
13066 in the Amount of $68,700.23, for the Period Ending September 8, 2015. 

The first Ordinance passed will be Ordinance 15-2944 
The first Resolution passed will be Resolution 15-1494 



 
b.) Consideration of a RESOLUTION Accepting the Zone 2.5 Water Supply 

Improvements Project as Compete, and Approve Retainage Release of $26,234.86 
upon Satisfactorily Fulfilling Specific Conditions........................................................ Page 33 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 15-_____ Accepting the Zone 2.5 
Water Supply Improvements Project as Compete, and Approve Retainage Release of 
$26,234.86 Upon Satisfactorily Fulfilling Specific Conditions. 

 
 
8. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
 

a.) City Administrator Recruitment ................................................................................... Page 49 
 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

The first Ordinance passed will be Ordinance 15-2944 
The first Resolution passed will be Resolution 15-1494 



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of payroll Meeting Date: 
check nos. 600487 through 600531 in the September 8, 2015 
amount of $41,996.83 and direct deposits Regular Meeting 
in the amount of $103, 743.56 for the period 
ending August 31, 2015 

Deoartment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Finance Toni Yost Elia Lara (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Prooosal: Account Number: 
$145,740.39 Various 

Amount Budgeted: 
Various amounts in salaries, wages, and benefits. Name and Fund# 

Various 

Reviewed b~ Finance De~artment: 

<f::5Z_ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Payroll Check Register 

Summarv Statement: 
Payroll check nos. 600487 through 600531 in the amount of $41,996.83 and direct 
deposits in the amount of $103,743.56 for the period ending August 31, 2015 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve payment payroll check nos. 600487 through 600531 in the amount of 
$41,996.83 and direct deposits in the amount of $103, 743.56 for the period ending 
August 31, 2015 

Reviewed by De~artment Reviewed by Citv Attorney: 

~Z[? Director: 

~ NIA 

Date: °1lC>)20\!; Date: Date: r-;-tr 
Today's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

September 3, 2015 

3



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Prosser Time: 10:19:21 Date: 08/31/2015 
MCAG #: 0205 08/31/2015 To: 08/31/2015 Page: 1 

Trans Date Type Acct# Chk:# Claimant Amount Memo 

61 88 08/3 1/20 15 Payroll 1 EFT 2,168.96 August Payroll 
61tN 08 '31 '201 5 Payroll 1 EFT 1,540.85 AugustPayroll 
6193 08:3 11201 5 Payroll 1 EFT 1,196.08 August Payroll 
6197 m;13 u 2015 Payroll 1 EFT 1,238-.95 August Payroll 

6 E 18 08/3 1/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 3,340.02 August Payroll 
6199 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,288.49 August Payroll 
6200 08 131/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 1,489.65 August Payroll 
6203 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 3,563.28 August Payroll 
6204 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 121.78 August Payroll 
6205 08131/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 3,066.92 August Payroll 
6206 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 1,275.02 August Payroll 
6'.W8 08/31i2015 Payroll 1 EFT 1,236.73 AugustPayroll 
6211 08'3L'2015 Payroll 1 EFT 3,506.96 August Payroll 
6212 08/31/2015 Payroli 1 EFT 4,528. 78 August Payroll 
6213 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 3,112.31 AugustPayroll 
6215 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 147.41 August Payroll 
6219 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 735.90 August Payroll 
6221 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 5,068.60 August Payroll 
6225 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 129.01 August Payroll 
6227 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,809.80 August Payroll 
6228 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 3,649.41 August Payroll 
6230 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 628.03 August Payroll 
6232 08 131/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,416.20 August Payroll 
6234 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,506.97 August Payroll 
6235 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 448.44 August Payroll 
6237 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 3,370.04 August Payroll 
6239 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,514 .22 August Payroll 
6241 08/3112015 Payroll 1 EFT 909.12 August Payroll 
6244 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,415.75 August Payroll 
6245 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 338. 74 August Payroll 
6247 08!31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 3,314.99 August Payroll 
6250 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 1,410.40 August Payroll 
6251 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 443.00 August Payroll 
6253 08/3112015 Payroll 1 EFT 1,962. 73 August Payroll 
6254 08/31/2015. Payroll 1 EFT 2,826.07 August Payroll 
6257 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2, 180.89 August Payroll 
6259 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 595.90 August Payroll 
6260 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,074.82 August Payroll 
6261 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,831.77 August Payroll 
6263 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,474.99 August Payroll 
6265 08/31,'2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,585.30 August Payroll 
6266 08/3 L'2015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,116.10 August Payroll 
6269 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 317.08 August Payroll 
6272 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 1,585.61 August Payroll 
6273 08/3112015 Payroll 1 EFT 3,453.00 August Payroll 
6275 08/3112015 Payroll 1 EFT 230.31 AugustPayroll 
6276 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 4,031.3 7 August Payroll 
6279 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 4,149.39 August Payroll 
6280 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 EFT 525.07 August Payroll 
6281 08/3112015 Payroll 1 EFT 2,872.35 August Payroll 
6190 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600487 1,689.41 August Payroll 
6191 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600488 230.31 August Payroll 
6192 08 131/2015 Payroll 1 600489 386.29 August Payroll 
6194 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600490 1,688.66 August Payroll 
6195 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600491 3,465.59 August Payroll 
6196 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600492 276.28 August Payroll 
6201 08,'31/2015 Payroll 1 600493 1,100.80 AugustPayroll 

4



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Prosser Time: 10:19:21 Date: 08/31/2015 
MCAG#: 0205 08/31/2015 To: 08/31/2015 Page: 2 

Trans Date Type Acct# Chk# Claimant Amount Memo 

6202 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600494 708.76 AugustPayroll 
6207 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600495 1,033.25 August Payroll 
6209 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600496 1,524.24 August Payroll 
6210 . 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600497 297.83 August Payroll 
6214 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600498 329.89 August Payroll 
6216 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600499 224.51 August Payroll 
6217 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600500 34.97 August Payroll 
6218 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600501 391.69 August Payroll 
6220 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600502 762.29 August Payroll 
6222 08/31/2015 Payroll I 600503 1,089.97 August Payroll 
6223 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600504 397 .94 August Payroll 
6224 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600505 3,045.05 August Payroll 
6226 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600506 83.08 August Payroll 
6229 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600507 1,094.92 August Payroll 
6231 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600508 732. 78 August Payroll 
6233 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600509 586.24 August Payroll 
6236 08/31/2015 Payroll I 600510 127.69 August Payroll 
6238 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600511 917.30 August Payroll 
6240 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600512 1,009.92 August Payroll 
6242 08/31/2015 Payroll I 600513 2,270.43 August Payroll 
6243 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600514 565. 77 August Payroll 
6246 08/31/2015 Payroll I 600515 2,149.30 August Payroll 
6248 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600516 128.96 August Payroll 
6249 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600517 619.90 AugustPayroll 
6252 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600518 1,093.94 August Payroll 
6255 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600519 949 .28 August Payroll 
6256 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600520 878.80 August Payroll 
6258 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600521 2,017.21 August Payroll 
6262 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600522 859.99 August Payroll 
6264 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600523 797 .22 August Payroll 
6267 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600524 81 7.42 August Payroll 
6268 08/31/2015 Payroll I 600525 1,067.07 August Payroll 
6270 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600526 888.18 August Payroll 
6271 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600527 423.10 August Payroll 
6274 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600528 853.98 August Payroll 
6277 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600529 969 .44 August Payroll 
6278 08/31/2015 Payroll 1 600530 1,323 .97 August Payroll 

001 General Fund 70,733.15 
I 02 Street Fund 12,880.94 
149 Public Safety Sales Tax Fund 4,989.36 
403 Water Fund 31,374.72 
407 Sewer Fund 25,293 .26 
448 Garbage Fund 375.75 

145,64 7.18 Payroll: 145,647.18 

Signature Date 

5



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

6362 09/01/2015 Payroll 

CHECK REGISTER 

09/01/2015 To: 09/01/2015 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

600531 

001 General Fund 

Time: 15:10:47 Date: 09/01/2015 
Page: 1 

Amount Memo 

93 .21 Cromwell-Overtime 

93.21 

93.21 Payroll: 93.21 

Date 

6



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of claim Meeting Date: 
check nos. 12989 through 12997 and 12999 September 8, 2015 
through13065, in the amount of $269,378.26 Regular Meeting 
and Electronic Payments in the amount of 
$85, 783. 17 for the period ending September 
8, 2015. 

De~artment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Finance Toni Yost Elia Lara (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Prooosal: Account Number: 
$355, 161.43 See Attached 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
See 2015 budget for each item listed. See Attached 

Reviewed b~ Finance DeQartment: 

~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

Check Register# 12919 through 12988 

Summa!Y Statement: 

Check Payments Amount Check Payments Amount 
12989 through 12997 $42,629.71 
12999through13065 $226,748.55 
Electronic Pavments Amount 
IRS Federal Taxes $53,418.26 WADSHS $228.60 
City of Prosser $30,873.43 US Bank $870.78 
Xpress Billpay $392.10 

Consistent with or Comoarison to: 
City's policy to pay bills in a timely manner. 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve payment of check nos. 12989 through 12997 and 12999 through13065, in the 
amount of $269,378.26 and Electronic Payments in the amount of $85, 783.17 for the period 
ending September 8, 2015 . 

Reviewed b~ De~artment Reviewed b~ Citv Attome~: 

"~ Director: -r"'v ~ 
ot l~ fLO\S 

NIA 
Date: Date: Date: 9--3--- / ~ 
Todav's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 
September 3, 2015 

7



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

CHECK REGISTER 

08/31/2015 To: 08/31/2015 

Trans Date Type Acct # Chk # Claimant 

6287 08/31/2015 Payroll 

6288 08/31/2015 Payroll 

62 89 08/31/2015 Payroll 

6290 08/31/2015 Payroll 

6291 08/31/2015 Payroll 

6292 08/31/2015 Payroll 

6293 08/31/2015 Payroll 

6294 08/31/2015 Payroll 

6295 08/31/2015 Payroll 

6296 08/31/2015 Payroll 

6297 08/31/2015 Payroll 

1 

1 

001 General Fund 
102 Street Fund 

EFT lrs Federal Taxes 

EFT WA Dept Social & Health Serv 

12989 AFLAC 

12990 AWC Employment Ben Trust 

12991 Icma Retirement Trust 

12992 Kansas Payment Center 

12993 Opeiu 

12994 Prosser, City Of 

12995 Teamsters Legal Defense Fund 

12996 Teamsters Local Union No 839 

12997 WA Dept Retirement 

149 Public Safety Sales Tax Fund 
403 Water Fund 
407 Sewer Fund 
448 Garbage Fund 

Signature 

Time: 09:08:28 Date: 09/03/2015 
Page: 1 

Amount Memo 

53,402.82 941 DepositFor08/31/2015-
08/31/2015 

228.60 08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -
DSHS 

1,477.61 08/3112015 To 08/31/2015 -
AFLAC Pre-Tax; 08/31/2015 To 
08/31/2015 -AFLAC Post-Tax 

1,040.92 08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -
Vision 

765.09 08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -
401(R) 

1,122.00 08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -
Support Withholding 

687.25 08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -
Union Dues - OPElU 

2,306.63 08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -
PERS Adj; 08/31/2015 To 
08/31/2015 -TPTA 

86.88 08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -
Legal Defense Fund 

1,352.00 08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -
Union Dues - Teamsters 

33,791.33 08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -
PERS; 08/31/2015 To 
08/31/2015 - PERS 3; 
08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -
LEOFF 2; 08/31/2015 To 
08/31/2015 - DRS -DCP 

81,665.95 
2,381.91 

857.55 
6,322.89 
4,962.27 

70.56 

96,261.13 Payroll: 

Date 

96,261.13 

8



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

6299 08/31/2015 Payroll 

CHECK REGISTER 

08/31/2015 To: 08/31/2015 

Acct # Cbk # Claimant 

1 12999 Western ConfOfTeamsters 
Pension Trust 

001 General Fund 

Signature 

Time: 09:07:51 Date: 09/03/2015 
Page: 1 

Amount Memo 

4,414.87 08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -TPT; 
Teamsters Pension Trust Audit 
Contributions 

4,414.87 

4,414.87 Payroll: 4,414.87 

Date 

9



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

6365 09/01/2015 

6366 09/01/2015 

CHECK REGISTER 
Time: 15:43:29 Date: 09/01/2015 

09/01/2015 To: 09/01/2015 Page: 1 

Type Acct # Chk # Claimant 

Payroll 1 EFT lrs Federal Taxes 

001 - 576 20 20 001 - Personnel Benefits 
001 - 589 99 99 999 - Payroll Deduction Clearing 

Claims 1 13000 WA Dept Retirement 

403 - 534 80 20 001 - Personnel Benefits 
407 - 535 80 20 001 - Personnel Benefits 
403 - 539 20 20 001 - Personnel Benefits 
102 - 543 30 20 001 - Total Personnel Benefits 
001 - 576 80 20 001 - Personnel Benefits 

001 General Fund 
102 Street Fund 
403 Water Fund 
407 Sewer Fund 

Amount Memo 

15.44 941 Deposit For 09/01/2015 -
09/01/2015 

7. 72 Crommell, Abigail M - 941 
7. 72 Crommell, Abigail M - 941 

200.48 Additional PERS 3 Increase 

45.05 Additional PERS 3 Increase 
100.30 Additional PERS 3 Increase 

10.05 Additional PERS 3 Increase 
30.05 Additional PERS 3 Increase 
15.03 Additional PERS 3 Increase 

30.47 
30.05 
55.10 

100.30 
---- Claims: 

215.92 Payroll: 

Date 

200.48 
15.44 

10



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Prosser Time: 08:39:55 Date: 09/03/2015 
MCAG#: 0205 09/08/2015 To: 09/08/2015 Page: 1 

Trans Date Type Acct# Cbk# Claimant Amount Memo 

6396 09/08/2015 Claims 1 EFT Prosser, City Of 30,873 .43 Water Bill 
6397 09/08/2015 Claims 1 EFT US Bank Na 870. 78 Backflow Assembly Tester 

Certification-Lum; Public 
Records Act Deskbook; Credit 
Tri-City Herald Subscription, 
Leagalforms.com-Lease 
Agreement 

6398 09/08/2015 Claims EFT Xpress Billpay 392.10 Online Billing 
6399 09/08/2015 Claims 13001 Abadan Inc 236. 72 Front Desk Copy Machine Lease; 

Finance Printer Maintenance; 
Police Dept Copy Machine 
Maintenance; Water Dept Copier 
Maintenance 

6400 09/08/2015 Claims 13002 Air Tee Pump & Paint Spray 244.83 Pump Repair Kit, Main Gun Line 
Equipment Cable.Kit 

6401 09/08/2015 Claims 13003 American Tree Trimmers 49,315.26 Village Park Tree Removal 
Project 

6402 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13004 AnchorQea 389.14 Shorline Master Program Update 
6403 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13005 Are-Sea Carpet & Floor Service 216.00 Commercial Carpet Cleaning 
6404 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13006 Auto zone 43.44 Alpine Gear Ratchet 
6405 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13007 BDI 72,554.09 Garbage Billing 
6406 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13008 Benton Co Gis Dept 7.00 44 Images; Images; Images 
6407 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13009 Benton Co Sheriff 82.49 Medical Supplies Cost 

Recovery-March 2015; 2015 
Interlocal Agreement 

6408 09/08/2015 Claims 13010 Benton Co Treas Office 10,154.33 Benton Co. Dist Court & Office 
Of Public Defense-July 2015 

6409 09/08/2015 Claims 13011 BentonPUD 281.06 Electric Bill-WCR& Bennett 
Ave; Electric Bill-6th St 

6410 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13012 Benton REA 1,566.52 Powemet Service &Repair 
6411 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13013 Blackline 126.07 Refund Utility Deposit 
6412 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13014 Blumenthal 145.92 Stingers DS LED 
6413 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13015 Boys & Girls Clubs 6,250.00 Boys And Girls Club 
6414 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13016 Bradford Building Company, Inc 53 .10 Refund inactive customer credit 

balance 
6415 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13017 Brown's Tire Co Inc 156.93 Xtreme Power Battery 
6416 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13018 CK Home Comfort Systems 189 .53 AC Repairs-Police Station; AC 

Inspection-1331 Bennett Ave. 
6417 09/08/2015 Claims 13019 Cascade Analytical 857.23 Kjeldahl Total Nitrogen, Enviro 

Mngmt Fee; Nitrate, Dissolved 
Solids, Hexane Extract, DMRQA 
Analysis; Kjeldahl Total 
Nitrogen; Kjeldahl Total 
Nitrogen; Total Percent Solids, 
Fecal Coliform MPN Solid; 

6418 09/08/2015 Claims 13020 Cascade Natural Gas Corp 1,905.74 Natural Gas-1331 BennettAve.; 
Natural Gas; Natural Gas; 
Natural Gas; Natural Gas; 
Natural Gas; Natural Gas 

6419 09/08/2015 Claims 13021 Danny Joe Cavazos 60.00 Fuel-Pick Up Compressor From 
Repairs 

6420 09/08/2015 Claims 13022 Centurylink Communications Inc 160.28 Telephone-Long Distance 
6421 09/08/2015 Claims 13023 Charter Communications 131.95 Internet-City Hall 
6422 09/08/2015 Claims 13024 Cities Insurance Assoc 100.00 Notary Bond-Yost 

11



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Prosser Tiine: 08:39:55 Date: 09/03/2015 
MCAG#: 0205 09/08/2015 To: 09/08/2015 Page: 2 

Trans Date Type Acct# Cbk# Claimant Amount Memo 

6423 09/08/2015 Claims 13025 Cook's Hardware Inc. 514.62 Tape+ Dispenser; Palm Glove, 
Galv Nipple, Hex Bushings; 
Rubb Coating; Tube Copper, 
Couple Stop; Rainsuit; Rainsuit; 
Quick Link Zinc; EPA Disel Can 
5 Gal; Bulb-Hi; Meas Tele 
Wheel; Nails, Concrete Mix 

6424 09/08/2015 Claims 13026 Daily Journal Of Commerce 64 7 .40 WWTP Improvements- Ad For 
Bid 

6425 09/08/2015 Claims 13027 Denchel's Ford Country 808.84 Repair Brake Lights, Oil Change; 
Replace Battery, Oil Change; 
Woi:ks Fuel Saver Package 

6426 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13028 Elliot Tii:e Service 473.89 Tires -Vehicle# 08-2 
6427 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13029 Grainger Inc 566.40 Mini Blinds; Inverted Marking 

Paint, Duct Tape; Mini Blinds; 
Floodlight, Shop Towel; 
Lubricant, Wasp And Hornet 
K,iller, Ear Plugs; Screwdriver 
Set; AA Battery; Chemical 
Resistant Gloves 

6428 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13030 HD Fowler, Co 37.08 NS-TFWI-2395 Poppet 
6429 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13031 Jessica Hernandez 20.00 Refund Park Rental 
6430 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13032 Historic Downtown Prosser Assc 240.00 Refund Special Event Permit 
6431 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13033 The Janitor's Closet 674.56 Toilet Paper, Paper Towels, 

Comet Cleaner, Nitrile Glove 
6432 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13034 LE IRA 100.00 2015 LEIRAConfrence-Bell 
6433 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13035 Tina Larios 190.00 Refund Extra Party Admission 
6434 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13036 Leaf 123.80 PD Copy Machine Lease 
6435 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13037 Lockshop, The 13.49 Key Copies 
6436 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13038 The Markets LLC 244.44 Party Ice; Mountain Mist Water; 

Dry Ice; Employee Appreciaton 
BBQ Supplies 

6437 09/08/2015 Claims 13039 Chris Meirndorf 4 3 .13 Refund inactive customer credit 
balance 

6438 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13040 Mid-Columbia Library 15,321.72 2015 Library Service Fee 
6439 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13041 Moon Security 54.95 Basic Commercial Monitoring 
6440 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13042 OLLutherCo 1,074.40 Asphalt; Asphalt 
6441 09/08/2015 Claim5 1 13043 Office Depot 64.32 Felt Marker; Adhesive Control 

Gel; DVD Sleeves, Printer Ink, 
Packing Tape, Pens 

6442 09/08/2015 Claims 13044 Ox arc 4,365. 72 Sodium Hypochlorite; Sodium 
Hypochlorite; Sodium 
Hpochlorite Bulk 

6443 09/08/2015 Claims 13045 Pitney Bowes Inc 162.90 Postage Meter Rental; Postage 
Meter Rental-TBD 

6444 09/08/2015 Claims 13046 Pocketinet Communications 398.00 Wide Area Network, Dedicated 3 
Mbps 

6445 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13047 The Print Guys Inc 177 .35 #10 Security Wmdow Envelopes 
6446 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13048 Prosser Napa 16.00 Wiper Blades; Bulb 
6447 09/08/2015 Claims I 13049 Prosser Rentals 15.38 Propane 
6448 09/08/2015 Claims I 13050 Q-Tech Auto Service Ctr 1,63 7.35 Vehicle #161 Brake s·ystem 

Repair; Brake Repair Truck # 161 
6449 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13051 Rainwater Water Co 42.00 Water; Water 
6450 09/08/2015 Claims I 13052 Rick Upholstery 323.70 Truck#163 SeatRecovered 
6451 09/Q8/2015 Claims 1 13053 Saxton Riley, PLLC 3,000.00 Prosecution-August 
6452 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13054 Shi International Corp 1, 136.62 Microsoft Surface Pro 3,3M 

Easy-On Privacy Filter-Screen 
6453 09/08/2015 Claims 1 13055 Standard & Poor's 10,500.00 Loan Fees-Waterworks Utility 

Revenue Refunding Bond 
6454 09/08/2015 Claims 13056 Summit Supply Co of Colorado 1,111.70 Pedistal Grills-Pool 

12



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date 

6455 09/08/2015 

6456 09/08/2015 

6457 09/08/2015 
6458 09/08/2015 

6459 09/08/2015 
6460 09/08/2015 

6461 09/08/2015 
6462 09/08/2015 
6463 09/08/2015 

Type Acct# 

Claims 

Claims 1 

Claims 
Claims 

Claims 1 
Claims 1 

Claims 
Claims 
Claims 

001 General Fund 
102 Street Fund 

CHECK REGISTER 

09/08/2015 To: 09/08/2015 

Chk# Claimant 

13057 Valley Pipe Co 

13058 Valley Publishing Co Inc 

13059 Verizon Wireless 
13060 Vine Tech Equipment 

13061 WA Dept Licensing-Mis 
13062 WA Dept Transportation Sc 

13063 Paul Warden 
13064 The Wesley Group 
13065 West Benton Fire Rescue 

103 Transportation Benefit Distric 
130 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 
148 Criminal Justice Fund 
403 Water Fund 
407 Sewer Fund 
448 Garbage Fund 
470 Waste Water Trea1ment Plant Improvement 
603 Consumer Utility Deposit Fund 

* Transaction Has Mixed Revenue And Expense Accounts 

Signature 

Time: 08:39:55 Date: 
Page: 

Amount Memo 

09/03/2015 
3 

318.38 6" Pre Flange,6" Red Gasket, 
Bolt; 3/4 X 5 1/2 Bolt 

150.00 Notice Of Ordinance 15-2938 
Thorugh 15-2941; Hotel/Motel 
Application Notice; 2015 WWTP 
Improvements 

606.46 Police MDT Data 
1. 7 6 Quick Coupler, MJI C X Morb St 

Fitting 
30.00 Notary Public Appointment-Yost 

132.54 Signal Maintenance- WCR & 
North River Rd; Signal · 
Maintenance- WCR & 6th St 

153.39 Costco Food-Employee Picnic 
3,563.28 Labor Relations Consultaiton 

27,850.00 IPS:Augst 2015 

96,783.56 
53,546.46 

0.65 
42.00 
81.23 

14,507.57 
15,687.45 
72,684.89 

713.40 
222.30 

---- Claims: 
254,269.51 

Date 

254,269.51 

13



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGEN·DA BILL 
Agenda Title: Consideration of a Meeting Date: 
Resolution Surplusing City of Prosser September 8, 2015 
Property. Regular Meeting 

Department: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 

Public Works L.J. Da Corsi L.J. Da Corsi (509) 786-7300 
Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 
NIA N/A 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
N/A N/A 

Reviewed b~ Finance De~artment: 

'VX--
Attachments to Agenda Packet ltenl': 

1. Surplus Property Resolution. (1 page) 
2. Exhibit "A" (list of items to surplus). (1 page) 

Summary Statement: 

The Resolution declares surplus certain property which has been used by the City of 
Prosser and which occupies space which it desires to more efficiently use. The 
Resolution directs the Mayor to sell the assets if the cost of sale is less than the value of 
the property and authorizes him to dispose of the property otherwise. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Adopt Resolution Number 15- Surplusing City of Prosser property as described 
in Exhibit "A". 

Reviewed b~ Department Reviewed b~ City Attorne~: Approved b~ Ma~or: 
Director: 

/7JLJ/-L ~ ;? J~ i· 
()JJ) '10 Date:'!-]-/) Date: '/ / 1~;; J,- Date: 

Today's [fate: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 
U:\Public Works 

August 28, 2015 Dept\Project Files\Agendas 

14



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ _ 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PROPERTY OF THE CITY OF 
PROSSER TO BE SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSAL OF 
SAID PROPERTY. 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser has accumulated certain items of personal property which 
items are listed on the attached exhibit "A", which items are no longer needed by the City of 
Prosser; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Prosser believes that such property is surplus to 
the needs of the City and disposal of such property is for the common benefit; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Prosser as 
follows: 

1. That the property listed on the attached Exhibit "A" is hereby declared surplus to the 
needs of the City of Prosser; 

2. That it is deemed to be for the common benefit of the Citizens of the City of Prosser to 
dispose of such surplus property; and 

3. That the Mayor or his designee is authorized to dispose of the items listed on Exhibit 
"A" in a commercially reasonable manner which will be in the best interest of the City 
of Prosser, including but not limited to negotiation by private sale, auction or if the cost 
of sale exceeds the value of the property by disposal or donation to a charitable 
organization. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the Mayor of 
the City of Prosser this day of September, 2015. 

MAYOR PAUL WARDEN 
ATTEST: 

RACHEL SHAW, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

HOW ARD SAXTON, CITY ATTORNEY 

15



1. Char-Broil Barbeque 
2. Char-Broil Barbeque 
3. Brinkmann Barbeque 
4. Brinkmann Barbeque 
5. Broil-Mate Barbeque 

EXHIBIT "A" 

Model#463211511 
Model#463211511 
Model #810-2411-S 
Model #810-4220-S 
Model #7120-64 

Ser #G560011012022522 
Ser #G560011012022362 
Ser #TBC-2411S-011801-0812T 
Ser #TBC-4220S-313726-0314Y 
D-577129 

16



CITY OF PROSSER, WAOHINQTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Consideration of a Contract Meeting Date: 
with the Wesley Group to provide Sept 8, 2015 
professional labor negotiation services. Regular Meeting 

De12artment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Administration Paul Warden Toni Yost (509) 786-8215 

Cost of Prooosal: Account Number: 
Monthly retainer of $700.00 and $80.00 per hour for advice in 001-519-519-90-41 
personnel and human resource matters. 

Nameand Fund# 
Amount Budgeted: General Fund - 001 

Reviewed b~ Finance De~artment: -\'f 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Contract for Professional Services 

Summary Statement: 

The Wesley Group has provided the City of Prosser with labor negotiation services and 
human resources support for several years. This proposed contract maintains the 
service levels received in the past. 

This contract represents NO increase as compared the most recent service contract .. 

Consistent with or Com12arison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve the contract with the Wesley Group to provide professional labor negotiation 
services and human resources support for the period of November 1, 2015 through 
October 31, 2016. 

Reviewed by De12artment Reviewed by Ci~ Attorney: A1212roved by Mayor: 
Director: 

c=--37 fU4)a-Jz_ 
tfJV~ 

1J~//c( /._/)-/J Date: ,CJ--]~/ J Date: Date: 
v 

17



CITY OF PROSSER 
AND 

THE WESLEY GROUP 

CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This contract entered into between the City of Prosser, hereinafter called "City", and The 
Wesley Group, hereinafter called "Contractor", is effective as of November 1, 2015. For 
and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants exchanged herein, the parties 
agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I - SERVICES 

The Contractor shall perform as principal spokesperson for the City of Prosser in 
bargaining all labor agreements with represented City units. Services shall include 
development of bargaining plans, drafting of proposals, advice and recommendations to 
City elected officials and administrative staff, and if at all possible, bring the negotiations 
to their conclusion resulting in working contracts between the City of Prosser and the 
interested bargaining units. The Contractor further agrees to represent the City on an as
needed basis in provided personnel/hwnan resource management advice, contract 
interpretation, in grievances, and in hearings, if any, before the Public Employment 
Relations Commission. 

ARTICLE II -AGENCY SUPPORT AND ASSISTANCE 

The City shall support the bargaining effort by providing parameters; reasonable 
assistance in preparation for bargaining; :financial and clerical support as is mutually 
determined to be necessary (on-site typing, copying, etc.). 

ARTICLE Ill - CONSIDERATION 

In consideration of the Contractor's performance hereunder, the City shall pay the 
Contractor a monthly retainer of $700.00 for the above-specified services. The City shall 
further compensate the contractor at the rate of $80.00 per hour for advice in personnel/ 
hwnan resource matters, disciplinary matters, grievances, preparation and formal conduct 
of the City's case in Grievance and Interest arbitration, preparation for and Hearings 
before the Public Employment Relations Commission. Telephone toll charges and 
clerical and copying costs shall be reimbursed at actual cost. Mileage to be reimbursed at 
48.5 cents per mile. Meals and lodging incurred in the event of extended bargaining or 
consultation with City officials to be reimbursed at actual cost. 

18



ARTICLE IV - HOLD HARMLESS 

The Contractor shall hold and save the City, its officers, agents and employees harmless 
from liability of any kind, including costs and expenses for and or on account of any or 
all suits, judgments, or damages of any character whatsoever, resulting from injuries or 
damages sustained by person or persons or property by virtue of performance of this 
contract. 

ARTICLE V - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTER 

The Contractor hereunder shall act in an independent capacity and not as an officer or 
employee or agent of the City in the performance of this contract. 

ARTICLE VI -TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be terminated prior to its normal expiration pursuant to the 
following provisions: 

a. Either party may terminate this Agreement in the event of the other party's 
material breach hereof; provided, however, that termination for breach shall 
not become effective unless and until the non-terminating party has been 
given written notice of such breach describing the nature of the breach with 
sufficient specificity to permit its cure, and such party shall have failed to 
have cured such breach to the reasonable satisfaction of the other within thirty 
(30) days following said notice. 

b. In the event a party files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or makes an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors or otherwise seeks relief from creditors 
under any federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or 
moratorium statute, or is the subject of an involuntary petition in bankruptcy 
which is not dismissed with prejudice within sixty (60) days of its filing, the 
other party may terminate this Agreement immediately. 

19



ARTICLE VII - TERM OF CONTRACT 

This contract shall be effective for the period beginning with November 1, 2015 through 
October 31, 2016. 

Contractor 

City of Prosser 

Date 

City Clerk 

Date 

20



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approval of an Amended Meeting Date: 
Fee Schedule to the Service Agreement September 8, 2015 
between the City of Prosser and Benton Regular Meeting 
County Emergency Services (BCES) to 
provide access the 800 MHz radio system. 

De~rtment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Administration Mayor Paul Warden Mayor Paul Warden 509-786-2332 

Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 

Reviewed by Finance Degartment: 

./'\ V'f\' 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: \l 

1. August 26, 2015 email from BCES 
2. Amended Attachment "A" Fee Schedule to the Service Agreement 

Summary Statement: 

At the August 11, 2015 City Council meeting, Council approved a Service Agreement 
between the City of Prosser and BCES to provide access to the 800 MHz radio system. 
The City was notified that the Fee Schedule attached to the Agreement approved at that 
meeting had an incorrect rate for Prosser. The attached Fee Schedule has the corrected 
amount as approved by the BCES Board. The difference is an increase of $24.12 
annually per radio. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

EXISTING ADOPTED OR PREVIOUS PLANS, POLICIES OR ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve the Amended Fee Schedule to the Service Agreement between the City of 
Prosser and Benton County Emergency Services (BCES) to provide access the 800 MHz 
radio system and authorize the Mayor to sign the Agreement. 

Reviewed by Finance Reviewed by City Attorney: Approved by City 

~~.J--- c~ P Y-.£--
Vo{//~ 

Date: j'-J-1~ Date: Date: f'-3 -/ ~ 

21



Rachel Shaw 

From: 
Sent: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Doug deGraaf [d.degraaf@bces.wa.gov] 
Wednesday, August 26, 2015 4:25 PM 
BOOM Hz Contract Attachment A Revision 
Attachment A -SERVICE AGREEMENT 800 MHz SIMULCAST AND TRUNKING RADIO 
SER. ... pdf 

The Attachment A provided in the previous contract was using incorrect amounts. The provided attachment has the 
corrected contract amounts based on 2015 BCES Board adoption. Please replace the previously provided Attachment A. 

If you have any questions please let me know. 

Thanks, 

Doug deGraaf 
IS Manager 
BCES 
509-628-1552 

LEGAL NOTICE: 

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have 
received this email in error, please notify the system manager. Please note that any views or opinions presented in this email are solely those of the author and do 
not necessarily represent those of the organization. Finally, the recipient should check this email and any attachments for the presence of viruses. The 
organization accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by this email. 

1 

22



ATTACHMENT A 

Benton County Emergency Services Executive Board 
800 MHz TRUNKED RADIO NETWORK 

FEE SCHEDULE 
EFFECTIVE: January 1, 2015 

Annual fees shall be assessed according to the budget adopted by the BCES Board of Directors 
every December. 

User shall receive an updated preliminary proposed fee schedule on or before September 1 of 
each year, detailing any potential increase or decrease in fees. Final changes in the fee 
schedule shall be provided to User (Attachment A- Fee Schedule) on or before December 1 
and become effective on January 1 following the Board's adoption of the BCES budget. 

By executing this Agreement, User agrees to pay the annual fees in this Attachment A as 
presently existing or hereii:iatter amended by the BCES Board. 

For the 2015 calendar year, BCES shall invoice User an annual 800 MHz Access Fee of 
$510.72 ($42.56/month I $127.68/quarter) for each radio under this Agreement, computed as 
follows: 

Equipment 

Portables 
Mobiles 
Control Stations 

Total# Radios 

Quantity x #Months 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Grand Total $ 

BCES - 800 MHz Contract Page 10 

23



CALL TO ORDER 

CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
601 7TH STREET 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 11, 2015 

Mayor Warden called the Regular Meeting of the Prosser City Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

ROLL CALL 
Council Members Taylor, Hamilton, Ward, Becken and Elder were present. Council 
Members Aubrey and Everett requested an excused absence. 

Others in attendance were City Clerk Shaw, Finance Director Yost, City Planner Zetz, and 
Public Works Director DaCorsi. 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
Bruce Etzel and David Lauer from Messiah Lutheran Church were present to speak later in 
the meeting regarding action item 8c. 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Chamber of Commerce Quarterly Report 
Humberto Rodriguez, Executive Director provided an overview of the 2nd Quarter Report 
and discussed year-to-date hotel/motel tax advisory numbers, event highlights including the 
34th Annual Wine and Food Fair event. Mr. Rodriguez also briefed Council on the upcoming 
Beer and Whiskey Festival and the Great Prosser Balloon Rally. 

Historic Downtown Prosser Association (HDPA) Quarterly Report 
Dan Smith, Executive Director handed out a Historical Walking Tour pamphlet highlighting 
historical businesses located in the downtown and discussed the facade program. Mr. Smith 
briefed Council on HDPA's intent to close the downtown streets for the Annual Halloween 
event to provide a safe environment for children and families who will be trick-or-treating. 
Additionally Mr. Smith stated he has been working with Deb Heintz from Prosser Economic 
Development Association to develop a brochure focusing on downtown in hopes to fill the 
vacant retail buildings. He along with Alys Means from the Museum worked to put pictures 
together for project. Lastly, HDPA has hired an intern and will report on her projects at the 
next quarterly report to Council. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Hamilton, to 
approve Consent Agenda Items "A - F." Motion passed 5 YES, 0 NO, 2 ABSENT (Aubrey, 
Everett). 

24



a) Approve Payment of Payroll Check Nos. 600435 through 600480 in the 
amount of $45,398.69 and Direct Deposits in the Amount of $111, 752.69, for 
the Period Ending July 31, 2015 

b) Approve Payment of Claim Checks Nos. 12843 through 12850 and 12852 
through 12918, in the Amount of $261,042.71 and Electronic Payments in the 
Amount of $86,892.73 for the Period Ending August 11, 2015 

c) Approve HI.A Agreement for Professional Services - Addendum No. 1 for 
additional professional engineering services with the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Improvements Project and Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Contract 
Documents 

d) Consider the Personal Property Certificate and Request for Release of 
Proceeds (1) for the WA Treasurer's Office in the Amount of $76,927.85 for 
Costs Associated with the Energy Efficiency Improvements Project 

e) Approval of a Service Agreement between the City of Prosser and Benton 
County Emergency Services (BCES) to provide Access the 800 MHz Radio 
System 

f) Approve Resolution 15-1491 Surplusing City of Prosser Property 

PUBLIC HEARING 
At 7:20 p.m., Mayor Warden recessed the Regular Meeting of the Prosser City Council to 
conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed 2016 - 2021 Six Year Transportation Improvement 
Program. Mayor Warden called for public comment. With no comments being offered, 
Mayor Warden closed the public hearing and reconvened the Regular Meeting of the Prosser 
City Council at 7:21 p.m. 

COUNCIL ACTION 

CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SIX YEAR TIP 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Ward, to 
adopt Resolution No. 15-1492 approving the City of Prosser 2016-2021 Six Year 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). Motion passed 5 YES, 0 NO, 2 ABSENT 
(Aubrey, Everett). 

CLAIM CHECKS 
Council Member Hamilton recused himself due to a conflict of interest. A motion was made 
by Council Member Becken, seconded by Council Member Elder, to approve payment of 
claim check no. 12451 in the amount of $68,605.54, for the period ending August 11, 2015. 
Motion passed 4 YES, 0 NO, 2 ABSENT (Aubrey, Everett), 1 ABSENTION (Hamilton). 

25



LUTHER LANE AND YAKIMA AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT TASK 
ORDER 
Mr. Bruce Etzel, spoke on behalf of Luther Lane. He referenced a letter he had submitted to 
the City and asked the Council to consider correcting the errors contained in short plat 2721 
which would allow the City to utilize the plat to its full potential for the paving project on 
Luther Lane. 

Mr. David Lauer, also present for the Luther Lane discussion referenced a letter he submitted 
to the City that City Clerk Shaw emailed to the Council related to the Luther Lane street 
improvements project. 

Council discussed at great length the Task Order staff presented and their concerns with the 
lack of funding available for the project. 

Mr. Lauer briefed the Council on the history of the street, the development of a preschool and 
his concern with the lack of street improvements and repairs since 2003. He advised the 
condition of the street has significant deterioration and is heavily traveled with roughly 150 
cars that go up and down the road daily. 

Public Works Director DaCorsi stated that of the $50,000 Council approved in the 2015 
Budget for street repairs on Luther Lane and Yakima Avenue that the $25,000 allocated for 
Luther Lane would not fully fix the issues. He suggested Council consider using all of 
$50,000 for Luther Lane solely and address the Yakima Avenue improvements at a later date. 

Council tabled the item and directed staff to work with the City's engineers and Messiah 
Lutheran representatives to evaluate further and bring back a proposal at a future City 
Council Work Session for further discussion and consideration. 

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING FUND 306 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Ward, to 
adopt Ordinance No. 15-2938 establishing Fund 306, the Wine Country Road Crosswalk 
Improvement Project Fund, and amending the 2015 Budget for the improvement of a 
crosswalk at Wine Country Road and Chardonnay A venue to include the acceptance of 
mitigation payments and donations. Motion passed 5 YES, 0 NO, 2 ABSENT (Aubrey, 
Everett). 

CONSIDERATION OF TWO ORDINANCES ADOPTING THE WASHINGTON 
STATE DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY'S SUGGESTED AND REQUIRED 
CHANGES TO THE CITY'S SHORELINE MASTER PROGRAM UPDATE 
A motion was made by Council Member Becken, seconded by Council Member Taylor, to 
adopt Ordinance No. 15-2939 adopting changes to the Shoreline Master Program (PMC Title 
16.04). Motion passed 5 YES, 0 NO, 2 ABSENT (Aubrey, Everett). 

A motion was made by Council Member Becken, seconded by Council Member Taylor, to 
adopt Ordinance No. 15-2940 adopting changes to the Critical Area ordinance. Motion 
passed 5 YES, 0 NO, 2 ABSENT (Aubrey, Everett). 

26



CLOSED RECORD DECISION HEARING 

PROPERTY REZONE AND PRELIMINARY PLAT SUBDIVISION 
At 7:49 p.m., Mayor Warden recessed the Regular Meeting of the Prosser City Council to 
conduct a Closed Record Decision Hearing on a property rezone and preliminary plat 
subdivision. City Planner Zetz stated the developer, Mr. John Probst, was present to answer 
any questions. Mayor Warden closed the public hearing and reconvened the Regular Meeting 
of the Prosser City Council at 7:50 p.m. 

COUNCIL ACTION 

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE DEPARTMENT REZONING PROPERTY 
FROM RESIDENTIAL HIGH DENSITY (RH) TO RESIDENTIAL 
MANUFACTURED HOME SUBDIVISION (RMS) AND CONSIDERATION OF A 
RESOLUTION APPROVING A PRELIMINARY PLAT SUBDIVISION OF 27 SIGN 
FAMILY LOTS AND A 28rn LOT THAT WILL BE USED FOR FUTURE HIGH 
DENSITY 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Ward, to 
adopt Ordinance No. 15-2941 approving a rezone to exclude the westerly 249.58 feet oflot 2 
of short plat 3437 which will remain Residential High Density (RH). Motion passed 5 YES, 
0 NO, 2 ABSENT (Aubrey, Everett). 

A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Becken, to 
adopt Resolution No. 15-1493 approving a preliminary plat for the subdivision plat of28 lots. 
Motion passed 5 YES, 0 NO, 2 ABSENT (Aubrey, Everett). 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business before the City Council at this time, the Regular Meeting of 
the Prosser City Council was adjourned at 8:03 p.m. 

27



CALL TO ORDER 

CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
601 7TH STREET 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2015 

Mayor Warden called the Regular Meeting of the Prosser City Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

ROLL CALL 
Council Members Aubrey, Taylor, Hamilton, Everett, Ward, Becken and Elder were present. 

Others in attendance were City Clerk Shaw, Finance Director Yost, Police Chief Giles, and 
City Attorney Saxton. 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (None) 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
Council Member Aubrey reported on a recent School District Board meeting noting the study 
of the schools and stated he was disappointed in the low attendance. 

Council Member Hamilton had received some good comments on the patching job done on 
Highland Drive and extended a thank you for a job well done. 

Mayor Warden congratulated Council Member Aubrey on completing the year long 
Leadership Prosser class. 

Council Member Aubrey spoke about the Leadership Prosser class and said he would like to 
see every Council Member take the class. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Hamilton, to 
approve Consent Agenda Items "A-G." Motion passed 7 YES, 0 NO, 0 ABSENT. 

a) Approve Payment of Payroll Check Nos. 600481 through 600486 in the 
amount of$5,133.85 and Direct Deposits in the Amount of$13,963.33, for the 
Period Ending August 15, 2015 

b) Approve Payment of Claim Checks Nos. 12919 through 12988, in the Amount 
of $222,211.29 and Electronic Payments in the Amount of $102,735.84 for the 
Period Ending August 25, 2015 

c) Accept Monthly Report by Prosser Economic Development Association for 
the Month of July 2015 and Authorize Payment for Those Services in the 
Amount of $2, 166.66 and Authorize Payment in the Amount of $1,416.67 for 
Grant Writer Services 

28



d) Accept Invoice for Operation of the Visitor Information Center and 
Reimbursable Tourism and Promotional Expenses for the Month of June, July 
and August, and Authorize Payment for Those Services in the Amount of 
$27,000 

e) Approve the July 2015 Financial Statement 

f) Approve July 28, 2015 Meeting Minutes 

g) Approve August 4, 2015 Meeting Minutes 

COUNCIL ACTION 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Ward, to 
authorize the Mayor to sign the Lease Agreement and Memorandum of Lease for 1331 
Bennett Ave. for $450/month plus Leasehold Excise Tax. Motion passed 7 YES, 0 NO, 0 
ABSENT. 

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE REFINANCING CERTAIN LONG TERM 
DEBT AND ALLOWING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF A BOND ASSOCIATED WITH 
THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Aubrey to 
adopt Ordinance No. 15-2942 repealing the previous action of Council and providing for the 
issuance of revenue bonds in an aggregate amount of $5,000,000 for the purpose of 
refinancing certain utility debt and for the issuance of bonds associated with the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Improvement Project. Motion passed 7 YES, 0 NO, 0 ABSENT. 

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING GRANT FUNDING FROM 
USDA AND RCO FOR THE CITY PARK RESTROOM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
AND ESTABLISHING A FUND AND BUDGET FOR THE PROJECT 
A motion was made by Council Member Taylor, seconded by Council Member Aubrey, to 
adopt Ordinance No. 15-2943 approving of the Grant Agreements with USDA; establishing 
Fund 307, City Park Restroom Project Fund, and establishing a budget for the project. 
Motion passed 7 YES, 0 NO, 0 ABSENT. 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS (cont.) 
Council Member Ward inquired about the graffiti and vandalism to the Rotary Park gazebo. 

Mayor Warden advised Public Works Director DaCorsi had been in contact with Rotary 
President Becky Yeaman regarding the damage and said they were working to remedy the 
issue. 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business before the City Council at this time, the Regular Meeting of 
the Prosser City Council was adjourned at 7:14 p.m. 

29



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Approve payment of claim Meeting Date: 
Check no. 12998 and 13066 in the amount September 8, 2015 
of $68, 700.23 for the period ending Regular Meeting 
September 8, 2015 

De~rtment: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Finance Toni Yost Elia Lara (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Progosal: Account Number: 
$68,700.23 See Attached 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
See 2015 budget for each item listed. See Attached 

Reviewed by Finance Degartment: 

~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Check Register# 12998 and 13066 

Summary Statement: 

Approve payment of claim check no. 12998 and 13066 in the amount of $68,700.23 for 
the period ending September 8, 2015 

Consistent with or Comoarison to: 
City's policy to pay bills in a timely manner. 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Approve payment of claim Approve payment of claim check no. 12998 and 13066 in the 
amount of $68,700.23 forthe period ending September 8, 2015. 

Reviewed by Degartment Reviewed by Citv Attorney: Aogroved by Mayor: 
Director: 

~L/~ 
T~ NIA 

Date: q l?> l 2.o\ s:- Date: Date: 9~5~1-r 
Todav's Date: Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

30



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

CHECK REGISTER 

08/31/2015 To: 08/31/2015 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

6298 08/31/2015 Payroll 12998 Washington Teamsters Welfare 

001 General Fund 
102 Street Fund 
117 Employee Benefits Security . 
149 Public Safety Sales Tax Fund 
403 Water Fund 
407 Sewer Fund 
448 Garbage Fund 

Signature 

Time: 09:07:44 Date: 09/03/2015 
Page: 1 

Amount Memo 

68,605.54 08/31/2015 To 08/31/2015 -
WTWT 

45,404.64 
3,117.92 
1,921.20 
2,246.44 
9,118.05 
6,701.31 

95.98 

68,605.54 Payroll: 

Date 

68,605.54 

31



City Of Prosser 
MCAG#: 0205 

Trans Date Type 

6464 09/08/2015 Claims 

CHECK REGISTER 

09/01/2015 To: 09/30/2015 

Acct # Chk # Claimant 

1 13066 James Castagne 

Time: 08:43:13 Date: 09/03/2015 
Page: 1 

Amount Memo 

94.69 LEOFF 1 
Reimbursement-Castagne 

117 - 517 91 20 001 - Personnel Benefits 94.69 J,,EOFF 1 Reimbursement-Castagne 

117 Employee Benefits Security 

Signature 

94.69 
---- Claims: 

94.69 

Date 

94.69 

32



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: Consideration of a Meeting Date: 
Resolution Accepting the Zone 2.5 September 8, 2015 
Water Supply Improvements Project as Regular Meeting 
Complete, and Approve Retainage 
Release of $26,234.86 Upon 
Satisfactorily Fulfilling Specific 
Conditions. 

Department: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 

Public Works L.J. Da Corsi L.J. Da Corsi (509) 786-2332 
Cost of Proposal: Account Number: 
$26,234.86 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
Funded by the Public Works Board - Public Works Trust 
Fund low interest loan program. 

Reviewed b~ Finance Department: 

~V'[ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: 

1. Resolution No. 15- accepting the Zone 2.5 Water Supply 
Improvements Project as complete. 

2. NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT form -
Contract Number 13109C. 

Summary Statement: 

The Zone 2.5 Water Supply Improvements Project has been satisfactorily 
completed and is now ready for the Prosser City Council to officially accept the 
project in order to move forward toward closeout. The City's engineering 
consultant for the project, HLA, Inc., recommends acceptance of the project and 
the release of the retainage ($26,234.86) only upon satisfactorily fulfilling the 
special conditions, as related to retainage. Additionally, a Notice of Completion 
of Public Works Contract must now be completed and submitted to the 
appropriate agencies for review and approval. 

Passage of this Resolution officially accepts the Zone 2.5 Water Supply 
Improvements and the project can move toward closeout. 

33



Consistent with or Comparison to: 

Protocol and procedures necessary for the completion and closeout of public 
works projects funded through federal and state agencies and programs for 
municipal infrastructure improvements. 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Adopt Resolution No. 15- Accepting the Zone 2.5 Water Supply 
Improvements Project as Complete, and Approve Retainage Release of 
$26,234.86 Upon Satisfactorily Fulfilling Specific Conditions. 

Reviewed by Department Reviewed by Citv Approved by Mayor: 
Director: Attorney: 

~~ /;J;l· . ==2 
Date: 1h/;5- Date: j/JJ)/J Date: ~-J-/J 
Today's D~te( Revision Number/Date: File Name and Path: 

August 31, 2015 

34



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 
RESOLUTION NO. 15------

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE ZONE 2.5 WATER SUPPLY 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT AS COMPLETE AND, PURSUANT 
TO RCW 39.12 AND RCW 60.28, SUBSEQUENT RELEASE OF 
RETAINAGE UPON SATISFACTORY FULFILLMENT AND 
COMPLETION OF THE SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS AND 
CONDITIONS 

WHEREAS, the City of Prosser's project engineer, Huibregtse Louman 
Associates, fuc., (HLA) has inspected and reviewed the project and believe it is 
satisfactory and complete in accordance with City of Prosser Construction Standards and 
WSDOT Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction 2010 M-
41-10; and, 

WHEREAS, the City's project engineer, HLA, recommends acceptance of the 
project as complete; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

1. That the City Council of the City of Prosser hereby accepts the Zone 2.5 Water 
Supply hnprovements project as complete; and 

2. That Administration is authorized to release retainage in the amount of 
$26,234.86 relative to this project, pursuant to RCW 39.12 and RCW 60.28, only upon 
satisfactory fulfillment and completion of the specific requirements and conditions as 
follows: 

1. There are no liens or claims for labor and materials furnished on this project filed 
against the retainage. 

2. A full sixty (60) days have elapsed since the official acceptance of this project by 
the City of Prosser. 

3. The City has received Notice of Completion clearance from the Department of 
Revenue, Department of Labor and fudustries, and the Employment Security 
Department relative to this contract. 

4. The City has received the following from Huibregtse, Louman Associates, fuc. 
(HLA): 

a. HLA has confirmed that all punch list items identified during the final 
walkthrough inspection have been completed. 

b. HLA has delivered two (2) neatly marked 11"xl7" sets of record drawings 
and one (1) scanned emailed version to the City of Prosser on May 11, 
2015. 

c. HLA has delivered two (2) sets of Operation and Maintenance binders, 
including two (2) Operation and Maintenance CD's on July 17, 2015. 

35



d. A notarized certificate from the contractor which states that all labor and 
materials furnished on this project have been paid for is attached. 

e. The required project labor and equal employment opportunity documents 
have been mailed to the City of Project on August 26, 2015 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Prosser and APPROVED by the 
Mayor of the City of Prosser this day of , 2015. 

Mayor Paul Warden 

ATTEST: 

Rachel Shaw, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Howard Saxton, City Attorney 

36



~+..+HLA ~ Huibregtse, Louman~es, Inc. 

Civil Engineering + Land Surveying+ Planning 

August 26, 2015 

City of Prosser 
601 Seventh Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Attn : Mayor Paul Warden 

Re: City of Prosser 

Jeffrey T. Louman, PE 
Theodore W. Pooler, PE 
Michael T. Battle, PE 
Eric T. Hcrwg, PLS 

ZONE 2.5 WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENTS 
HLA Project No.: 13109C 
Final Progress Estimate and Project Acceptance 

Dear Mayor Warden: 

Terry D. Alapereri, PE 
Gene W. Soules, PE 
Timothy D. Fries, PLS 
Justin L. Bellamy, PE 

Stephanie J. Ray, PE 
Dustin L. Posten, PE 
Stephen S. Hazzard, PE 
Michael R. Heit, PE 

Enclosed is Progress Estimate No. 5 designated as the Final for work performed by Mountain 
States Const. Co., through August 14, 2015, in connection with their contract on the above 
referenced project. The amount due the Contractor of $1, 148.63 is net after retainage, as per 
the contract documents. We recommend this Final Progress Estimate be considered and 
accepted by the Prosser City Council. 

This letter also serves as our recommendation for acceptance of this project by the City of 
Prosser. We have reviewed the work performed by Mountain States Const. Co. on this project 
and believe it has been completed satisfactorily. Please provide us a copy of the Council 
resolution authorizing project acceptance. 

Enclosed for your action is the "Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract" to be completed 
and sent to the Department of Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and Employment 
Security Department in Olympia. Forward one (1) copy each of the Notice of Completion to the 
Department of Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and the Employment Security 
Department as soon as the Prosser City Council has accepted the project. 

The retainage on this project in the amount of $26,234.86 should be released to Mountain 
States Const. Co., after acceptance of the project and when the following conditions have been 
satisfied: 

1. There are no liens or claims for labor and materials furnished on this project filed 
against the retainage. 

2. A full sixty (60) days have elapsed since the official acceptance of this project by 
the City of Prosser. 

3. The City has received Notice of Completion clearance from the Department of 
Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and the Employment Security 
Department relative to this contract. Please provide a copy of each to our office. 

G:IPROJECTS\2013\13109C PR ZONE 2.5 WATER SUPPLY IMPR - MTN STATES CONST. CO\PROGRESS ESTIMATESIFINAL PROG EST NO 5\2015-08-28 FINAL 
PROG EST NO 5 FINAL LTR.rtf 

2803 River Road + Yakima, WA 98902 ~ (509) 966-7000 .;. FAX (509) 965-3800 <+ www.hlacivil.com 

37



City of Prosser 
August 26, 2015 
Page 2. 

4. The City has received the following from Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc. 
(HLA): 

a. HLA has confirmed that all punch list items identified during the final walk
through inspection have been completed. 

b. HLA has delivered two (2) neatly marked 11"x17" sets of record drawings 
and one (1) scanned emailed version to the City of Prosser on May 11, 2015. 

c. HLA has delivered two (2) sets of Operation and Maintenance Binders, in
cluding two (2) Operation and Maintenance CD's on July 17, 2015. 

d. A notarized certificate from the Contractor which states that all labor and 
materials furnished on this project have been paid for is attached. 

e. The required project labor and equal employment opportunity documents 
have been mailed to the City of Prosser on August 26, 2015. 

We would appreciate receiving a copy of your Council Resolution authorizing release of 
retain age. 

Please contact this office if you have questions or if we may furnish additional information. 

Ver tr ly yours, 

~i,~ 
Justin L Bellamy, PE 

JLB/crf 

Enclosures 

Copy: Chris Meirndorf, Mountain States Const. Co. 
Steve Sziebert, HLA 
Caroline Fitzsimmons, HLA 
Correspondence File 

G:IPROJECTS\2013\13109C PR ZONE 2.5 WATER SUPPLY IMPR - MTN STATES CONST, COIPROGRESS ESTIMATES\FINAL PROG EST NO 5\2015-08-26 FINAL 
PROG EST NO 5 FINAL L TR.rt! 

38



NOTARIZED STATEMENT 

TO THE 

City of Prosser 

I hereby certify that 

a) all materials and labor used and performed in the construction of the ZONE 2.5 
WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENTS - Project Number 13109C, for the City of 
Prosser, have been paid in full and there are no liens or other legal actions pending; 

b) Mountain States Const. Co., has complied with the provisions of Section 1-07.19 
(Gratuities) of the Standard Specifications; and 

c) All industrial insurance premiums, as required under RCW 51.12.050 (Public 
Works) and RCW 51.12.070 (work done by contract) have been paid. 

by_c~::__tl~_· /_
7

::z.-_~-~--------
~//I... l/~'vt1clv-P -;:JV· C!.itJi"/ D '2.Ya .j.,''z;u5 !--1c::tK-a_ 

Name and Title (Please print or type) 

Mountain States Const. Ca. 
Contractor 

STATEOF LA.fa..shtng±o!l 
COUNTY OF Yo..kttn4J 

) 
) SS 
) 

Notary Public Printed Name: _,.5 .... Y.~S .... Q,Vl...._....__ .... M .......... '"--S..-....b.......,a..n= . .......... .e..=-------

My Appointment Expires;_.._:lj~-lhn.....-.\.l-~· CL=--r-!j.-.. .. .,_· _2.~f-~_.2.__,0 ..... · ..... 1_7 ______ _ 

(Please return completed CERTIFICATION form to HLA) 

G:IPROJECTS\2013\13109C PR ZONE 2,5 WATER SUPPLY IMPR ·MTN STATES CONST. COIPROGRESS ESTIMATES\FINAl PROG EST N0\2015-08 FINAL PROG 
EST NO 5 FINAL LTR,rtf 

39



City of Prosser 
601 Seventh Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

TO: Mountain States Const. Co. 

rtem 
No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

P.O. Box 918 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 

DescriDtlon 
Mobilization 

Project Temporary Traffic Control 

Clearing and Grubbing 

Existing Reservoir Abandonment 

Unclassified Excavation Incl. Haul 

Select Backfill, as Directed 

Gravel Borrow Incl. Haul 

Crushed Surfacing Base Course 

Crushed Surfacing Top Course 

HMA Cl. 1/2-lnch PG 64-28 

Zone 3 to Zone 2.5 PRV Station, Complete 

Zone 2.5 to Zone 1 PRV Station, Complete 

Zone 3 to Zone 2.5 Flowmeter, Complete 

PRV Station Remote Monitoring, Complete 

Shoring or Extra Excavation 

D.I. Pipe for Culvert 12 In. Diam. 

PVC Pipe for Water Transmission Main 12 
In. Diam. 

D.I. Pipe for Water Distribution Main 12 In. 
Diam. 
D.I. Pipe for Water Distribution Main 8 In. 
Diam. 

Steel Casing Pipe 24 In. Diam. 

PVC Casing Pipe 18 In. Diam. 

Tapping Sleeve and Valve Assembly 12 In. 

Butterfly Valve 12 In. 

Gate Valve 8 In. 

Comb. Air Release/Air Vacuum Valve 
Assembly 2 In. 

Hydrant Assembly 

Concrete Valve Marker 

Bollard 

Adjust Manhole 

Project Completion Documentation 

Minor Change 

ConU.ct 
Unit Quantltv 
LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

CY 325 

CY 50 

TON 560 

TON 650 

TON 300 

TON 250 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LF 4,160 

LF 40 

LF 3,450 

LF 630 

LF 40 

LF 55 

LF 60 

EA 1 

EA 8 

EA 3 

EA 3 

EA 2 

EA 3 

EA 8 

EA 2 

LS 1 

FA EST. 

ZONE 2.5 WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENTS 

HLA Project No.: 
DWSRF Contract No.: 
Progress Estimate No.: 

Date: 

.Unlt E8tlrmlf85 
Ptlce oiienfliv 

$42,575.00 0% 

$3,000.00 0% 

$6,500.00 0% 

$2,500.00 0% 

$16.00 0 

$16.00 0.00 

$24.25 0.00 

$31 .00 0.00 

$30.00 0.00 

$119.00 0.00 

$55,000.00 0% 

$42,000.00 0% 

$15,000.00 0% 

$25,000.00 0% 

$1.00 0 

$67.15 0 

$36.25 0 

$48.60 0 

$158.35 0 

$145.00 0 

$73.20 0 

$4,500.00 0 

$1,525.00 0 

$1,350.00 0 

$2,500.00 0 

$4,375.00 0 

$200.00 0 

$620.00 0 

$625.00 0 

$1,000.00 100% 

$10,000.00 108.72 

13109C 
DM13-952-140 
SAND FINAL 

August14,2015 

= Amount 
100% $42,575.00 

100% $3,000.00 

100% $6,500.00 

100% $2,500.00 

325 $5,200.00 

48.65 $778.40 

466.51 $11,312.87 

602.91 $18,690.21 

298.91 $8,967.30 

270.75 $32,219.25 

100% $55,000.00 

100% $42,000.00 

100% $15,000.00 

100% $25,000.00 

4,162 $4,162.00 

59 $3,961.85 

3,482 $126,222.50 

604 $29,354.40 

70 $11,084.50 

55 $7,975.00 

58 $4,245.60 

1 $4,500,00 

8 $12,200.00 

3 $4,050.00 

3 $7,500.00 

2 $8,750.00 

3 $600.00 

8 $4,960.00 

2 $1,250.00 

100% $1,000.00 

8,886.78 $8,886.78 

SUBTOTAL $509,445.66 

G~\PROJECTS\2013\13109C PR ZOHE 2 5 WATER SUPPLYIMPR. MTN STATES COHST.CO\PROGRESS ESTIW\TES\FIHAL PROG EST NO S\20Uli-08·17 PROG EST HO 8 FlNAL:d& 

'Contract 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

97% 

83% 

93% 

100% 

108% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

148% 

101% 

96% 

175% 

100% 

97% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

88.9% 

40



ttem Contract Unit Estimate S Quantity Contract. 
· Qui:intitv No. Description Unit Quantltv Price Quant1tv to Date Amount 

CHANGE ORDER NO, 1 

1-1 6" DI Water Main LF 165 $71.50 0 146 $10.439.00 

1-2 Install City Provided 6" Gate Valve, 
EA 1 $775.00 0 1 $775.00 Complete 

1-3 Remove and Dispose of Existing 6" Pipe LF 175 $14.50 0 175 $2,537.50 

1-4 Relocate Existing Fire Hydrant EA 1 $1,500.00 0 1 $1,500.00 

CHANGE ORDER N0.1, SUBTOTAL $15,251.50 

SUBTOTAL, WORK TO DATE $524,697 .16 

PLUS MATERIALS ON HAND $0.00 

SUBTOTAL AMOUNTS $524,697.16 

*8.6% STATE SALES TAX $45,123,96 

TOTAL $569,821.12 

LESS TOTAL RETAINAGE $26,234.86 

LESS AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY PAID $542,437.63 

AMOUNT NOW DUE $1,148.63 

*Cumulative revision for Sales Tax increase - 8.3% to 8.6% as of 01/01/15. 

Progress Estimate No. 1 $ 168,964.97 Retainage $ 8,178.36 

Progress Estimate No. 2 $ 215 777.71 Retainage $ 10,390.30 

Progress Estimate No. 3 $ 122.707.14 Retainage$ 5,922.16 

Progress Estimate No. 4 $ 34,987.81 Retainage $ 11688.60 

Progress Estimate No. 5 AND FINAL $ 1148.63 Retainage $ 55.44 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct statement of the work performed under this Contract. 

Justin L. 

ACCEPTED: 

I hereby accept the Final Progress Estimate and Final Contract Voucher Certification, in accordance with Section 1-09.9 of the 
WSDOT Standard Specifications. 

Date: 

O:\PROJECT6'2013\13109C PR ZONE 2$ WATER 6UPP\.Y 1MPR ·MTN STATES COKST. CO\PROORESS EGTIMATES\FINAL PROO EST N05\201~17 PROO EST NO~ FIHAl. ldl 

88% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

41



City of Prosser 
601 Seventh Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

TO: Mountain States Const. Co. 
P.O. Box918 
Sunnyside.WA 98944 

MINOR CHANGE 

~ 
DATE OSSCRIP.JJOM 

·HYDROSEED; WSDOT ROW & DISTURBED 
3/11/2015 AREA$ 

MOVE CITY PROVIDED PILE OF MATERIAL 
FOR USE~ ROADWAY SHOULDER~ 

212512015 DIRECTED. 

3120/2015 VALVE MARKERS 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR WAGE RATE 
CHANGE PER WSDOL WAGE 

8/1412015 DETERMINATION REGARDING T.E.M. 

oc: Mountain States Const. Co. 
Dustin Posten, PE, HLA 
Steve Sziebert, HLA 
Benji Martin, HLA 

PAfD SU~ 
/,,$ AMOUNT, ~ 

31 $6,500.00 

31 953.06 

31 $545.00 

31 

ZONE 2.5 WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENTS 

HLA Project No.: 
DWSRF Contract No.: 
Progress Estimate No.: 

Date: 

AM't.Jt,NT 
TqTALi 

AMOUNT 

$780.00 $7.280.00 

$953.06 

$545.00 

$108.72 $108.72 

Subtotal $8,886.78 

' 

13109C 
DM13-952-140 
5ANDFINAL 

August 14, 2015 

.. -·sua TIM£ 
NAM& ·. EXTENSION . -

. 

42



~Original 
D Revised## 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 
Date: Contractor's UBI Number: 393 002 413 

~--------~~--------------~--~ ~--~---------------------
Name & Matllnzt Address of Public A~eney Department Use Only 

City of Prosser Assigned to: 
601 Seventh Street 

Prosser, WA 99350 Date Assigned: 
UBI Number: 035 000 400 

Notice is hereby given relative to the completion of contract or project described below 
Project Name ontract Number o Order 

ZONE 2.5 WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENTS 13109C 0 Yes 
e.scl'Jptlon () ork Done/Include Jo site ress es 

Transmission main construction including PVC Pipe for Water Main, D.I. Pipe for Water Dist. Main, two PRV Stations, 
PRV Station remote monitoring, valves, fittings, HMA and gravel surfacing. Existing Zone 2.5 reservoir and Zone 2.5 
booster pump station will be removed. 

98944 

0 Yes ~No 
E-mail Address 
chris@mtstates.com 

(if yes, provide Contract Bond Statement below) 

Were Subcontracters used on this project? If so; please complete Addendum A. 
Affidavit ID• - No L&I release will be granted until all affidavits are listed. 

Contract Amount $ 506,092.50 
Additions ( +) $ 18,604.66 Liquidated Damages $ ---------Reductions ( - ) $ Amount Disbursed $ 543,586.26 ------------

Sub-Tot a 1 $ 524,697.16 Amount Retained $ 26,234.86 ---'-------Amount of Sales Tax 8.6 
(If various rates apply, please send a breakdown) $ 45123.96 

TOTAL $ 569,821.12 TOTAL$ 569,821.12 

NOTE Tl l : zese two Iota s must b I e eq1ut 

Comments: 

Note: The Disbursing Officer must submit this completed notice immediately after acceptance of the work done under this contract. 
NO PAYMENT SHALL BE MADE FROM RETAINED FUNDS until receipt of all release certificates. 
Submitting Form: Please submit the completed fonn by email to all three agencies below. 

Contact Name: Ms. Rachel Shaw 

---------------------------------------------Em ail Address: rshaw@cl.prosser. 
~--..;;_~-----------~----------------------~ 

REV 31 0020e (4/28/14) 

0 WoshlnQ!On St•t• ~rtr•MI or 
Labor & Industries 
Contract Rolollse 

f215-038·000 04-2014 

(855) 545-8163, optlon#4 
ContractRelease@LNl.WA.GOV 

Title: Clly Clerlc/Publlc Records Ofllcar 

Phone Number: (509) 786-8216 

Employment Security 
Department 
Regletnltlon, Inquiry, 
Standards & Coordination 
Unit 
(360) 902-9450 
publicworks@esd.we.gov 

43



Addendum A: Please List all Subcontractors and Sub-tiers Below 
This addendum can be submitted in other formats. 

Provide known affidavits at this time. ~o ld\I ceJease ~DI be mnt!!I untll all aMdavJts au listed. 

Subcontractor's Name: UBI Number: (Required) Affidavid ID* 
Knobel's Electric, Inc. 397 019 651 588139 

Construction Ahead, Inc. dba Pavement Surface Control 601378957 574954 
Central Washington Asphalt, Inc. 602080 904 572077 

American Rock Products, Inc. 602 080 904 572077 

Total Energy Management & HVAC (LT to Knobel's) 600 535 041 589425 

Wlldlands, inc. 601322261 570845 

Murphey Brothers General Excavating, LLC 602682 827 689678 

For tax assistance or to request this document in an alternate format, please ca11 l-800-647-7706. Teletype (TTY) users may use the 
Washington Relay Service by calling 711. 
REV 31 0020c Addendum (04/28/14) F215-038-000 04-2014 

44



City of Prosser 
ZONE 2.5 WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENTS 

13109C 
Mountain States Const. Co. 

Contractor's Phone No.: (509)837-6822 

PROJECT CLOSING CHECK LIST 

'*Ms. Rachel Shaw: 
• The City has received the following from Hulbregtse, 

Louman Associates, Inc.: 

o Flnal Progress t:.stimate: 

o Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract DOR/L&llESD: 

o Notarized Statement: 

o Confirmation that all Punch List items complete: 

o Record Drawings: 

Labor and equal employment opportunity documents: 

o Statement of Intent I Affidavit of Wages paid approved 

by the State Department of Labor and Industries: 

o Certified payrolls for the Contractor and Sub-contractor: 

• Council resolution authorizing project acceptance: 

o Copy sent to HLA (cfltzslmmons@hlacivll.com): 

• §!!!! 1 copy of Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract to 

Department of Revenue: 

o Received WS Department of Revenue Cert of Payment 
Of State Excise Taxes by PW Contractor release: 
(Example Copy Attached) v 

• Sent 1 copy of Notice of Complet1on of Public Works Contract to 

Employment Security Department: 

o Received WS Employment Security Dept 
Cert of Payment of Contribution .... PW Contract release: 
(Example Copy Attach&.d- Fonn EMS 8449 760 R3-98) V" 

• §!m 1 copy of Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract 

to Department of Labor and Industries: 

o Received Dept. of Labor & Industries Cert of Payment 
Of Industrial Insurance Premiums by PW Contractor release: 
(Example Copy AttachedV 

• There are no liens or claims for labor and materials 
filed against retainage: 

• A full sixty (60) days have elapsed since the official acceptance 

of this project by the City Council: 

• Released Retalnage ($26,234.86):,/ 

o Copy sent to HLA (cfitzsimmons@hlaclvll.com): 

Date Received/Sent: 

tfJf/IC#€£JtbPl~JLlG/.J f 'tr 
/( / l1 tJ6/t/1~ 

~ I 11 
I 

Jc7l// o~/zr,/1'F 

J;wr oe/u/ls 

G:\PROJECTS\2013\13109C PR ZONE 2,5 WATER SUPPLY IMPR - MTN STATES CONST, COIPROGRESS ESTIMATESIFINAL PROG EST NO 5\2015-08-20 FINAL PROG EST NO 5 
FINAL LTR.rlf 

45



~ Employment .Security Department 
~ WA~HINGTON 5TATE 

P.O. Box 9046 Olympia, WA 98507-90461Fax360-902-9287 

CITY OF GRANDVIEW 
Attn: ANITA PALACIOS 
207W2NDST 
GRANDVIEW, WA 98930 

CONTRACTOR: 
A & B ASPHALT INC 
PO BOXS280 
BENTON CITY, WA 99320-5280 

) CERTIFICATE OF 
) PAYMENT OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
) PENALTIES AND INTEREST ON 
} PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 

ES Reference#: 41888600 6 
UBI No: 600192346 

lij ~ © ~ D ~l§lni 
~ APR 1 6 2012 ~ 
CITY OF GRANDVIEW 

The Employment Security Department hereby Qertifies those contributions, penalties and interest 
due from the above named contractor under the Employment Security Act have been paid in full or 
provided for with respect to the following public works contract: 

Description: EAST WINE COUNTRY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS. 

Contract number: 110 l 6C 

The Employment Security Department hereby certifies that it has no claim pursuant to RCW 
50.24.I 30 against the public body na1fled above for tax attributable to service performed for said 
public body by the above named contractor on the above described contract The Employment 
Security Department releases its lien on the retained percentage which is provided by RCW 
60.28.040 for contributions, penalties and interest due from said contractor. 

' ' 
This certificate does not release said contractor from liability for additional contributions, penalties 
and interest which may be later determined to be due with respect to the above mentioned contract. 

Dated at Olympia, Washington on April 12, 2012. 
EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT 

By =:zq;._~ 
Robyn R. Wells 

Authorized Representative 

Original - Disbursing Officer 
Duplicate- Employer 
Triplicate - Central Office Files 

46



0 Washington State Department of Contract Release 
• PO Box 44274 

Labor & Industries Olympia, wA 98504-4274 

Certificate of Release of the State's Lien on Public Works Contracts 

Awarding agency name 

Attn: Disbursing officer name 

Awarding agency address 

With this letter, the Washington State Department of Labor & In~ustri~s (L~l) approves of your 

release or payment of the contract amount retained from the followi~g c~nfractor -
,;. 

GC dba and address 

GC LNI account number 

- related to the following public works contract: ', 

Public works contract name and number 

In our opinion, ~11 workers' compensation ~urance premiums, increases, and penalties due to 
L&I from thi$. contractor have been paid hi full or are readily collectible without recourse to the 

state's lien 6n the retained percentage. 1 
"\ 

' 

This letter';s sole purpose is to com~iiu~icate our release of the state's lien to the public official 
responsible for paying or authorizi~g the payment of public funds to the contractor named above. 

If we later determine that the contractor owes additional premiums related to the above

mentioned contract or other activ~ties, the contractor is still liable for payment. 

Dated ____________ at Olympia, Washington. 

State of Washington 
Department of Labor & Industries 

Contract Release Specialist 

360-902-xxxx or XXX@Lni.wa.gov 

1 Title 51 RCW authorizes L&I to collect workers' compensation insurance premiums, increases, and penalties. 
Chapter 60.28 RCW establishes L&I's priority regarding the lien. 

47



Wnshington 81111c 
II r. Dcpqrtmcnt of-Revenue 

, . • l'O Box 47474 
Oly1'11ph1. WA 98304-7474 

601 672 46-8 

Certificate .of Pay1nent of State .Excise 
Taxes by Public Works Contractor 

MRM COlilS'.l',R'lJCTIOlil I:NC 
PO BQX 838 
ELLENSBURG WA .98.92.6 0838 

CITY OF CLE SLQM 
TONI FIELDS, CITY CLER!< 
119 w FIRST ST I(' 

.CLE ·ELl'.lM WA :9 8.9 OJ 0 0 0 B 

" 

J ' 

We hereby certify Chat taxes, increases and penalties due or to become)due fTorn the above-named 
cm~trac.tor 1:1nder .Chapter 18:0, Laws of 193'5, as amended, wit!] respect to ~he following public works 
cont'i~act: 

CITY OF CLE ELUM 

OS0-3:8~C ST~FP.ORD AYE "& SECOND ST TIB SIDEWA1iK IMPROVES 

')_get11er with all oliler taxes, increases and penalties .due from such c0ntractor, have beel'J paid in full or that 
.ney m·e, in th.e:Department's opinion, readi1y .eci1Jeclib1e without recourse to the state's Hen on the retained 
percentage. 

Th:i-s certificate is issued pursDant to the provfai on of Chap~er 60.28 Revised Code of Washington for the 
s.ole pm:po.se of infon11hlg the state, county, or munici]Jal officer charged with the duty of disbur-sing or 
authorjziT!g the .• payment of public funds to saiq conttactor that t'1e Department of Revenue hereby releases 
th~:state'.s JieQ on the retained ,Percentage provi!:Je.d by this Chapter for excise taxes due from said contractor. 

Th.is C..ertiffoate doe.s no.t rele.ai;.e s.a}d ·contra.ctorJrom liability for add.itior.)al taJI that may. be Jater 
detemtlnep to b~ d\:le with r .spect to tbe abovM11Bntioned co1itract or other activities. 

State of Washingt-0n 

rf.Ri>vonuo 

Cer~ifying Qfficor 

To innuirc about lhc avnllnblll~y of 1his tlocumcnt ht 1m uhcm~lc formal for· the visuully ·impalJ'lld or Jn n lnngun!!c other ll11m .English, plcuse call {360) 486-2342. 
"Y users mny. cull I ·800·115 l • 7985. 

REY 31 0028 tJ 0-01-02) ROUTlNO: Disbursing Of!J:er. Conl!llclor, File, Sp.eclul File 

48



CITY OF PROSSER, WASHINGTON 

AGENDA BILL 
Agenda Title: City Administrator Meeting Date: 
Recruitment Options Discussion. September 8, 2015, 

Regular Meeting 

Department: Director: Contact Person: Phone Number: 
Admin Mayor Warden Randy Taylor (509) 786-2332 

Cost of Pro~osal: Account Number: 
$18,500 - $33,000, plus miscellaneous expenses 511-041 

Amount Budgeted: Name and Fund# 
$20,000 Legislative 

Professional 
Services 

Reviewed b~ Finance Department: 

-~~ 
Attachments to Agenda Packet Item: \,..) 

1. Summary Snapshot Overview 
2. Proposal - Colin Baenziger & Associates 
3. Proposal - Waldron HR 
4. Proposal - Prothman 
5. Proposal - SGR 

Summary Statement: 

City Clerk Rachel Shaw was tasked with securing multiple recruitment proposals 
for the Council's consideration. To begin the process of hiring the next City 
Administrator, Council needs to choose the recruiting method and provide staff 
with direction on how to move forward. Attached are four options of established 
recruitment companies for Council's discussion and consideration. 

Consistent with or Comparison to: 

Past recruitment processes. 

Recommended City Council Action/Suggested Motion: 

Give staff direction on next steps for the City Administrator recruitment process. 

49



Reviewed by Department 
Director: · 

Ul;h 
Date: q,- - ( r-
Today's Date: 

September 2, 2015 

Reviewed by City 
Attorney: 

CZ~ 
-Date:f3~ 
Revision Number/Date: 

Date: ~ - "" / ( 
File Name and Path: 

50



City Administrator Recruitment Options

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Recruitor Time Frame Fees Expenses - Not Included

Colin Baenziger & Associates 88 days $23,250 Travel costs, accomodations and meals for interview process

Prothman

10 - 14 weeks $18,500
Some advertising, binders, printed materials, delivery/mail expenses, travel costs 
for candidate and consultant*, background checks, 

* Three onsite consultant meetings are included. See pg 9 of Prothman Proposal
Waldron 12 weeks $33,000 No additional info provided

Strategic Government Resources 15 weeks $27,000 Travels costs for candidate

51

ATTACHMENT 1



From: Toni Yost
To: Rachel Shaw
Subject: FW: Prosser City Administrator Recruitment
Date: Friday, August 21, 2015 11:49:01 AM
Attachments: image002.png

Sequim WA CM - FINAL PRINT Proposal - 01-28-2015.pdf

From: Colin Baenziger [mailto:Colin@cb-asso.com] 
Sent: Thursday, August 20, 2015 7:00 PM
To: Toni Yost
Subject: RE: Prosser City Administrator Recruitment

Thank you for the opportunity.  Prosser does have a very nice website, by the
 way. 

The basic information you requested is below.  I have also attached the proposal
 we did for the Sequim Search we did earlier this year.  It explains the process
 and our warranty in some detail. 

Per your request, our average search takes 88 days and we have never missed a
 project milestone once we have agreed to a project schedule in Phase I with the
 client.  We can cut it a bit shorter if need be but prefer not to. 

Our current firm, fixed price is $23,250 and includes all our expenses.  In other
 words the maximum the City would pay us is $23,250.  The City would also be
 responsible for paying the expenses of the candidates it brings in to interview
 for the position.

We do hope to work with you!  If you have any other questions, please do not
 hesitate to call.  I should be generally available Friday and all next week.  Also, I
 will be in our Salt Lake City office so I will be on Mountain Time but you have my
 cell phone number so call whenever is convenient for you. 

Best wishes!

Colin
@ Colin Baenziger & Associates
Cell:  561-707-3537

… Visit our website at www.cb-asso.com

From: Toni Yost [mailto:TYost@ci.prosser.wa.us] 
Sent: Thursday, August 20, 2015 3:30 PM
To: Colin@cb-asso.com
Subject: Prosser City Administrator Recruitment

52

ATTACHMENT 2

mailto:/O=CITY OF PROSSER/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=TYOST
mailto:RShaw@ci.prosser.wa.us
http://www.cb-asso.com/
mailto:TYost@ci.prosser.wa.us
mailto:Colin@cb-asso.com




 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE EXECUTIVE  


SEARCH SERVICES FOR A  


CITY MANAGER  


 
Volume I: Proposal 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Colin Baenziger & Associates 
 


Project Manager and Contact Person: 


 
John Darrington (509) 823-5138 


e-mail: John@cb-asso.com 


Fax: (888) 635-2430 


 
…Serving Our Clients with a Personal Touch… 


 


 



mailto:John@cb-asso.com





 
 







 


 


PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT SERVICES  


TO FIND SEQUIM’S NEXT  


CITY MANAGER  
 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 


 


VOLUME I 


 


SECTION  PAGE 


   


 LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 1 


   


I. SEARCH METHODOLOGY 4 


 Search Methodology  


 The City’s Obligations  


 Proposed Schedule  


   


II. QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF THE FIRM  13 


 The Firm  


 Technical Capabilities and Organizational Structure  


 Completion of Projects within Budget   


 Completion of Projects on Schedule  


 Diversity  


 Prior Names and Litigation  


 Insurance   


 Overall Executive Search Experience  


   


III. PROPOSED PROJECT STAFF 17 


 Project Team and Involvement  


 Resumes of Key Staff  


   


IV. REFERENCES 23 


   


V. FEE AND WARRANTY 28 


   


 


VOLUME II 


   


 APPENDIX A: ALL GOVERNMENTAL SEARCH ASSIGNMENTS A-1 


 APPENDIX B: SAMPLE RECRUITMENT BROCHURE B-1 


 APPENDIX C: SAMPLE CANDIDATE REPORT C-1 


 APPENDIX D: RESOLUTION OF SUNNYSIDE, WA D-1 







 


 







 
 


 


 


 


CENTERVILLE, MD                                   DAYTONA BEACH SHORES, FL                                 RHINELANDER, WI  


                                      RICHLAND, WA                                                             SALT LAKE CITY, UT 
  


 


 


 


January 27, 2015, 


 


 


The Honorable Mayor Candace Pratt, Deputy Mayor Dennis Smith and Council Members 


Erik Erichsen, Genaveve Starr, Ken Hays, Laura DuBois and Ted Miller 


ATTN: Office of Human Resources 


City of Sequim 


226 N. Sequim Avenue 


Sequim, WA   98382 


 


RE: Proposal to Provide Recruitment Services for  


City Manager 


 


Dear Mayor Pratt, Deputy Mayor Smith and Council Members Erichsen, Starr, Hays, DuBois 


and Miller: 


 


Colin Baenziger & Associates (CB&A) appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal to assist in 


finding your next City Manager. While selecting key personnel is never easy, CB&A has developed a 


problem-free process that has been tested nationwide and found to be extremely effective.  


 


CB&A is a national recruiting firm having conducted assignments from Florida to Washington and Maine 


to California.  We pride ourselves on providing not just high-quality results, but, equally important, 


providing a great deal of personal attention to each of our local government clients. To conduct a proper 


recruitment, we feel the project manager must do more than just drop by occasionally. He/she must get to 


know the appropriate government officials and the community firsthand. That effort takes time, but it is 


the only way to ensure the candidates we recommend are well qualified and a good fit for your community. 


As a result, we only take a few clients at a time and focus on getting the job done properly. Further, we 


routinely complete our work in sixty to ninety days. This timeframe includes preparation of recruitment 


and advertising materials, candidate outreach, candidate screening, finalist interviewing, and manager 


selection. We also offer the best warranty in the industry. 


 


Not only do we offer unparalleled service at a reasonable price, we focus on finding just the right people 


for your organization. We say people, and not person, because our goal is to bring you five finalists who 


are so good that you will have a difficult time choosing among them. The proof is in the fact that five of 


our local government clients have passed resolutions thanking us for our outstanding efforts in finding 


their key staff. We do not know how often you have passed a resolution thanking a consulting firm for its 


efforts, but we have rarely seen it happen. Our goal, in fact, would be for you to be our next client to pass 


such a resolution. 







 
 


 


 


-2- 


 


 


Some of our recent searches include the City Managers for Bellevue, Connell, Medina, Mountlake 


Terrace, Sunnyside, Tacoma and Yakima in Washington.  Some of our other searches include City 


Managers for Ankeny, IA, Destin, FL, Mount Pleasant, MI, Roanoke, VA, Titusville, FL, and 


Winchester, VA.  We also found the Borough Manager for Matanuska-Susitna Borough, Alaska 


(a county the size of West Virginia), County Managers for Clackamas County, OR; Clay County, 


FL; El Paso County, TX, James City County (the county seat is Williamsburg), VA; and Union 


County, NC.   


 


Our current searches include, among others, the City Managers for Mill Creek, WA and for Ocala, 


FL, as well as . County Administrator for York County, VA.  We are also seeking the Executive 


Director for the Performing Arts and Convention Center of Federal Way, WA and a City Engineer 


and Assistant City Engineer for Plant City, FL     


 


We look forward to hearing from you and hopefully working with you in the near future. If you 


have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (561) 707-3537.  


 


Sincerely, 


 
Colin Baenziger 


Principal / Owner 


 


…Serving Our Clients with a Personal Touch… 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


-3- 


 


 


Some of CB&A Clients… 
 


 


                         


 City of Ankeny, IA     City of Bellevue, WA 


  City Manager      City Manager 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                       


 City of Fayetteville, NC    City of Winchester, VA 


  City Manager      City Manager  


 







Section I:  Search Methodology 
 


-4- 


 


 


The following search methodology has been refined over the past sixteen years and now is virtually 


foolproof. We will integrate your ideas into the process. Our goal is to ensure you have the right 


people to interview as well as the information you need to make the right decision.   


 


Phase I: Information Gathering and Needs Assessment 


 


Task One: Needs Assessment  


 


An important part of the recruiter’s work is selling the community to the very best candidates 


(including those that are not actively looking for the next job) while also providing an accurate 


portrayal of the community and the opportunity. In order to do this, CB&A must first determine 


the needs of the client and the characteristics of the ideal candidate. Our approach is as follows:  


 


 Compile background information from the jurisdiction’s website and other sources.   


 Interview the Mayor and Councilmembers, other key stakeholders (such as department 


heads, members of community groups, representatives of business organization, residents 


and so on).  Our goal is to develop a strong sense of your organization, its leadership, its 


short and long term expectations, and its challenges; 


 Determine the characteristics of the ideal candidate.  These will likely include experience, 


longevity, education, personality, demeanor, and achievements as well as other items the 


Councilmembers and stakeholders consider important),  and 


 Determine a reasonable compensation package.  


 


We will also finalize the timeline so candidates can mark their calendars well in advance and will 


be available when the Councilmembers wish to conduct the interviews. 


 


If the City wishes, we routinely incorporate meetings with other stakeholders (such as the business 


community, the non-profit community, City staff and so on) to gather their insights. These forums 


are valuable as they provide additional perspectives and a better understanding of the environment 


the Manager will be working in.  


 


Task Two: Develop Position Description and Recruitment Materials 


 


Based on the information we gather, CB&A will next develop a position description and 


comprehensive recruitment profile. We will provide our draft for your review and comment. Your 


suggestions will be incorporated, and the final documents prepared. A sample of our work is 


included as Appendix B. Other samples can be found on our firm’s website under the “Executive 


Recruitments” / “Active Recruitments” tabs. 


 


Phase II: Recruitment 


Task Three: Recruit Candidates 


 


CB&A uses a number of approaches to identify the right people for this position. We say people, 


and not person, because our goal is to bring you six to ten excellent semi-finalists, all of whom 


will do the job extraordinarily well and who are so good you will have a difficult time choosing







Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 
 


-5- 


 


among them. You then select the top three to five people to interview and ultimately choose the 


candidate who is the best fit with you and your community. The approaches we use are:  


 


 Networking: The best approach is diligent outreach. We will network with our colleagues 


and consult our data base. As we identify outstanding candidates (many of whom are not 


in the market), we will approach them and request that they apply. Often excellent 


candidates are reluctant to respond to advertisements because doing so may alienate their 


current employers. When we approach them, their credentials are enhanced rather than 


diminished.  One of the tools we use is Linked-In. 


 Advertising While we will seek out the best, we will not ignore the trade press as it often 


also yields strong candidates. We intend to contact the members of organizations such as 


the Association of Washington Cities, International City/ County Management 


Association, Washington City/County Management Association and so on.  We will also 


post it on our website, www.cb-asso.com. We generally do not use newspapers or generic 


websites because while they produce large numbers of applications, they generally do not 


produce the type of candidates our clients are seeking.  


 Email: We will also e-mail the recruitment profile to our listserv of eleven thousand 


managers and professionals who are interested in local government management. One of 


the advantages of e-mail is that if the recipient is not interested, he/she can easily forward 


the recruitment profile to someone else who may be interested.  


 


 


Phase III: Screening and Finalist Selection 


 


Task Four: Evaluate the Candidates 


 


Based on our most recent recruiting efforts, we anticipate receiving resumes from sixty to one 


hundred applicants. We will narrow the field as described above and present information on 


candidates to the Mayor and City Councilmembers. This process requires a mixture of in-depth 


research and subjective evaluation. Our process is as follows.  


 


It should be noted that selecting strong candidates is more an art than a science. While we consider 


standard ranking factors and the elements of the job, ultimately the most important factor is who 


we believe will be a good fit with the City and the community. Typically forty percent of our 


finalists are women and/or minorities.   


 


Specifically, our efforts will involve:   


 


Step One. Resume Review. CB&A will evaluate all resumes and identify the ten to fifteen 


outstanding candidates. Some of these may be in-house candidates or individuals who have 


held high-level positions in other governments but who have never been the Manager.  


Often these people simply need the opportunity. Using a football analogy, Vince Lombardi 


was an assistant coach with the New York Giants prior to being hired by the Green Bay 


Packers. Hence, we do not believe we should only consider those who have already held 


the position we are recruiting for. 



http://www.cb-asso.com/





Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 
 


-6- 


 


 


 


Step Two. Screening Interview. Our lead recruiter, and possibly other senior 


representatives of the firm, will interview each of these candidates. Using what we learned 


in Phase I and our experience as managers and recruiters, as well as our unique ability to 


assess candidates, we will determine whether or not to consider them further.  


 


 


Step Three.  Candidate Materials and Background Investigations. For those that 


remain in consideration, CB&A will: 


 


 Ask the Candidates to Prepare a Written Introduction:  We will ask the 


candidates to prepare a written introduction to themselves as part of their 


preliminary background checks.  This is done for several reasons.  First, it allows 


the candidates to tell their own story and balance the negativity that is so often 


characteristic of the press.  It also allows the City to evaluate the candidates written 


and communications skills.   


 


 Candidate Disclosure Statement:  We will ask candidates if there is anything 


controversial in their background that we should be made aware of prior to further 


consideration.  While it is unlikely that we find anything not previously publicized 


in the press, we believe redundant checks offer superior security for our client. 


 


 Interviews of References: We tell the candidate with whom we wish to speak. 


These include current and former Councilmembers, the municipal attorney, the 


external auditor, staff members, peers, news media representatives, the director of 


the local chamber of commerce, community activists, and others who know the 


candidate. We also attempt to contact some individuals who are not on the 


candidate’s list. Typically we reach eight to ten people and prepare a written 


summary of each conversation.  


 


 Legal Checks: Through our third party vendor, American DataBank, we will 


conduct the following checks: criminal records at the county, state and national 


level; civil records for any litigation at the county and federal level; and bankruptcy 


and credit.  


 


 Search the Internet and Newspaper Archives: Virtually every local newspaper 


has an archive that provides stories about perspective candidates, the issues they 


have dealt with, how they resolved them and the results. These articles can also 


provide valuable insights into the candidate’s relationship with the public and the 


Councilmembers. Of course, not all news sources are unbiased and we consider 


that in our evaluation.  This step is conducted in order to quickly discover 


candidates with problems in their backgrounds and eliminate them.   


 







Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 
 


-7- 


 


 


 Verification of Education: We also verify claimed educational degrees to assure 


the candidate is being totally forthright. 


 


 Verification of Work History: We verify employment for the past fifteen years. 


 


Note:  We firmly believe that all background work we have outlined above should 


be completed early in the process.  That way the client knows the individuals to be 


interviewed are all top performers and do not have anything embarrassing in their 


pasts that might come to light after selection.  It also means that once our client has 


made a selection, it can move forward promptly, negotiate a contract and make an 


announcement. 


 


Task Five:  Preparation and Presentation of Candidate Materials 


 


For the selected candidates, CB&A will compile the information we have developed into a 


complete written report for each recommended candidate. Specifically, this information will 


include:  the candidates’ resumes, introductions, references, background checks and internet / 


newspaper archive search results.  A complete sample candidate report is included as Appendix 


C.  We will also provide advice on interviewing, a series of questions the elected officials may 


wish to ask (as well as some areas that it is not wise to get into), and some logistical information. 


The preceding information will be forwarded to you electronically.  


 


The goal in conducting these checks is to develop a clear picture of the candidates and to determine 


which best meet the criteria established in Phase I. Each of the avenues we pursue adds a piece of 


the puzzle. We will crosscheck sources, search for discrepancies, and resolve them when we find 


them. When sensitive or potentially embarrassing items are discovered, they are thoroughly 


researched. If we conclude the situation is damaging or even questionable that cannot be 


adequately explained, the candidate will be dropped from further consideration. 


 


Task Six:  Finalist Selection 


 


Approximately a week after the City has received the candidate materials, CB&A will meet with 


the Councilmembers to discuss our findings and make a final determination concerning who will 


be invited to interview.  The goal is to select four to six candidates to interview.  


 


We will then notify the selected finalists of their status and schedule the interviews with the Mayor 


and City Councilmembers. 


 


Task Seven: Notify All Candidates of Their Status 


 


We will notify the selected candidates by telephone and give them the opportunity to ask additional 


questions. CB&A will also contact those not selected to advise them of their status. Part of the 


notification will include advice concerning the candidates’ resume and/or cover letter so, even 


though they were not selected to go forward, they will have gained something valuable from 


participating in the process. 







Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 
 


-8- 


 


 


 


Phase IV: Coordinate the Interview Process and City Manager Selection 


 


Task Eight: Coordinate the Candidate Assessment Process 


 


Prior to the interviews, we will recommend an interview/assessment process for the City’s review 


including means to evaluate the candidates’ communication skills, interpersonal skills, and 


decision-making skills. As part of the process, we will recommend the Councilmembers observe 


the finalists in a number of settings. We will also recommend you invite the finalists’ spouses so 


they can spend time in and evaluate your community. 


 


Day #1: The finalists are given a tour of the community and its facilities by a 


knowledgeable staff member. Later, senior staff members meet briefly with the candidates. 


This opportunity allows the finalists to ask questions and the senior staff to assess the 


candidates. 


 


Later, that evening, the Mayor and City Councilmembers host a reception for the 


candidates. The purpose is to observe how the finalists respond to a social situation. Your 


next City Manager will, after all, represent your local government in numerous venues. It 


is thus important to know how the individual will respond in a social setting. The reception 


also serves as an ice-breaker whereby the Councilmembers and the candidates get to know 


one another informally.  


 


Day #2: Beginning at approximately 8:30 a.m., each candidate interviews individually with 


each elected official for approximately 40 minutes. These meetings provide the 


Councilmembers with an opportunity to assess how the candidates might interact with them 


on an individual basis. It is very important to know if good chemistry exists. Ultimately, 


Administrators succeed and fail based on their interaction with the Councilmembers and 


the one-on-one interviews are an excellent way to test that interaction. 


 


After lunch, the Mayor and City Councilmembers as a group will interview each candidate 


so that they can assess the candidates in a formal meeting. Part of the interviews may 


include a PowerPoint presentation so the Councilmembers can observe the candidates’ 


presentational skills.  


 


Task Nine: Debriefing and Selection 


 


Once the interviews have concluded, CB&A suggests the Council adjourn and hold a meeting a 


day or two later to select the next City Manager. Although the selection can be made the same day 


as the interviews, this decision is quite important and we recommend you take some time to 


consider what you have seen and heard.  


 


In terms of the final selection, we have developed a simple methodology that moves the elected 


body quickly and rationally to the desired outcome. Once the selection has been made, CB&A will 


notify the finalists of their status. Candidates are eager to know and we feel it is important to keep 


them informed. 







Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 
 


-9- 


 


 


 


 


 


Phase V: Negotiation and Continuing Assistance 


 


Task Ten: Notification, Contract Negotiations and Warranty 


 


Should the Councilmembers wish, we will assist in the employment agreement negotiations. 


Generally, a member of the elected body and the attorney conduct the actual negotiations while 


we provide advice and assistance concerning the compensation package and contract. We can also 


take the lead role in the negotiations if desired. We have a standard contract you are welcome to 


use. Your attorney, of course, will prepare the final contract. Since the basic parameters will have 


been discussed with the candidates and the candidates have been thoroughly vetted, we expect a 


relatively prompt agreement.  


 


Task Eleven: Continuing Assistance 


 


Our work is not done when the contract is executed. We will stay in touch with you and your new 


City Manager. Our goal is to be there to assist in resolving any issues that arise before they become 


intractable. In fact, at your request, we will conduct a team-building workshop, at no charge, to 


resolve any difficulties. We simply feel it is part of our job to assure a successful relationship.  


 


 


Communications: We will provide weekly reports about the status of the search, in writing or by 


phone, depending upon your preference. At significant milestones we will make the reports in 


person. We are also available at any time, day or night, to address any questions you have along 


the way. To do so, we will provide you with our cellphone numbers and you should feel 


comfortable contacting us whenever you have a question whether it is directly related to the search 


or, for that matter, anything else related to local government. We want to be responsive and to 


assist in any way we can.  


 


 







Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 
 


-10- 


 


The City’s Obligations 
 


The City will be responsible for providing the facilities for the interview process, coordinating 


lodging for candidates from outside the area, and making arrangements for the reception. The City 


will also be responsible for reimbursing the candidates for all expenses associated with their travel, 


meals, and incidentals for the interview weekend. 


 


The City should also plan to provide the following information, if it is not available on the City’s 


website, to each of the finalists: the current year budget, an organizational chart, the latest 


completed audit and management letter, any current strategic and long range plans, a copy of the 


City Charter, any job descriptions and other materials defining the role and duties of the City 


Manager, and any evaluations of the organization completed in the last year.  


 


These are the only obligations and responsibilities the City is expected to assume in the recruitment 


process. 


 


 


 







Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 
 


-11- 


 


Possible Project Schedule 
 


The following is the schedule we would suggest and assumes CB&A is selected to perform the 


search by February 9th.  We realize the schedule may need to be adjusted to accommodate the 


Mayor’s and Councilmembers’ availability.  We can also shorten the schedule considerably if the 


City wishes to move more quickly. 


 


 


Phase I: Needs Assessment / Information Gathering  


 


February 17th: CB&A begins working with the Mayor, City Councilmembers and other 


stakeholders to understand the job and its challenges 


 


February 24th: CB&A submits the draft of the full recruitment profile to the City for its 


review. Comments will be due back by February 27th. 


 


Phase II: Recruiting 


 


March 4th: CB&A posts the full recruitment profile on its website and submits it to the 


appropriate publications. It is also e-mailed to over 11,000 local government 


managers and professionals. 


 


March 27th:  Closing date for submission of applications.  


 


April 2nd: CB&A reports the results of the recruitment to the Mayor and 


Councilmembers. 


 


Phase III: Screening, Reference Checks and Credential Verification 


 


April 24th: CB&A forwards complete semi-finalist material electronically to the  City. 


 


April 29th: City selects finalists. 


 


Phase IV: Interview Process Coordination and City Selection  


 


May 8th:  City holds reception for the finalists. 


May 9th:   One-on-one and full Council Interviews. 


May 11th: City selects its next City Manager. 


 


Phase V: Negotiation, Warranty & Continuing Assistance 


 


Post-Selection: CB&A works with City representatives and the selected candidate on an 


employment agreement.  







 


-12- 


 


More CB&A Clients… 


 


 


        
     City of Roanoke, VA     Oregon City, OR 


 City Manager 


City Attorney       Finance Director 


Economic Development Director 


Finance Director 


Human Resources Director 


Planning, Building and  


       Development Director 


 


 


       
     James City County, VA     City of Scottsdale, AZ 


 


 County Administrator     City Manager  


 







II. Qualifications and Experience of the Firm  
 


-13- 


 


 


 


The Firm, Its Philosophy, & Its Experience 
 


Colin Baenziger & Associates (CB&A) is a nationally recognized executive recruiting firm 


established in 1997 and owned and operated by Colin Baenziger. We are a sole proprietorship 


headquartered in Volusia County, FL with offices in Centerville, MD; Rhinelander, WI; Richland, 


WA and Salt Lake City, UT.  As a sole proprietorship, we are not registered with any states as a 


corporation, foreign or otherwise. Although our primary focus is executive search, we are often 


involved in operational reviews of governmental operations. Our consultants live in other areas of 


the country and converge wherever the client’s needs exist. We develop an operational plan prior 


to arrival and our team of experts quickly studies the issues, identifies problems and opportunities, 


performs the necessary analysis, develops solutions, prepares reports and action plans, and 


completes the assignment. The client receives prompt, professional service, and its needs are 


effectively addressed. We are available for follow-up work, however, our goal is to provide the 


client with solutions that its existing staff can implement without additional outside assistance.  


 


Colin Baenziger & Associates’ outstanding reputation is derived from our commitment to 


timeliness and quality. Our work is not done until you are satisfied. That means we go the extra 


mile and, at times, expend more effort and energy than originally anticipated in our fee or in our 


action plan. We do not ask the client for additional fees. Rather, we accept these situations as part 


of our cost of doing business. We believe that once a contract is signed we have an obligation to 


fulfill its requirements excellently and within the budgeted amount.  


 


Since beginning our search practice in 1998, we have conducted searches and other related work 


for clients in nineteen states. Overall our staff has performed over 150 City, County, and Special 


District Manager searches and approximately 200 local government searches. The basic approach 


we have presented herein is the approach we have used in each of our searches. It has been refined 


over the years to the point where it is problem-free. 


 


 


Technical Capabilities and Organizational Structure 
 


Colin Baenziger & Associates has developed its business model over the past 15 years. The model 


has proven to be extremely effective in every state where we have applied it and for every type of 


position for which we have searched. In fact, we are often called when a government has a particularly 


difficult position to fill or where one of our competitors has failed. Overall, we utilize approximately 


eighteen people. Most staff members are independent contractors and are given assignments on a task 


order basis. Consequently we can pay well while having a great deal of flexibility without the 


overhead of many firms. In addition to Mr. Baenziger, other senior staff members are former City 


and/or County Managers or elected officials. As a result, we understand multiple perspectives and 


have been very successful in identifying the right candidates for our clients. CB&A’s other staff are 


all competent researchers and writers and most have been with us for a long time.  







II. Qualifications and Experience of the Firm (continued) 
 


-14- 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Completion of Projects within Budget 
 


Colin Baenziger & Associates is proud of its record of completing searches within budget. When we 


quote a price to the client, that price is what the client will pay, no matter how difficult the search is 


or what unforeseen circumstances may develop. We have never asked a search client for additional 


fees, even when we were entitled to do so. 


 


Completion of Projects on Schedule 
 


Colin Baenziger & Associates routinely completes its assignments in sixty to ninety days. Further, 


since CB&A began performing recruitments, it has never missed a project milestone.  


 


Diversity 
 


CB&A has extensive contacts with individuals and organizations representing women and minorities. 


We are thus able to identify and bring a diverse group of finalists to the City.  The proof is that from 


the beginning of 2009 through the end of 2011, forty-three percent of the individuals whom we placed 


as City and County Managers were minorities and/or women.  So far in 2014 our placement 


percentage of women and minorities is also 43%. 


                       


         Colin Baenziger  TaeLynn Johnson  


         Owner & Principal  Senior Editor  


                        


                                     


                          


                          


  Rick Conner  David Collier  John Darrington   


  Vice President  Senior Vice President  Senior Vice President  


                       


                       


  Kathyrn Knutson  Jim Payne  Merv Timberlake  


  VP / Operations  Vice President  VP / Financial Recruiting   


                        


                                     


                          


  
Internet Specialists (2) 


 Senior Research Associates 


(8) 


 Administrative Assistants 


(2) 


 


     


                       


 







II. Qualifications and Experience of the Firm (continued) 
 


-15- 


 


 


Prior Names and Litigation 
 


Colin Baenziger & Associates has always operated under its current name and has never been 


involved in any litigation, except to testify as an expert witness on behalf of one of the parties. Our 


performance has never been questioned nor have we or any of our clients been involved in any 


legal action as a result of our work.  


 


Insurance 
 


To protect our clients, Colin Baenziger & Associates maintains the following insurance coverages: 


(1) general liability insurance of $1 million combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury, 


personal injury, and property damages, (2) automobile liability insurance of $1 million per accident, 


and (3) professional liability insurance of $1 million per occurrence. As a small firm, predominantly 


utilizing independent contractors, we are not typically subject to the requirements for workers 


compensation and employer liability insurance. If required by the client, and if it is available to us, 


we will obtain these two coverages prior to contract execution. 


 


Overall Executive Search Experience 
 


CB&A started its executive search business in 1998 from scratch.  As a single father, he needed to 


stay nearby and so his goal was to become Florida’s preeminent recruiter.  In 2007 with his children 


mature, he branched out into other states.   His firm has now worked in 23 states, from Maine to 


California and Florida to Alaska.  See the map below. 


 


   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


A complete list of our searches is contained in Appendix A. 


 







 


-16- 


 


More CB&A Clients… 


 


 


       


 City of Corpus Christi, TX    Bay County, FL 


 Assistant City Manager     County Manager 


 


 


     


 City of Doraville, GA     City of Durham, NC 


  City Manager      Deputy City Manager – 


   Community Building 


Director - Economic and  


 Workforce Development 







III. Proposed Project Staff 
 


-17- 


 


Project Team and Involvement 
 


Colin Baenziger & Associates is an experienced recruiting firm which strongly believes that the 


majority of the search work should be conducted by one knowledgeable person. Colin Baenziger 


will be that person—he will serve as your project manager. He will conduct the interviews with 


the elected officials, search for strong candidates, discuss the position with those candidates, 


recruit them, conduct the interviews with the candidates, conduct the background investigations, 


oversee the interview process, and assist with the contract negotiations. In addition to fifteen years 


as a consultant, Mr. Baenziger spent ten years in government as a senior manager. Overall, he has 


been the firm’s Project Manager for more than one hundred and twenty five city and county 


manager searches.  Prior to starting CB&A, he spent over 20 years hiring key staff. 


 


John Darrington, Senior Vice President, will serve as deputy project manager. Mr. Darrington will 


assist in every aspect of the search effort but will focus on the search for strong candidates and 


candidate evaluation.  Before joining the firm, Mr. Darrington spent over 30 years managing 


communities in Idaho, Washington and Wyoming.  He holds a Masters of Public Administration 


and a B.A. from Brigham Young University.   


 


Rick Conner, vice president, will serve as the recruitment manager and assist with the 


identification and screening of candidates.  He has over 30 years of in local government and in 


executive recruiting.  He earned Bachelors of Science Degrees in Business Administration and 


Engineering from the University of Missouri.  


 


Kathyrn Knutson, Vice President for Operations, will be responsible for coordinating the 


advertising and production of the materials we will present to you as described in the Recruitment 


Approach. 


 


 


 


  Colin Baenziger   John Darrington  


  Project Manager  Deputy Project Manager  


                       


                   


 Rick Conner  Kathyrn Knutson   


 Recruitment Manager  Operations Manager   


                 


   
Research Associates 


  


     







III. Proposed Project Staff (continued) 


 


-18- 


 


Colin Baenziger, M.P.A. 
 
 Principal 


 


Colin Baenziger is a student of local government and responsible for 


the executive recruitment functions at Colin Baenziger & 


Associates. Over the years, he has worked with a number of cities 


on recruitments and on management, operational, and organizational 


issues. As a former manager and someone who actively consults 


with governments, he understands what it takes to do the manager’s 


job effectively. Furthermore, because he is active in a number of 


professional associations, he knows many of the nation’s managers 


on a first-name basis.  


 


Some of Mr. Baenziger’s searches for local governments include: 


 


 City Manager, Bellevue, WA (population 144,000) 


 City Manager, Cottonwood Heights, UT (population 34,000) 


 City Manager, Fife, WA (population 8,200) 


 City Manager, Fayetteville, NC (population 208,000) 


 Village Manager, Key Biscayne, FL (population 11,000) 


 Economic Development Director, Loudoun County, VA (population 326,000) 


 City Manager, Mountlake Terrace, WA (20,700) 


 Borough Manager, Matanuska-Susitna Borough, Alaska (population 88,000) 


 City Manager, Mount Dora, FL (population 12,000) 


 County Manager, Clackamas County, OR (population 380,000) 


 City Manager, Palm Coast, FL (population 51,000) 


 City Manager, Portland, ME (population 65,000) 


 City Manager, Roanoke, VA (population 96,000) 


 City Manager, Tacoma, WA (population 200,000) 


 General Manager, Tampa Bay Water Authority (serving a population of 2.4 million) 


 County Manager, Union County, NC (population 290,000) 


 


Other recent efforts include a strategic planning session for the Florida Association of Special 


Districts, an operational review of Tamarac’s water utility, a business practices review for a 


division of Martin County government, an operational reconciliation for Palm Beach County 


Water, development of an automated system to pay royalties to featured recording artists for the 


Recording Industry Association of America, and a review of financial procedures for a division of 


the Marriott Corporation. 


 


Mr. Baenziger has a master’s degree with distinction in public administration from Cornell 


University’s Graduate School of Management, and a Bachelor of Arts degree from Carleton 


College. He is also active in the International City Management Association and the Florida City 


and County Management Association. He has also been called upon frequently to speak at 


conferences of the Utah and Florida City/County Managers’ Associations, and the Florida Public 


Personnel Association. 







III. Proposed Project Staff (continued) 


 


-19- 


 


John C. Darrington, M.P.A. 
 


 Senior Vice President 


 


Having served over 30 years as a local government manager in 


Washington, Idaho and Wyoming, John Darrington is no stranger to the 


issues cities and counties face.  Add that experience to his incisive 


intellect and the client has someone who quickly understands its issues, 


will separate the important from the unimportant and get to the optimal 


solution in short order.  Best of all, the solutions John suggests are 


elegantly simple and can be implemented without further assistance from 


the firm.   


 


Among his many areas of expertise are leadership, management, 


economic development and executive search.  Over the years, he has 


directed and/or participated in the recruitment of many high level 


positions in local government.  Some of these include: 


 


 City Manager, Connell, WA, 


 City Manager, Medina, WA, 


 City Manager, Sunnyside, WA, 


 City Manager, Tacoma, WA, 


 City Manager, Yakima, WA, 


 Executive Director, South Sound 911 (Pierce County, Washington) 


 Economic Development Manager, Richland, WA 


 Utilities Director, Gillette, WY  


 Police Chief, Richland, WA 


 Public Works Director, Richland, WA 


 


While serving as City Manager of Richland, WA, he oversaw the revitalization of the Central 


Business District including a major dock and plaza area on the Columbia River, recruited Ferguson 


Enterprises (the nation’s largest supplier of plastic pipe and other construction products) to create 


over 600,000 square feet of commercial space, and formed a Public Facilities District to secure 


over $40 million in funding for the Hanford Reach National Monument Heritage. He also oversaw 


an electric utility, improved the morale and professionalism within the city government  


 


Prior serving in Richland, John was a City Administrator in Soda Springs, ID, the City Manager 


in Rawlins, WY, and Gillette, WY.  He also has extensive experience in local government 


consulting particularly in goal setting and strategic planning. 


 


Mr. Darrington earned his Bachelor of Arts degree in History and Political Science and his 


Master’s Degree in Public Administration from Brigham Young University.  He has been a 


member of the International City/ County Management for over thirty five years, served as the 


Chair and Board Member of the ICMA Retirement Corporation Trust (seven years) and Chair and 


Board Member of the Wyoming Environmental Quality Council (eight years).  He was also 


selected as the “Boss of the Year” in 1995 by the Professional Secretaries International.  







III. Proposed Project Staff (continued) 


 


-20- 


 


Rick Conner, P.E.  
 
                                Vice President 


 


Rick Conner is a recent addition to CB&A’s strong cadre of 


municipal operations experts.  With over 30 years of management 


experience in local government, he has seen it all and done most of 


it.  He possesses keen analytical skills and the ability to slice through 


critical issues.  As a result, he is another outstanding weapon in the 


firm’s arsenal of experts.  His years in local government and his 


many licenses and certifications help him to judge talent quickly and 


effectively. 


 


In addition to his experience as a City Manager, Rick’s previous 


positions such as a Public Works Director, gives him an excellent 


perspective of the needs of local government operations and staffing. 


 


Prior to joining Colin Baenziger & Associates in 2012, some of the 


top leadership positions that Rick has held include: 


 


 City Manager of Sunny Isles Beach, Florida,  


 City Manager of Portland, Texas, 


 City Manager of Marble Falls, Texas, 


 Public Works Director of Nashville/Davidson County, Tennessee, and 


 Public Works Director of Bryan, Texas 


 


While serving in these positions, Rick received national recognition for his Customer Service 


programs.   Over his career, Mr. Conner has been involved in a variety of recruitments.  Some of 


these include: 


 


 City Manager, Fayetteville, NC,  


 City Manager, Sarasota, FL, 


 City Manager, Cocoa Beach, FL 


 Chief Executive Officer/General Manager, Des Moines (IA) Water Works,  


 Finance Director/Procurement Officer for a bedroom community to Corpus Christie, TX, 


 Accounting Director for a medium size West Texas city    


 Police Chief for a Florida barrier island community,  


 Water and Wastewater Director for a medium size, central Texas city, 


 Airport Fixed Base Operator for a Texas university community, and  


 Airport Manager for a medium size Texas university city. 


 


Rick holds a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration and a Bachelor of Science in Civil 


Engineering from University of Missouri.  He also worked towards Masters Degrees in both Math 


and Civil Engineering before joining the work force.   He is a Registered Land Surveyor and a 


Professional Engineer in Missouri, as well as a Professional Engineer in Florida, Tennessee and 


Texas. 







III. Proposed Project Staff (continued) 


 


-21- 


 


 


Kathyrn Knutson 
 
 Vice President for Operations 


 


Ms. Knutson is a skilled professional with a wealth of public and 


private sector experience. Her particular expertise is in special 


projects, compensation surveys, and background checks for our 


executive search candidates. She feels that each client must be 


properly served, and that can only be done by devoting her utmost 


attention to their particular concerns and by finding creative ways to 


solve their problems. In her book, the client comes first. 


 


Since beginning her working relationship as a subcontractor with 


Colin Baenziger & Associates, Ms. Knutson has been involved in 


virtually every executive search the firm has conducted. Some of the 


more notable searches include:  


 


 Public Works Director,  Chandler, AZ (population 250,000) 


 City Manager, Town of Bay Harbor Islands (population 5,200) 


 City Manager, Coral Gables, FL (population 42,000) 


 City Manager, Cottonwood Heights, UT (population 34,000) 


 City Manager, Cutler Bay, FL (population 35,000) 


 City Manager, Fife, WA (population 8,200) 


 City Manager, Greensboro, NC (population 259,000) 


 City Manager, Homestead, FL (population 59,800) 


 Village Manager, Key Biscayne, FL (population 11,000) 


 City Manager, City of Marathon, FL (population 11,500) 


 Village Manager, Village of Palmetto Bay, FL (population 24,000) 


 City Manager, Portland, ME (65,000) 


 City Manager, Roanoke, VA (population 96,000) 


 City Manager, City of West Melbourne, FL (population 15,000) 


 


As noted, a major part of Ms. Knutson’s work has been on special projects. For example, she is 


responsible for the firm’s annual City Manager compensation survey and also has worked with 


Palm Beach County Water Utilities reviewing a portion of its billing database. The utility’s 


concern was possible under-billing, and our work involved a review of billing records for 


reasonableness and consistency, as well as extensive work in the field. Thanks to Ms. Knutson’s 


work, the Utility recovered our fee several times over.  


 


Ms. Knutson’s prior employment includes stints with Palm Beach County’s Department of 


Building, Planning, and Zoning, and with the County Health and Rehabilitative Services. She has 


also worked with the State of Florida’s Department of Corrections and with the State’s Department 


of Employment Services. She has also been involved with a number of private and non-profit 


concerns, such as the Visiting Nurses Association and Oakwood Mental Health Center of the Palm 


Beaches. Ms. Knutson has an associate’s degree in business education from West Georgia College 


in Carrollton, Georgia. Kathyrn currently resides in Oneida County, WI. 







 


-22- 


 


More CB&A Clients… 


 


 
 


      
  


Emmet County, MI     City of Titusville, FL 


 


  County Administrator    City Manager 


 


 


 


      
 


City of Sunnyside, WA      City of Mount Pleasant, MI 


      


City Manager       City Manager 







IV. References 


 


  -23-  


 


City Manager, Bellevue, WA (population 126,400) 


    Contact:   Deputy Mayor Kevin Wallace at (425) 452-7810, or 


  Assistant City Manager Myrna Basich at  


    (425) 452-2733 or mbasich@bellevuewa.gov 


 


Bellevue is located just east of Seattle and is one of the nation’s premier cities.  


It is home several major corporations and offers a very high quality of life.  


CB&A began its work in August 2013.  It included extensive input from the 


elected officials, the public and Bellevue staff.  Our work included recruiting 


and advertising for candidates, conducting background checks, selecting the 


most qualified, recommending them for interviews, coordinating the 


interview process, and assisting in the contract negotiations.  Interviews we 


originally scheduled to take place in December but three of our five finalists 


dropped at the last minute and we felt we needed to redo the search.  We 


started again after the first of the year.  The Council Members were very 


pleased with the results and the caliber of the second group of finalists.  They 


selected Bellevue Deputy City Manager Brad Miyake in early April.  


 


 
City Manager, Medina, WA (population 3,100) 
 Contact:  Mayor Michael Luis at mluis@medina-wa.org   


 


CB&A was hired in August 2013 to find the Medina’s next City 


Manager.   Our work included extensive interviews with the City Council, 


preparation of a recruitment profile, searching the nation to find the right 


person for the job, interviewing the candidates, conducting through 


background checks, and recommending finalists for the City to interview.  We 


also oversaw the interview and selection processes.  After careful deliberation, 


the City selected Michael Sauerwein, Deputy City Manager for Sammamish, 


WA in November 2013.   


 


City Manager, Miramar, FL (population 122,000)   


 Contact:  Commissioner Yvette Colbourne at 


  (954) 560-5161, or ycolbourne@ci.miramar.fl.us 


  City Hall at Town Center 


  2300 Civic Center Place 


  Miramar Florida 33025  
  Fax:  (954) 602-3553 


 


CB&A began the search for Miramar’s next City Manager on May 13, 2013.  


We conducted a nationwide search with an emphasis on Southeast Florida.  


Our work included extensive screening and background checks as well as 


coordinating the interview process and negotiating the compensation package 


with the selected candidate.  The City selected Ms. Kathleen Woods-


Richardson, formerly Director of Public Works and Waste Management for



mailto:mluis@medina-wa.org

mailto:ycolbourne@ci.miramar.fl.us





IV. References (continued) 


 


  -24-  


 


Miami-Dade County, on August 21, 2013.  She began working for the City on 


September 9, 2013. 


 


 


City Manager, Mountlake Terrace, WA (population 20,200) 


Contact:   Mayor Scott Hugel at (425) 583-8761 or  


   SHugill@ci.mlt.wa.us 


 


Mountlake Terrace retained CB&A in mid-October, 2013. to help find its next 


City Manager.  We met with the Council Members and with staff.  Based on 


what we learned, we crafted a recruitment profile and began to search the 


country for outstanding candidates.  Background checks were thorough and 


four finalists were selected.  Interviews were held on January 24th and 25th.  


Arlene Fisher, City Administrator of Cheney, WA, was selected on January 


27th.   


 


 


Village Manager, Pinecrest, FL (population 19,400) 


 Contact: Mayor Cindy Lerner at (305) 234-2121,  


   clerner@pinecrest-fl.gov 


   Village of Pinecrest 


   12645 Pinecrest Parkway 


   Pinecrest, FL 33156 


   Fax:  (305) 234-2131  


    


In late April 2011, CB&A was hired to assist Pinecrest in finding its next 


Village Manager.  We worked with a Citizen’s Advisory Committee and 


sought out candidates from around the nation while, due to the Council’s 


desire, focusing on candidates from Florida.  The process included a public 


reception which was extremely well receive by the elected officials and the 


public.  Interviews were held on July 17th and 18th with Ms. Yocelyn Galiano 


Gomez being selected as the Village Manager on the 18th.  Ms. Gomez was 


an internal candidate and the Assistant Village Manager.  


 


 


City Manager and Finance Director Sunnyside, WA (population 16,000) 


Contact:   Mayor James Restucci at (509) 643-4343, or 


   jrestucci@sunnyside-wa.gov 


 


CB&A was hired in mid-April 2013 to find Sunnyside’s next City Manager and Finance 


Director.  John Darrington, CB & A’s Senior Vice President assumed the Interim City Manager 


role in order to assist the City, stabilize the situation, and coordinate the recruitment.  The process 


was challenging, but through extensive outreach efforts, CB & A fielded an excellent group of 


high quality candidates for both positions, performed background checks, coordinated the 


interview process, and assisted the City in selecting Donald Day, former county manager of Colfax 


County, NM and David Layden, former Finance Director of University Place, WA.  By all reports, 


the City is exceptionally pleased with both placements. 



mailto:clerner@pinecrest-fl.gov





IV. References (continued) 


 


  -25-  


 


 
 


City Manager, Tacoma, WA (population 198,400) in 2011 


 Contact:   Mayor Marilyn Strickland at (253) 591-5100 or  


   Marilyn.Strickland@cityoftacoma.org 


 Human Resources Analyst Margith Baker at 


 (253) 573-2321 or  MBaker@ci.tacoma.wa.us  


      


CB&A was hired in late September 2011 to find Tacoma’s next City Manager.  


As part of the  recruitment process, we met with each of the nine council 


members to learn their concerns, priorities and desires.  We searched the nation 


and developed a pool of 67 candidates, many of which were extremely capable.  


The semi- finalist pool was also diverse containing both women and minorities.  


Interviews were held in early December and Mr. T.C. Broadnax, formerly an 


Assistant City Manager with San Antonio, TX, was selected. 


 


 


 


City Manager, Winchester, VA  (population 16,000)  
Contact:   Council Chair John Willingham at (540) 931-4655, or 


 John.Willingham@WinchesterVA.gov 


 


 


CB&A was hired in mid-March 2014 to find Winchester’s next City 


Manager.  The City was seeking someone with energy and enthusiasm to 


move the City forward.  We accepted the challenge and searched the nation 


for just the right person.  Our efforts included extensive outreach and we an 


excellent group of high quality candidates.  We then performed background 


checks, coordinated the interview process, and assisted the Town in selecting 


Eden Freeman, formerly Assistant City Manager for Sandy Springs, GA, in 


early June. 


 


 



mailto:Marilyn.Strickland@cityoftacoma.org

mailto:MBaker@ci.tacoma.wa.us





IV. References (continued) 


 


  -26-  


 


 


 


Candidate References 


 


While it is important to deliver what the City or County expects, it is also important to keep 


candidates informed and to treat them with respect and dignity.  Accordingly, we have provided 


references from three of those candidates.   


 


Placement Formerly Recruited To Be Contact at 


 


Kristen Denne 


 


City Manager 


Johnstown, PA 


 


 


Township Manager 


Springettsbury Township, 


PA 


   Appointed August 2014 


 


(717) 757-3521 


kristen.denne@ 


     springettsbury.com 


 


Eden Freeman 


 


 


Assistant City  


    Manager 


Sandy Springs, GA 


 


City Manager 


Winchester, VA 


   Appointed June, 2014 


 


(540) 667-1815 


citymanager@ 


     winchesterva.gov 


 


Bryan Hill  


 


Deputy County    


   Administrator 


Beaufort County, 


SC 


 


County Administrator 


James City County, VA 


    Appointed July 2014 


 


(757) 253-6604 


bryan.hill@ 


     jamescitycountyva.gov  


 


    







 


  -27-  


 


More CB&A Clients… 


 
 


     
   


City of Greensboro, NC    Matanuska-Susitna Borough, AK 


 


  City Manager      Borough Manager 


         


 


 


 


          
 


Union County, NC     Loudoun County, VA   


    


County Manager     Director – Economic  Development 


         Human Resources Officer 


     


 


 







 


V. Fee and Warranty 


 


 


-28- 


 


 


Fee  
 


CB&A offers a firm, fixed fee of $23,200 to recruit the City Manager.  Please note these fees 


include all our expenses and costs.  In other words, the only thing the City will pay CB&A is the 


agreed upon fee.  The only other costs the City will be responsible for are the costs associated with 


the candidates’ (and spouses, if invited) travel, accommodations and meals for the interview 


process.  The advantage to the City is it knows exactly what it will pay.  The advantage to CB&A 


is that we do not have keep track of every minor expense.  Should the City choose to include our 


optional services, the additional charges are indicated below. 


 


We will bill the fee as the phases are completed and according to the following schedule: 


 


Tasks City Manager 


Phase I:  Needs Analysis / Information Gathering $  3,200 


Phase II:  Recruiting 9,000 


Phase III:  Screening  7,500 


Phase IV:  Interview Process Coordination and Selection      1,750 


Phase V:  Warranty / Negotiation / Continuing Assistance 1,750 


  


If the City asks us to perform work that is clearly beyond the scope of this proposal, it will be 


billed at a rate of $125 per hour. No such work will be performed without your written 


authorization. Please note, as previously stated, that we have neither billed nor requested additional 


funds beyond our originally quoted fee even when we have been entitled to it. 


 


Warranty 
 


Colin Baenziger & Associates offers the best warranty in the industry. We can offer it because we 


have confidence in our work. Provided the City instructs us with conducting a full search (Phases 


I-V) and assuming it selects from among the candidates we recommend, we warrant the following: 


 


1) We will not approach the selected candidate for any other position as long as the 


individual is employed by the City. 


2) If the selected individual leaves for any reason other than an Act of God (such as total 


incapacitation or death) within the first year, CB&A will repeat the search at no charge 


for our services.   If the individual leaves for any reason other than an Act of God in the 


second year, CB&A will repeat the search for our expenses only.    


3) If you are not satisfied with the candidates we present, CB&A will repeat the search until 


you are satisfied. 


4) Our price is guaranteed and will not be exceeded for any reason, even if conditions 


change after the contract is executed. 







Thank you for chatting with me today about our upcoming Administrator recruitment. When you
 have a moment, could you please send me a proposal and an estimated timeline? I understand that
 a lot of the timeline may be our discretion but it is a topic of interest with our Council.

I appreciate your help and encourage you to visit our website (link provided below) to learn more
 about our great community. 

Thank you,

Toni Yost | Finance Director

City of Prosser, Washington

+ 601 7th Street, Prosser, WA 99350
(    (509) 786-8215 | (509) 786-3717 ~ fax
tyost@ci.prosser.wa.us | www.cityofprosser.com

 Facebook    Twitter

53

mailto:tyost@ci.prosser.wa.us
http://www.cityofprosser.com/
http://www.facebook.com/pages/Prosser-WA/City-of-Prosser/82544496422
http://twitter.com/cityofprosserwa


PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE EXECUTIVE 

SEARCH SERVICES FOR A  

CITY MANAGER  

Volume I: Proposal 

Colin Baenziger & Associates 

Project Manager and Contact Person: 

John Darrington (509) 823-5138 

e-mail: John@cb-asso.com 

Fax: (888) 635-2430 

…Serving Our Clients with a Personal Touch…

54

mailto:John@cb-asso.com


PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT SERVICES

TO FIND SEQUIM’S NEXT  

CITY MANAGER

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

VOLUME I 

SECTION PAGE 

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 1 

I. SEARCH METHODOLOGY 4 

Search Methodology 

The City’s Obligations 

Proposed Schedule 

II. QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OF THE FIRM 13 

The Firm 

Technical Capabilities and Organizational Structure 

Completion of Projects within Budget 

Completion of Projects on Schedule 

Diversity 

Prior Names and Litigation 

Insurance 

Overall Executive Search Experience 

III. PROPOSED PROJECT STAFF 17 

Project Team and Involvement 

Resumes of Key Staff 

IV. REFERENCES 23 

V. FEE AND WARRANTY 28 

VOLUME II 

APPENDIX A: ALL GOVERNMENTAL SEARCH ASSIGNMENTS A-1 

APPENDIX B: SAMPLE RECRUITMENT BROCHURE B-1 

APPENDIX C: SAMPLE CANDIDATE REPORT C-1 

APPENDIX D: RESOLUTION OF SUNNYSIDE, WA D-1 

55



CENTERVILLE, MD DAYTONA BEACH SHORES, FL RHINELANDER, WI

RICHLAND, WA SALT LAKE CITY, UT 

January 27, 2015, 

The Honorable Mayor Candace Pratt, Deputy Mayor Dennis Smith and Council Members 

Erik Erichsen, Genaveve Starr, Ken Hays, Laura DuBois and Ted Miller 

ATTN: Office of Human Resources 

City of Sequim 

226 N. Sequim Avenue 

Sequim, WA   98382 

RE: Proposal to Provide Recruitment Services for 

City Manager 

Dear Mayor Pratt, Deputy Mayor Smith and Council Members Erichsen, Starr, Hays, DuBois 

and Miller: 

Colin Baenziger & Associates (CB&A) appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal to assist in 

finding your next City Manager. While selecting key personnel is never easy, CB&A has developed a 

problem-free process that has been tested nationwide and found to be extremely effective.  

CB&A is a national recruiting firm having conducted assignments from Florida to Washington and Maine 

to California.  We pride ourselves on providing not just high-quality results, but, equally important, 

providing a great deal of personal attention to each of our local government clients. To conduct a proper 

recruitment, we feel the project manager must do more than just drop by occasionally. He/she must get to 

know the appropriate government officials and the community firsthand. That effort takes time, but it is 

the only way to ensure the candidates we recommend are well qualified and a good fit for your community. 

As a result, we only take a few clients at a time and focus on getting the job done properly. Further, we 

routinely complete our work in sixty to ninety days. This timeframe includes preparation of recruitment 

and advertising materials, candidate outreach, candidate screening, finalist interviewing, and manager 

selection. We also offer the best warranty in the industry. 

Not only do we offer unparalleled service at a reasonable price, we focus on finding just the right people 

for your organization. We say people, and not person, because our goal is to bring you five finalists who 

are so good that you will have a difficult time choosing among them. The proof is in the fact that five of 

our local government clients have passed resolutions thanking us for our outstanding efforts in finding 

their key staff. We do not know how often you have passed a resolution thanking a consulting firm for its 

efforts, but we have rarely seen it happen. Our goal, in fact, would be for you to be our next client to pass 

such a resolution. 

56



-2- 

Some of our recent searches include the City Managers for Bellevue, Connell, Medina, Mountlake 

Terrace, Sunnyside, Tacoma and Yakima in Washington.  Some of our other searches include City 

Managers for Ankeny, IA, Destin, FL, Mount Pleasant, MI, Roanoke, VA, Titusville, FL, and 

Winchester, VA.  We also found the Borough Manager for Matanuska-Susitna Borough, Alaska 

(a county the size of West Virginia), County Managers for Clackamas County, OR; Clay County, 

FL; El Paso County, TX, James City County (the county seat is Williamsburg), VA; and Union 

County, NC.   

Our current searches include, among others, the City Managers for Mill Creek, WA and for Ocala, 

FL, as well as . County Administrator for York County, VA.  We are also seeking the Executive 

Director for the Performing Arts and Convention Center of Federal Way, WA and a City Engineer 

and Assistant City Engineer for Plant City, FL     

We look forward to hearing from you and hopefully working with you in the near future. If you 

have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (561) 707-3537.  

Sincerely, 

Colin Baenziger 

Principal / Owner 

…Serving Our Clients with a Personal Touch…

57



-3- 

Some of CB&A Clients… 

City of Ankeny, IA City of Bellevue, WA 

City Manager City Manager 

City of Fayetteville, NC City of Winchester, VA 

City Manager City Manager 

58



Section I:  Search Methodology 

-4- 

The following search methodology has been refined over the past sixteen years and now is virtually 

foolproof. We will integrate your ideas into the process. Our goal is to ensure you have the right 

people to interview as well as the information you need to make the right decision.   

Phase I: Information Gathering and Needs Assessment 

Task One: Needs Assessment 

An important part of the recruiter’s work is selling the community to the very best candidates 

(including those that are not actively looking for the next job) while also providing an accurate 

portrayal of the community and the opportunity. In order to do this, CB&A must first determine 

the needs of the client and the characteristics of the ideal candidate. Our approach is as follows:  

 Compile background information from the jurisdiction’s website and other sources.

 Interview the Mayor and Councilmembers, other key stakeholders (such as department

heads, members of community groups, representatives of business organization, residents

and so on).  Our goal is to develop a strong sense of your organization, its leadership, its

short and long term expectations, and its challenges;

 Determine the characteristics of the ideal candidate.  These will likely include experience,

longevity, education, personality, demeanor, and achievements as well as other items the

Councilmembers and stakeholders consider important),  and

 Determine a reasonable compensation package.

We will also finalize the timeline so candidates can mark their calendars well in advance and will 

be available when the Councilmembers wish to conduct the interviews. 

If the City wishes, we routinely incorporate meetings with other stakeholders (such as the business 

community, the non-profit community, City staff and so on) to gather their insights. These forums 

are valuable as they provide additional perspectives and a better understanding of the environment 

the Manager will be working in.  

Task Two: Develop Position Description and Recruitment Materials 

Based on the information we gather, CB&A will next develop a position description and 

comprehensive recruitment profile. We will provide our draft for your review and comment. Your 

suggestions will be incorporated, and the final documents prepared. A sample of our work is 

included as Appendix B. Other samples can be found on our firm’s website under the “Executive 

Recruitments” / “Active Recruitments” tabs. 

Phase II: Recruitment 

Task Three: Recruit Candidates 

CB&A uses a number of approaches to identify the right people for this position. We say people, 

and not person, because our goal is to bring you six to ten excellent semi-finalists, all of whom 

will do the job extraordinarily well and who are so good you will have a difficult time choosing

59



Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 

-5- 

among them. You then select the top three to five people to interview and ultimately choose the 

candidate who is the best fit with you and your community. The approaches we use are:  

 Networking: The best approach is diligent outreach. We will network with our colleagues

and consult our data base. As we identify outstanding candidates (many of whom are not

in the market), we will approach them and request that they apply. Often excellent

candidates are reluctant to respond to advertisements because doing so may alienate their

current employers. When we approach them, their credentials are enhanced rather than

diminished.  One of the tools we use is Linked-In.

 Advertising While we will seek out the best, we will not ignore the trade press as it often

also yields strong candidates. We intend to contact the members of organizations such as

the Association of Washington Cities, International City/ County Management

Association, Washington City/County Management Association and so on.  We will also

post it on our website, www.cb-asso.com. We generally do not use newspapers or generic

websites because while they produce large numbers of applications, they generally do not

produce the type of candidates our clients are seeking.

 Email: We will also e-mail the recruitment profile to our listserv of eleven thousand

managers and professionals who are interested in local government management. One of

the advantages of e-mail is that if the recipient is not interested, he/she can easily forward

the recruitment profile to someone else who may be interested.

Phase III: Screening and Finalist Selection 

Task Four: Evaluate the Candidates 

Based on our most recent recruiting efforts, we anticipate receiving resumes from sixty to one 

hundred applicants. We will narrow the field as described above and present information on 

candidates to the Mayor and City Councilmembers. This process requires a mixture of in-depth 

research and subjective evaluation. Our process is as follows.  

It should be noted that selecting strong candidates is more an art than a science. While we consider 

standard ranking factors and the elements of the job, ultimately the most important factor is who 

we believe will be a good fit with the City and the community. Typically forty percent of our 

finalists are women and/or minorities.   

Specifically, our efforts will involve:  

Step One. Resume Review. CB&A will evaluate all resumes and identify the ten to fifteen 

outstanding candidates. Some of these may be in-house candidates or individuals who have 

held high-level positions in other governments but who have never been the Manager.  

Often these people simply need the opportunity. Using a football analogy, Vince Lombardi 

was an assistant coach with the New York Giants prior to being hired by the Green Bay 

Packers. Hence, we do not believe we should only consider those who have already held 

the position we are recruiting for. 

60

http://www.cb-asso.com/


Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 

-6- 

Step Two. Screening Interview. Our lead recruiter, and possibly other senior 

representatives of the firm, will interview each of these candidates. Using what we learned 

in Phase I and our experience as managers and recruiters, as well as our unique ability to 

assess candidates, we will determine whether or not to consider them further.  

Step Three.  Candidate Materials and Background Investigations. For those that 

remain in consideration, CB&A will: 

 Ask the Candidates to Prepare a Written Introduction:  We will ask the

candidates to prepare a written introduction to themselves as part of their

preliminary background checks.  This is done for several reasons.  First, it allows

the candidates to tell their own story and balance the negativity that is so often

characteristic of the press.  It also allows the City to evaluate the candidates written

and communications skills.

 Candidate Disclosure Statement:  We will ask candidates if there is anything

controversial in their background that we should be made aware of prior to further

consideration.  While it is unlikely that we find anything not previously publicized

in the press, we believe redundant checks offer superior security for our client.

 Interviews of References: We tell the candidate with whom we wish to speak.

These include current and former Councilmembers, the municipal attorney, the

external auditor, staff members, peers, news media representatives, the director of

the local chamber of commerce, community activists, and others who know the

candidate. We also attempt to contact some individuals who are not on the

candidate’s list. Typically we reach eight to ten people and prepare a written

summary of each conversation.

 Legal Checks: Through our third party vendor, American DataBank, we will

conduct the following checks: criminal records at the county, state and national

level; civil records for any litigation at the county and federal level; and bankruptcy

and credit.

 Search the Internet and Newspaper Archives: Virtually every local newspaper

has an archive that provides stories about perspective candidates, the issues they

have dealt with, how they resolved them and the results. These articles can also

provide valuable insights into the candidate’s relationship with the public and the

Councilmembers. Of course, not all news sources are unbiased and we consider

that in our evaluation.  This step is conducted in order to quickly discover

candidates with problems in their backgrounds and eliminate them.

61



Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 

-7- 

 Verification of Education: We also verify claimed educational degrees to assure

the candidate is being totally forthright.

 Verification of Work History: We verify employment for the past fifteen years.

Note:  We firmly believe that all background work we have outlined above should 

be completed early in the process.  That way the client knows the individuals to be 

interviewed are all top performers and do not have anything embarrassing in their 

pasts that might come to light after selection.  It also means that once our client has 

made a selection, it can move forward promptly, negotiate a contract and make an 

announcement. 

Task Five:  Preparation and Presentation of Candidate Materials 

For the selected candidates, CB&A will compile the information we have developed into a 

complete written report for each recommended candidate. Specifically, this information will 

include:  the candidates’ resumes, introductions, references, background checks and internet / 

newspaper archive search results.  A complete sample candidate report is included as Appendix 

C.  We will also provide advice on interviewing, a series of questions the elected officials may 

wish to ask (as well as some areas that it is not wise to get into), and some logistical information. 

The preceding information will be forwarded to you electronically.  

The goal in conducting these checks is to develop a clear picture of the candidates and to determine 

which best meet the criteria established in Phase I. Each of the avenues we pursue adds a piece of 

the puzzle. We will crosscheck sources, search for discrepancies, and resolve them when we find 

them. When sensitive or potentially embarrassing items are discovered, they are thoroughly 

researched. If we conclude the situation is damaging or even questionable that cannot be 

adequately explained, the candidate will be dropped from further consideration. 

Task Six:  Finalist Selection 

Approximately a week after the City has received the candidate materials, CB&A will meet with 

the Councilmembers to discuss our findings and make a final determination concerning who will 

be invited to interview.  The goal is to select four to six candidates to interview.  

We will then notify the selected finalists of their status and schedule the interviews with the Mayor 

and City Councilmembers. 

Task Seven: Notify All Candidates of Their Status 

We will notify the selected candidates by telephone and give them the opportunity to ask additional 

questions. CB&A will also contact those not selected to advise them of their status. Part of the 

notification will include advice concerning the candidates’ resume and/or cover letter so, even 

though they were not selected to go forward, they will have gained something valuable from 

participating in the process. 

62



Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 

-8- 

Phase IV: Coordinate the Interview Process and City Manager Selection 

Task Eight: Coordinate the Candidate Assessment Process 

Prior to the interviews, we will recommend an interview/assessment process for the City’s review 

including means to evaluate the candidates’ communication skills, interpersonal skills, and 

decision-making skills. As part of the process, we will recommend the Councilmembers observe 

the finalists in a number of settings. We will also recommend you invite the finalists’ spouses so 

they can spend time in and evaluate your community. 

Day #1: The finalists are given a tour of the community and its facilities by a 

knowledgeable staff member. Later, senior staff members meet briefly with the candidates. 

This opportunity allows the finalists to ask questions and the senior staff to assess the 

candidates. 

Later, that evening, the Mayor and City Councilmembers host a reception for the 

candidates. The purpose is to observe how the finalists respond to a social situation. Your 

next City Manager will, after all, represent your local government in numerous venues. It 

is thus important to know how the individual will respond in a social setting. The reception 

also serves as an ice-breaker whereby the Councilmembers and the candidates get to know 

one another informally.  

Day #2: Beginning at approximately 8:30 a.m., each candidate interviews individually with 

each elected official for approximately 40 minutes. These meetings provide the 

Councilmembers with an opportunity to assess how the candidates might interact with them 

on an individual basis. It is very important to know if good chemistry exists. Ultimately, 

Administrators succeed and fail based on their interaction with the Councilmembers and 

the one-on-one interviews are an excellent way to test that interaction. 

After lunch, the Mayor and City Councilmembers as a group will interview each candidate 

so that they can assess the candidates in a formal meeting. Part of the interviews may 

include a PowerPoint presentation so the Councilmembers can observe the candidates’ 

presentational skills.  

Task Nine: Debriefing and Selection 

Once the interviews have concluded, CB&A suggests the Council adjourn and hold a meeting a 

day or two later to select the next City Manager. Although the selection can be made the same day 

as the interviews, this decision is quite important and we recommend you take some time to 

consider what you have seen and heard.  

In terms of the final selection, we have developed a simple methodology that moves the elected 

body quickly and rationally to the desired outcome. Once the selection has been made, CB&A will 

notify the finalists of their status. Candidates are eager to know and we feel it is important to keep 

them informed. 

63



Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 

-9- 

Phase V: Negotiation and Continuing Assistance 

Task Ten: Notification, Contract Negotiations and Warranty 

Should the Councilmembers wish, we will assist in the employment agreement negotiations. 

Generally, a member of the elected body and the attorney conduct the actual negotiations while 

we provide advice and assistance concerning the compensation package and contract. We can also 

take the lead role in the negotiations if desired. We have a standard contract you are welcome to 

use. Your attorney, of course, will prepare the final contract. Since the basic parameters will have 

been discussed with the candidates and the candidates have been thoroughly vetted, we expect a 

relatively prompt agreement.  

Task Eleven: Continuing Assistance 

Our work is not done when the contract is executed. We will stay in touch with you and your new 

City Manager. Our goal is to be there to assist in resolving any issues that arise before they become 

intractable. In fact, at your request, we will conduct a team-building workshop, at no charge, to 

resolve any difficulties. We simply feel it is part of our job to assure a successful relationship.  

Communications: We will provide weekly reports about the status of the search, in writing or by 

phone, depending upon your preference. At significant milestones we will make the reports in 

person. We are also available at any time, day or night, to address any questions you have along 

the way. To do so, we will provide you with our cellphone numbers and you should feel 

comfortable contacting us whenever you have a question whether it is directly related to the search 

or, for that matter, anything else related to local government. We want to be responsive and to 

assist in any way we can.  

64



Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 

-10- 

The City’s Obligations 

The City will be responsible for providing the facilities for the interview process, coordinating 

lodging for candidates from outside the area, and making arrangements for the reception. The City 

will also be responsible for reimbursing the candidates for all expenses associated with their travel, 

meals, and incidentals for the interview weekend. 

The City should also plan to provide the following information, if it is not available on the City’s 

website, to each of the finalists: the current year budget, an organizational chart, the latest 

completed audit and management letter, any current strategic and long range plans, a copy of the 

City Charter, any job descriptions and other materials defining the role and duties of the City 

Manager, and any evaluations of the organization completed in the last year.  

These are the only obligations and responsibilities the City is expected to assume in the recruitment 

process. 

65



Section I:  Search Methodology (continued) 

-11- 

Possible Project Schedule 

The following is the schedule we would suggest and assumes CB&A is selected to perform the 

search by February 9th.  We realize the schedule may need to be adjusted to accommodate the 

Mayor’s and Councilmembers’ availability.  We can also shorten the schedule considerably if the 

City wishes to move more quickly. 

Phase I: Needs Assessment / Information Gathering 

February 17th: CB&A begins working with the Mayor, City Councilmembers and other 

stakeholders to understand the job and its challenges 

February 24th: CB&A submits the draft of the full recruitment profile to the City for its 

review. Comments will be due back by February 27th. 

Phase II: Recruiting 

March 4th: CB&A posts the full recruitment profile on its website and submits it to the 

appropriate publications. It is also e-mailed to over 11,000 local government 

managers and professionals. 

March 27th: Closing date for submission of applications. 

April 2nd: CB&A reports the results of the recruitment to the Mayor and 

Councilmembers. 

Phase III: Screening, Reference Checks and Credential Verification 

April 24th: CB&A forwards complete semi-finalist material electronically to the  City. 

April 29th: City selects finalists. 

Phase IV: Interview Process Coordination and City Selection 

May 8th: City holds reception for the finalists. 

May 9th: One-on-one and full Council Interviews. 

May 11th: City selects its next City Manager. 

Phase V: Negotiation, Warranty & Continuing Assistance 

Post-Selection: CB&A works with City representatives and the selected candidate on an 

employment agreement.  

66



-12- 

More CB&A Clients…

     City of Roanoke, VA Oregon City, OR 

City Manager 

City Attorney  Finance Director 

Economic Development Director 

Finance Director 

Human Resources Director 

Planning, Building and  

      Development Director 

     James City County, VA City of Scottsdale, AZ 

County Administrator City Manager 

67



II. Qualifications and Experience of the Firm

-13- 

The Firm, Its Philosophy, & Its Experience 

Colin Baenziger & Associates (CB&A) is a nationally recognized executive recruiting firm 

established in 1997 and owned and operated by Colin Baenziger. We are a sole proprietorship 

headquartered in Volusia County, FL with offices in Centerville, MD; Rhinelander, WI; Richland, 

WA and Salt Lake City, UT.  As a sole proprietorship, we are not registered with any states as a 

corporation, foreign or otherwise. Although our primary focus is executive search, we are often 

involved in operational reviews of governmental operations. Our consultants live in other areas of 

the country and converge wherever the client’s needs exist. We develop an operational plan prior 

to arrival and our team of experts quickly studies the issues, identifies problems and opportunities, 

performs the necessary analysis, develops solutions, prepares reports and action plans, and 

completes the assignment. The client receives prompt, professional service, and its needs are 

effectively addressed. We are available for follow-up work, however, our goal is to provide the 

client with solutions that its existing staff can implement without additional outside assistance.  

Colin Baenziger & Associates’ outstanding reputation is derived from our commitment to 

timeliness and quality. Our work is not done until you are satisfied. That means we go the extra 

mile and, at times, expend more effort and energy than originally anticipated in our fee or in our 

action plan. We do not ask the client for additional fees. Rather, we accept these situations as part 

of our cost of doing business. We believe that once a contract is signed we have an obligation to 

fulfill its requirements excellently and within the budgeted amount.  

Since beginning our search practice in 1998, we have conducted searches and other related work 

for clients in nineteen states. Overall our staff has performed over 150 City, County, and Special 

District Manager searches and approximately 200 local government searches. The basic approach 

we have presented herein is the approach we have used in each of our searches. It has been refined 

over the years to the point where it is problem-free. 

Technical Capabilities and Organizational Structure 

Colin Baenziger & Associates has developed its business model over the past 15 years. The model 

has proven to be extremely effective in every state where we have applied it and for every type of 

position for which we have searched. In fact, we are often called when a government has a particularly 

difficult position to fill or where one of our competitors has failed. Overall, we utilize approximately 

eighteen people. Most staff members are independent contractors and are given assignments on a task 

order basis. Consequently we can pay well while having a great deal of flexibility without the 

overhead of many firms. In addition to Mr. Baenziger, other senior staff members are former City 

and/or County Managers or elected officials. As a result, we understand multiple perspectives and 

have been very successful in identifying the right candidates for our clients. CB&A’s other staff are 

all competent researchers and writers and most have been with us for a long time.  

68



II. Qualifications and Experience of the Firm (continued)

-14- 

Completion of Projects within Budget 

Colin Baenziger & Associates is proud of its record of completing searches within budget. When we 

quote a price to the client, that price is what the client will pay, no matter how difficult the search is 

or what unforeseen circumstances may develop. We have never asked a search client for additional 

fees, even when we were entitled to do so. 

Completion of Projects on Schedule 

Colin Baenziger & Associates routinely completes its assignments in sixty to ninety days. Further, 

since CB&A began performing recruitments, it has never missed a project milestone.  

Diversity 

CB&A has extensive contacts with individuals and organizations representing women and minorities. 

We are thus able to identify and bring a diverse group of finalists to the City.  The proof is that from 

the beginning of 2009 through the end of 2011, forty-three percent of the individuals whom we placed 

as City and County Managers were minorities and/or women.  So far in 2014 our placement 

percentage of women and minorities is also 43%. 

Colin Baenziger TaeLynn Johnson 

Owner & Principal Senior Editor 

Rick Conner David Collier John Darrington  

Vice President Senior Vice President Senior Vice President 

Kathyrn Knutson Jim Payne Merv Timberlake 

VP / Operations Vice President VP / Financial Recruiting 

Internet Specialists (2) 
Senior Research Associates 

(8) 

Administrative Assistants 

(2) 

69



II. Qualifications and Experience of the Firm (continued)

-15- 

Prior Names and Litigation 

Colin Baenziger & Associates has always operated under its current name and has never been 

involved in any litigation, except to testify as an expert witness on behalf of one of the parties. Our 

performance has never been questioned nor have we or any of our clients been involved in any 

legal action as a result of our work.  

Insurance 

To protect our clients, Colin Baenziger & Associates maintains the following insurance coverages: 

(1) general liability insurance of $1 million combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury, 

personal injury, and property damages, (2) automobile liability insurance of $1 million per accident, 

and (3) professional liability insurance of $1 million per occurrence. As a small firm, predominantly 

utilizing independent contractors, we are not typically subject to the requirements for workers 

compensation and employer liability insurance. If required by the client, and if it is available to us, 

we will obtain these two coverages prior to contract execution. 

Overall Executive Search Experience 

CB&A started its executive search business in 1998 from scratch.  As a single father, he needed to 

stay nearby and so his goal was to become Florida’s preeminent recruiter.  In 2007 with his children 

mature, he branched out into other states.   His firm has now worked in 23 states, from Maine to 

California and Florida to Alaska.  See the map below. 

A complete list of our searches is contained in Appendix A. 

70



-16- 

More CB&A Clients…

City of Corpus Christi, TX Bay County, FL 

Assistant City Manager County Manager 

City of Doraville, GA City of Durham, NC 

City Manager Deputy City Manager – 

   Community Building 

Director - Economic and 

Workforce Development 

71



III. Proposed Project Staff

-17- 

Project Team and Involvement 

Colin Baenziger & Associates is an experienced recruiting firm which strongly believes that the 

majority of the search work should be conducted by one knowledgeable person. Colin Baenziger 

will be that person—he will serve as your project manager. He will conduct the interviews with 

the elected officials, search for strong candidates, discuss the position with those candidates, 

recruit them, conduct the interviews with the candidates, conduct the background investigations, 

oversee the interview process, and assist with the contract negotiations. In addition to fifteen years 

as a consultant, Mr. Baenziger spent ten years in government as a senior manager. Overall, he has 

been the firm’s Project Manager for more than one hundred and twenty five city and county 

manager searches.  Prior to starting CB&A, he spent over 20 years hiring key staff. 

John Darrington, Senior Vice President, will serve as deputy project manager. Mr. Darrington will 

assist in every aspect of the search effort but will focus on the search for strong candidates and 

candidate evaluation.  Before joining the firm, Mr. Darrington spent over 30 years managing 

communities in Idaho, Washington and Wyoming.  He holds a Masters of Public Administration 

and a B.A. from Brigham Young University.   

Rick Conner, vice president, will serve as the recruitment manager and assist with the 

identification and screening of candidates.  He has over 30 years of in local government and in 

executive recruiting.  He earned Bachelors of Science Degrees in Business Administration and 

Engineering from the University of Missouri.  

Kathyrn Knutson, Vice President for Operations, will be responsible for coordinating the 

advertising and production of the materials we will present to you as described in the Recruitment 

Approach. 

Colin Baenziger John Darrington 

Project Manager Deputy Project Manager 

Rick Conner Kathyrn Knutson 

Recruitment Manager Operations Manager 

Research Associates 

72



III. Proposed Project Staff (continued)

-18- 

Colin Baenziger, M.P.A. 

Principal 

Colin Baenziger is a student of local government and responsible for 

the executive recruitment functions at Colin Baenziger & 

Associates. Over the years, he has worked with a number of cities 

on recruitments and on management, operational, and organizational 

issues. As a former manager and someone who actively consults 

with governments, he understands what it takes to do the manager’s 

job effectively. Furthermore, because he is active in a number of 

professional associations, he knows many of the nation’s managers 

on a first-name basis.  

Some of Mr. Baenziger’s searches for local governments include: 

 City Manager, Bellevue, WA (population 144,000)

 City Manager, Cottonwood Heights, UT (population 34,000)

 City Manager, Fife, WA (population 8,200)

 City Manager, Fayetteville, NC (population 208,000)

 Village Manager, Key Biscayne, FL (population 11,000)

 Economic Development Director, Loudoun County, VA (population 326,000)

 City Manager, Mountlake Terrace, WA (20,700)

 Borough Manager, Matanuska-Susitna Borough, Alaska (population 88,000)

 City Manager, Mount Dora, FL (population 12,000)

 County Manager, Clackamas County, OR (population 380,000)

 City Manager, Palm Coast, FL (population 51,000)

 City Manager, Portland, ME (population 65,000)

 City Manager, Roanoke, VA (population 96,000)

 City Manager, Tacoma, WA (population 200,000)

 General Manager, Tampa Bay Water Authority (serving a population of 2.4 million)

 County Manager, Union County, NC (population 290,000)

Other recent efforts include a strategic planning session for the Florida Association of Special 

Districts, an operational review of Tamarac’s water utility, a business practices review for a 

division of Martin County government, an operational reconciliation for Palm Beach County 

Water, development of an automated system to pay royalties to featured recording artists for the 

Recording Industry Association of America, and a review of financial procedures for a division of 

the Marriott Corporation. 

Mr. Baenziger has a master’s degree with distinction in public administration from Cornell 

University’s Graduate School of Management, and a Bachelor of Arts degree from Carleton 

College. He is also active in the International City Management Association and the Florida City 

and County Management Association. He has also been called upon frequently to speak at 

conferences of the Utah and Florida City/County Managers’ Associations, and the Florida Public 

Personnel Association. 

73



III. Proposed Project Staff (continued)

-19- 

John C. Darrington, M.P.A. 

 Senior Vice President 

Having served over 30 years as a local government manager in 

Washington, Idaho and Wyoming, John Darrington is no stranger to the 

issues cities and counties face.  Add that experience to his incisive 

intellect and the client has someone who quickly understands its issues, 

will separate the important from the unimportant and get to the optimal 

solution in short order.  Best of all, the solutions John suggests are 

elegantly simple and can be implemented without further assistance from 

the firm.   

Among his many areas of expertise are leadership, management, 

economic development and executive search.  Over the years, he has 

directed and/or participated in the recruitment of many high level 

positions in local government.  Some of these include: 

 City Manager, Connell, WA,

 City Manager, Medina, WA,

 City Manager, Sunnyside, WA,

 City Manager, Tacoma, WA,

 City Manager, Yakima, WA,

 Executive Director, South Sound 911 (Pierce County, Washington)

 Economic Development Manager, Richland, WA

 Utilities Director, Gillette, WY

 Police Chief, Richland, WA

 Public Works Director, Richland, WA

While serving as City Manager of Richland, WA, he oversaw the revitalization of the Central 

Business District including a major dock and plaza area on the Columbia River, recruited Ferguson 

Enterprises (the nation’s largest supplier of plastic pipe and other construction products) to create 

over 600,000 square feet of commercial space, and formed a Public Facilities District to secure 

over $40 million in funding for the Hanford Reach National Monument Heritage. He also oversaw 

an electric utility, improved the morale and professionalism within the city government  

Prior serving in Richland, John was a City Administrator in Soda Springs, ID, the City Manager 

in Rawlins, WY, and Gillette, WY.  He also has extensive experience in local government 

consulting particularly in goal setting and strategic planning. 

Mr. Darrington earned his Bachelor of Arts degree in History and Political Science and his 

Master’s Degree in Public Administration from Brigham Young University.  He has been a 

member of the International City/ County Management for over thirty five years, served as the 

Chair and Board Member of the ICMA Retirement Corporation Trust (seven years) and Chair and 

Board Member of the Wyoming Environmental Quality Council (eight years).  He was also 

selected as the “Boss of the Year” in 1995 by the Professional Secretaries International.  

74



III. Proposed Project Staff (continued)

-20- 

Rick Conner, P.E. 

Vice President 

Rick Conner is a recent addition to CB&A’s strong cadre of 

municipal operations experts.  With over 30 years of management 

experience in local government, he has seen it all and done most of 

it.  He possesses keen analytical skills and the ability to slice through 

critical issues.  As a result, he is another outstanding weapon in the 

firm’s arsenal of experts.  His years in local government and his 

many licenses and certifications help him to judge talent quickly and 

effectively. 

In addition to his experience as a City Manager, Rick’s previous 

positions such as a Public Works Director, gives him an excellent 

perspective of the needs of local government operations and staffing. 

Prior to joining Colin Baenziger & Associates in 2012, some of the 

top leadership positions that Rick has held include: 

 City Manager of Sunny Isles Beach, Florida,

 City Manager of Portland, Texas,

 City Manager of Marble Falls, Texas,

 Public Works Director of Nashville/Davidson County, Tennessee, and

 Public Works Director of Bryan, Texas

While serving in these positions, Rick received national recognition for his Customer Service 

programs.   Over his career, Mr. Conner has been involved in a variety of recruitments.  Some of 

these include: 

 City Manager, Fayetteville, NC,

 City Manager, Sarasota, FL,

 City Manager, Cocoa Beach, FL

 Chief Executive Officer/General Manager, Des Moines (IA) Water Works,

 Finance Director/Procurement Officer for a bedroom community to Corpus Christie, TX,

 Accounting Director for a medium size West Texas city

 Police Chief for a Florida barrier island community,

 Water and Wastewater Director for a medium size, central Texas city,

 Airport Fixed Base Operator for a Texas university community, and

 Airport Manager for a medium size Texas university city.

Rick holds a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration and a Bachelor of Science in Civil 

Engineering from University of Missouri.  He also worked towards Masters Degrees in both Math 

and Civil Engineering before joining the work force.   He is a Registered Land Surveyor and a 

Professional Engineer in Missouri, as well as a Professional Engineer in Florida, Tennessee and 

Texas. 

75



III. Proposed Project Staff (continued)

-21- 

Kathyrn Knutson 

Vice President for Operations 

Ms. Knutson is a skilled professional with a wealth of public and 

private sector experience. Her particular expertise is in special 

projects, compensation surveys, and background checks for our 

executive search candidates. She feels that each client must be 

properly served, and that can only be done by devoting her utmost 

attention to their particular concerns and by finding creative ways to 

solve their problems. In her book, the client comes first. 

Since beginning her working relationship as a subcontractor with 

Colin Baenziger & Associates, Ms. Knutson has been involved in 

virtually every executive search the firm has conducted. Some of the 

more notable searches include:  

 Public Works Director,  Chandler, AZ (population 250,000)

 City Manager, Town of Bay Harbor Islands (population 5,200)

 City Manager, Coral Gables, FL (population 42,000)

 City Manager, Cottonwood Heights, UT (population 34,000)

 City Manager, Cutler Bay, FL (population 35,000)

 City Manager, Fife, WA (population 8,200)

 City Manager, Greensboro, NC (population 259,000)

 City Manager, Homestead, FL (population 59,800)

 Village Manager, Key Biscayne, FL (population 11,000)

 City Manager, City of Marathon, FL (population 11,500)

 Village Manager, Village of Palmetto Bay, FL (population 24,000)

 City Manager, Portland, ME (65,000)

 City Manager, Roanoke, VA (population 96,000)

 City Manager, City of West Melbourne, FL (population 15,000)

As noted, a major part of Ms. Knutson’s work has been on special projects. For example, she is 

responsible for the firm’s annual City Manager compensation survey and also has worked with 

Palm Beach County Water Utilities reviewing a portion of its billing database. The utility’s 

concern was possible under-billing, and our work involved a review of billing records for 

reasonableness and consistency, as well as extensive work in the field. Thanks to Ms. Knutson’s 

work, the Utility recovered our fee several times over.  

Ms. Knutson’s prior employment includes stints with Palm Beach County’s Department of 

Building, Planning, and Zoning, and with the County Health and Rehabilitative Services. She has 

also worked with the State of Florida’s Department of Corrections and with the State’s Department 

of Employment Services. She has also been involved with a number of private and non-profit 

concerns, such as the Visiting Nurses Association and Oakwood Mental Health Center of the Palm 

Beaches. Ms. Knutson has an associate’s degree in business education from West Georgia College 

in Carrollton, Georgia. Kathyrn currently resides in Oneida County, WI. 

76



-22- 

More CB&A Clients… 

Emmet County, MI City of Titusville, FL 

County Administrator City Manager 

City of Sunnyside, WA City of Mount Pleasant, MI 

City Manager City Manager 

77



IV. References

-23- 

City Manager, Bellevue, WA (population 126,400) 

    Contact:   Deputy Mayor Kevin Wallace at (425) 452-7810, or 

Assistant City Manager Myrna Basich at 

  (425) 452-2733 or mbasich@bellevuewa.gov 

Bellevue is located just east of Seattle and is one of the nation’s premier cities.  

It is home several major corporations and offers a very high quality of life.  

CB&A began its work in August 2013.  It included extensive input from the 

elected officials, the public and Bellevue staff.  Our work included recruiting 

and advertising for candidates, conducting background checks, selecting the 

most qualified, recommending them for interviews, coordinating the 

interview process, and assisting in the contract negotiations.  Interviews we 

originally scheduled to take place in December but three of our five finalists 

dropped at the last minute and we felt we needed to redo the search.  We 

started again after the first of the year.  The Council Members were very 

pleased with the results and the caliber of the second group of finalists.  They 

selected Bellevue Deputy City Manager Brad Miyake in early April.  

City Manager, Medina, WA (population 3,100) 
Contact:  Mayor Michael Luis at mluis@medina-wa.org 

CB&A was hired in August 2013 to find the Medina’s next City 

Manager.   Our work included extensive interviews with the City Council, 

preparation of a recruitment profile, searching the nation to find the right 

person for the job, interviewing the candidates, conducting through 

background checks, and recommending finalists for the City to interview.  We 

also oversaw the interview and selection processes.  After careful deliberation, 

the City selected Michael Sauerwein, Deputy City Manager for Sammamish, 

WA in November 2013.   

City Manager, Miramar, FL (population 122,000) 

Contact:  Commissioner Yvette Colbourne at 

(954) 560-5161, or ycolbourne@ci.miramar.fl.us 

City Hall at Town Center 

2300 Civic Center Place 

Miramar Florida 33025  

Fax:  (954) 602-3553 

CB&A began the search for Miramar’s next City Manager on May 13, 2013.  

We conducted a nationwide search with an emphasis on Southeast Florida.  

Our work included extensive screening and background checks as well as 

coordinating the interview process and negotiating the compensation package 

with the selected candidate.  The City selected Ms. Kathleen Woods-

Richardson, formerly Director of Public Works and Waste Management for

78

mailto:mluis@medina-wa.org
mailto:ycolbourne@ci.miramar.fl.us


IV. References (continued)

-24- 

Miami-Dade County, on August 21, 2013.  She began working for the City on 

September 9, 2013. 

City Manager, Mountlake Terrace, WA (population 20,200) 

Contact:  Mayor Scott Hugel at (425) 583-8761 or 

SHugill@ci.mlt.wa.us 

Mountlake Terrace retained CB&A in mid-October, 2013. to help find its next 

City Manager.  We met with the Council Members and with staff.  Based on 

what we learned, we crafted a recruitment profile and began to search the 

country for outstanding candidates.  Background checks were thorough and 

four finalists were selected.  Interviews were held on January 24th and 25th.  

Arlene Fisher, City Administrator of Cheney, WA, was selected on January 

27th.   

Village Manager, Pinecrest, FL (population 19,400) 

Contact: Mayor Cindy Lerner at (305) 234-2121, 

clerner@pinecrest-fl.gov 

Village of Pinecrest 

12645 Pinecrest Parkway 

Pinecrest, FL 33156 

Fax:  (305) 234-2131  

In late April 2011, CB&A was hired to assist Pinecrest in finding its next 

Village Manager.  We worked with a Citizen’s Advisory Committee and 

sought out candidates from around the nation while, due to the Council’s 

desire, focusing on candidates from Florida.  The process included a public 

reception which was extremely well receive by the elected officials and the 

public.  Interviews were held on July 17th and 18th with Ms. Yocelyn Galiano 

Gomez being selected as the Village Manager on the 18th.  Ms. Gomez was 

an internal candidate and the Assistant Village Manager.  

City Manager and Finance Director Sunnyside, WA (population 16,000) 

Contact:   Mayor James Restucci at (509) 643-4343, or 

jrestucci@sunnyside-wa.gov 

CB&A was hired in mid-April 2013 to find Sunnyside’s next City Manager and Finance 

Director.  John Darrington, CB & A’s Senior Vice President assumed the Interim City Manager 

role in order to assist the City, stabilize the situation, and coordinate the recruitment.  The process 

was challenging, but through extensive outreach efforts, CB & A fielded an excellent group of 

high quality candidates for both positions, performed background checks, coordinated the 

interview process, and assisted the City in selecting Donald Day, former county manager of Colfax 

County, NM and David Layden, former Finance Director of University Place, WA.  By all reports, 

the City is exceptionally pleased with both placements. 

79

mailto:clerner@pinecrest-fl.gov


IV. References (continued)

-25- 

City Manager, Tacoma, WA (population 198,400) in 2011 

Contact:  Mayor Marilyn Strickland at (253) 591-5100 or 

 Marilyn.Strickland@cityoftacoma.org 

 Human Resources Analyst Margith Baker at 

(253) 573-2321 or  MBaker@ci.tacoma.wa.us 

CB&A was hired in late September 2011 to find Tacoma’s next City Manager.  

As part of the  recruitment process, we met with each of the nine council 

members to learn their concerns, priorities and desires.  We searched the nation 

and developed a pool of 67 candidates, many of which were extremely capable.  

The semi- finalist pool was also diverse containing both women and minorities.  

Interviews were held in early December and Mr. T.C. Broadnax, formerly an 

Assistant City Manager with San Antonio, TX, was selected. 

City Manager, Winchester, VA  (population 16,000)  
Contact:   Council Chair John Willingham at (540) 931-4655, or 

John.Willingham@WinchesterVA.gov 

CB&A was hired in mid-March 2014 to find Winchester’s next City 

Manager.  The City was seeking someone with energy and enthusiasm to 

move the City forward.  We accepted the challenge and searched the nation 

for just the right person.  Our efforts included extensive outreach and we an 

excellent group of high quality candidates.  We then performed background 

checks, coordinated the interview process, and assisted the Town in selecting 

Eden Freeman, formerly Assistant City Manager for Sandy Springs, GA, in 

early June. 

80

mailto:Marilyn.Strickland@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:MBaker@ci.tacoma.wa.us


IV. References (continued)

-26- 

Candidate References 

While it is important to deliver what the City or County expects, it is also important to keep 

candidates informed and to treat them with respect and dignity.  Accordingly, we have provided 

references from three of those candidates.   

Placement Formerly Recruited To Be Contact at 

Kristen Denne City Manager 

Johnstown, PA 

Township Manager 

Springettsbury Township, 

PA 

   Appointed August 2014 

(717) 757-3521 

kristen.denne@ 

     springettsbury.com 

Eden Freeman Assistant City 

    Manager 

Sandy Springs, GA 

City Manager 

Winchester, VA 

   Appointed June, 2014 

(540) 667-1815 

citymanager@ 

     winchesterva.gov 

Bryan Hill Deputy County   

   Administrator 

Beaufort County, 

SC 

County Administrator 

James City County, VA 

    Appointed July 2014 

(757) 253-6604 

bryan.hill@ 

     jamescitycountyva.gov 

81



-27- 

More CB&A Clients…

City of Greensboro, NC Matanuska-Susitna Borough, AK 

City Manager Borough Manager 

Union County, NC Loudoun County, VA  

County Manager Director – Economic  Development 

Human Resources Officer 

82



V. Fee and Warranty

-28- 

Fee 

CB&A offers a firm, fixed fee of $23,200 to recruit the City Manager.  Please note these fees 

include all our expenses and costs.  In other words, the only thing the City will pay CB&A is the 

agreed upon fee.  The only other costs the City will be responsible for are the costs associated with 

the candidates’ (and spouses, if invited) travel, accommodations and meals for the interview 

process.  The advantage to the City is it knows exactly what it will pay.  The advantage to CB&A 

is that we do not have keep track of every minor expense.  Should the City choose to include our 

optional services, the additional charges are indicated below. 

We will bill the fee as the phases are completed and according to the following schedule: 

Tasks City Manager 

Phase I:  Needs Analysis / Information Gathering $  3,200 

Phase II:  Recruiting 9,000 

Phase III:  Screening 7,500 

Phase IV:  Interview Process Coordination and Selection     1,750 

Phase V:  Warranty / Negotiation / Continuing Assistance 1,750 

If the City asks us to perform work that is clearly beyond the scope of this proposal, it will be 

billed at a rate of $125 per hour. No such work will be performed without your written 

authorization. Please note, as previously stated, that we have neither billed nor requested additional 

funds beyond our originally quoted fee even when we have been entitled to it. 

Warranty 

Colin Baenziger & Associates offers the best warranty in the industry. We can offer it because we 

have confidence in our work. Provided the City instructs us with conducting a full search (Phases 

I-V) and assuming it selects from among the candidates we recommend, we warrant the following: 

1) We will not approach the selected candidate for any other position as long as the

individual is employed by the City.

2) If the selected individual leaves for any reason other than an Act of God (such as total

incapacitation or death) within the first year, CB&A will repeat the search at no charge

for our services.   If the individual leaves for any reason other than an Act of God in the

second year, CB&A will repeat the search for our expenses only.

3) If you are not satisfied with the candidates we present, CB&A will repeat the search until

you are satisfied.

4) Our price is guaranteed and will not be exceeded for any reason, even if conditions

change after the contract is executed.

83



<image001.png>

From: Melissa Merritt
To: Rachel Shaw
Subject: Re: Prosser City Administrator Recruitment
Date: Saturday, August 22, 2015 2:52:42 PM

Hi Rachel,

We charge 33% of the starting salary for our executive search services. Our minimum fee is 
$30,000. It typically takes 12 weeks to get to final interview stage. 

Does this give you what you need?

With thanks,

Melissa

On Aug 21, 2015, at 4:25 PM, Rachel Shaw <RShaw@ci.prosser.wa.us> wrote:

Melissa Merritt
Vice President and Managing Director

Good afternoon Melissa,

The City of Prosser is interested in obtaining an unofficial quote for the City’s upcoming
 Administrator recruitment.  We would like to get an idea of costs associated with an 
Executive search as well as an estimated timeline.  Our City Council will be discussing 

this topic at their Sept 1st Work Session and I would like to be able to provide some 
information to them.

If you have any questions please feel free to contact me at your earliest convenience. 
Thank you in advance for your assistance.

Thank you,

Rachel Shaw, CMC
City Clerk/Public Records Officer
City of Prosser, Washington

+ 601 7th Street, Prosser, WA 99350
(    (509) 786-8218 | (509) 786-3717 ~ fax
rshaw@ci.prosser.wa.us  | www.cityofprosser.com

 <image002.png>  <image003.png>

84

ATTACHMENT 3

mailto:melissa@waldronhr.com
mailto:RShaw@ci.prosser.wa.us
mailto:RShaw@ci.prosser.wa.us
mailto:rshaw@ci.prosser.
http://wa.us/
http://www.cityofprosser.com/
http://www.facebook.com/pages/City-of-Prosser-Government/82544496422
https://twitter.com/cityofprosserwa


Executive Search
p 206.792.4300 | c 206.375.0885 
1100 Olive Way, Suite 1800
Seattle WA 98101
melissa@waldronhr.com | www.waldronhr.com
LinkedIn | Twitter

We are proud to be a Certified B Corporation™

85

mailto:melissa@waldronhr.com
http://www.waldronhr.com/
http://www.linkedin.com/company/waldron?trk=hb_tab_compy_id_27222
http://www.twitter.com/waldronhr
http://www.bcorporation.net/community/directory/waldron


Proposal  
to provide recruitment services 

for the City of Prosser's next 

City Administrator 

Presented by 

86

ATTACHMENT 4



2 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 

ABOUT PROTHMAN 

Prothman Company is a Northwest based consulting firm that specializes in 
providing national and regional executive recruitment services to cities, counties, 
and other governmental agencies throughout the western United States.  Founded 
in 2001, Prothman has quickly become an industry leader known and respected for 
outstanding customer service, quality candidate pools, and knowledge of local 
government.   

OUR EXPERTISE 

Recruitment Knowledge and Experience: The Prothman team has conducted 
over 450 recruitments and interim placements.  We have read and screened over 
15,000 resumes, and we have personally interviewed over 5,000 semifinalist 
candidates. We know how to read between the lines, filter the fluff, and drill down 
to the qualities and experiences required to be a good manager. 

Firsthand Knowledge of Local Government: Every Prothman team member has 
worked in local government. Our talented consultants have a cumulative 150 years 
in local government service, with expertise ranging from organization 
management, police and fire management, human resources, finance, public 
works and elected official public service. 

OUR PROVEN PROCESS 

Clients and candidates continually tell us that we have the best process and client 
service in the industry.  The tenure of our placements is among the best in the 
industry because we understand that "fit" is the most important part of the process; 
not just fit within the organization, but fit within the community, as well.   

OUR GUARANTEE 

We are confident in our ability to recruit an experienced and qualified candidate 
who will be the perfect “fit” for your organization.  Should the selected finalist leave 
the position or be terminated for cause within one year from the employment date, 
we will conduct a replacement search with no additional professional fee. 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

Sonja Prothman:  sonja@prothman.com, 206.605.0415 cell 
371 NE Gilman Blvd., Suite 350, Issaquah, WA  98027 
Submittal Date:  August 27, 2015  

87



3 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS - EXPERIENCE 

Current Recruitments 

City of Moses Lake, WA - City Manager 

Town of West Yellowstone, MT - Operations Manager 

Franklin County, WA - County Administrator 

City of Gladstone, OR - City Manager 

WCRP, WA - Executive Director 

City of Woodburn, OR - Police Chief 

City of Woodburn, OR - Economic Development Director 

City of Sheridan, WY - Finance & Administrative Services Director 

Campbell County Fire Department, WY - Fire Chief 

Park City, UT - Community Development Director 

City of Lincoln, NE - Fire Chief 

City of Ferndale, WA - Public Works Director 

City of Snoqualmie, WA - Chief Financial Officer 

City of Mukilteo, WA - Finance Director 

Snohomish County, WA - Surface Water Management Utility Director 

2014 - 2013 Manager, Administrator & Director Recruitments 

City of Fife, WA - City Manager 

City of Pasco, WA - City Manager 

City of Canby, OR - City Administrator 

City of Hood River, OR - City Manager 

City of Longview, WA - City Manager 

City of Lincoln City, OR - City Manager 

City of Bandon, OR - City Manager 

City of Scappoose, OR - City Manager  

City of Hermiston, OR - City Manager  

Lane County, OR - County Administrator  

Snohomish County, WA - Executive Director 

eCityGov Alliance, WA - Executive Director 

Grays Harbor Transit, WA - General Manager  

City of Mukilteo, WA - Mgmt. Services Director 

City Belgrade, MT - City Manager 

City of Polson, MT - City Manager  

Summit County, UT - County Manager 

City of Stevenson, WA - City Administrator 

City of Othello, WA - City Administrator  

City of Lynden, WA - City Administrator  

City of McMinnville, OR - City Manager  

City of Bothell, WA - Asst. City Manager 

City of Lakewood, WA - City Manager  

San Juan County, WA - County Manager  

City of Waldport, OR - City Manager  

City of Lebanon, OR - City Manager  

City of Lake Oswego, OR - City Manager  

Deschutes County, OR - County Administrator 

Intercity Transit, WA - General Manager  

Southwest WA Regional Transportation Council, 

WA - Executive Director 

Cowlitz-Wahkiakum Council of Governments, 

WA - Executive Director 

City of Minot, ND - City Manager 

88



4 

References / Recent Recruitments 

City of Pasco, WA - City Manager, Finance Director 
Contact - City Manager, Dave Zabell - 509.834.9343 

City of Vancouver, WA - HR Director, Parks & Recreation Director, Budget Manager 
Contact - Deputy City Manager, Dave Mercier - 360.487.8610 

City of Bothell, WA - Asst. City Manager, Police & Fire Chiefs, HR & PW Directors, Parks Dir. 
Contact - City Manager, Bob Stowe - 425.486.3256 

Availability, Communication & Schedule 

One of our first tasks will be to coordinate and commit a schedule.  Then, we protect your dates 
on a master schedule to assure we never miss a commitment. We provide you our cell phone 
numbers so you have direct access to your lead consultant and support staff and we will 
communicate and update you as often as you desire.  

Our recruitments take approximately 10-14 weeks to complete, depending on the scope and 
direction from the client.  You can expect approximately:  2-3 weeks for stakeholder interviews 
and profile development and approval, 5-6 weeks for recruitment, 2-3 weeks for screening and 
interviewing, and 2-3 weeks for coordinating final interviews.   

Date Topic 

September 9 or 10, 2015 Hold stakeholder interviews 

September 14, 2015 Post profile and start advertising 

October 25, 2015 Application Close Date 

Weeks of October 26 & Nov. 2, 2015 
Prothman screens applications & interviews top 10 - 
15 candidates 

Week of November 9-13, 2015 
Work Session to review semifinalists and pick 
finalists 

December 2, 3 or 4, 2015 
Final Interview Process, usually includes evening 
reception and next day interviews 

89



5 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS - PROJECT TEAM 

JOHN HODGSON - PROJECT LEAD 
John is a senior consultant for Prothman and brings 33 years of municipal service including, 
most recently, 7 ½ years as City Administrator/Chief Administrative Officer for the City of Kent, 
the sixth largest city in the state of Washington. Prior to that, John had 26 years in parks and 
recreation management for the City of Vancouver, WA, the Metropolitan Park District of 
Tacoma, and Director of Parks, Recreation and Community Services for the City of Kent from 
1994-2005. John’s awards for his service include Kent Chamber of Commerce Public Employee 
of the Year, WRPA Honor Fellow, Kiwanis Distinguished President, and the Kent Lions Club 
Community Service Award.  John has a Bachelor of Science degree in Parks and Recreation 
Management from the University of Oregon (1980) and he completed the Cascade 
Management Series from the University of Washington Graduate School of Public Affairs 
(1992). 

GREG PROTHMAN - PROJECT CO-LEAD 
As President of the Prothman Company, Greg offers a unique combination of 20+ years 
experience in various functions of government and 17 years of experience in public sector 
recruitment. Prior to forming the Prothman Company, Greg served as a police officer for the 
University of Washington and the City of Renton.  He left police work after completing his 
Master of Public Administration degree and accepted an administrative position for the City of 
Des Moines, WA.  He was quickly promoted to Assistant City Manager and then City Manager. 
After nine years in Des Moines, Greg left city management to become a partner in a local 
executive recruitment firm and went out on his own in 2001.  A Seattle native, Greg completed 
his BA at Western Washington University and his Master of Public Administration degree from 
the University of Washington.  Greg is a  member of SMR (Seattle Mountain Rescue).   

SONJA PROTHMAN - PROJECT SUPPORT 
As Vice-President of the Prothman Company, Sonja assists with recruitments and 
organizational assessments, and she manages the support staff and the "business" side of 
Prothman.  Sonja is a former councilmember for the City of Normandy Park and brings to 
Prothman the “elected official” side of city government—an invaluable perspective for 
understanding our clients’ needs.  Sonja also brings private sector expertise having worked with 
the Boeing Company where she was on the start-up team as lead negotiator for schedules and 
deliverables for the first 777 composite empennage. A Seattle native, Sonja earned a bachelor’s 
degree in Communications from the University of Washington.  

BARRY GASKINS - PROJECT SUPPORT 
Barry Gaskins is responsible for candidate management. His attention to detail and 
understanding of timeliness to the customer and candidates is remarkable.  Barry works with the 
lead consultant in following through with scheduling interviews, arranging candidate travel, 
managing candidate application packets, and assembly of candidate information to give to the 
client. Barry came to us from the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation where he served as a 
Program Assistant for four years in the US Library Program. Barry earned his bachelor’s degree 
from California State University in Los Angeles. 

90



6 

Recruitment Strategy 

Every recruitment we conduct is a national search. We have an aggressive national advertising 
campaign and we have the ability to mail the job announcement to every city, county, district, 
etc., in the US.  Screening for "fit" is one of the most important elements in a recruitment.  What 
sets us apart from our competition is that we know this region...our office is in Washington and 
we specialize in the western states. The length of tenure of our placed candidates is the highest 
in the industry because we understand the qualities required for candidates to fit within our 
unique communities, cultures and weather! 

We have conducted hundreds of successful executive searches and refined our process along 
the way.  We provide the process, but you call the shots...whether you want weekly updates or 
monthly updates, more meetings or less meetings...we tailor every recruitment to meet your 
needs.  We will partner with you and find you a highly qualified candidate who is the perfect "fit" 
for your organization, guaranteed! 

Recruitment Process 

Project Review 
The first step will be to review the following topics: 

♦ Review the scope of work and project schedule
♦ Identify the geographic scope of the search (local, regional or national)
♦ Review the compensation package and decide if a salary survey is needed
♦ Identify key stakeholders

Information Gathering and Research (Soliciting Input) 
We will travel to Prosser and spend as much time as it takes to learn everything we 
can about your organization.  Our goal is to thoroughly understand the values and culture 
of the City of Prosser, as well as the preferred qualifications you desire in your next City 
Administrator.  We will: 

♦ Meet with the Mayor
♦ Meet with City Council as directed
♦ Meet with Department Directors & Staff as directed
♦ Meet with community & business stakeholders as directed
♦ Hold a community meeting (if desired)
♦ Review all documents related to the position

Position Profile Development (Identifying the Ideal Candidate) 
We will develop a profile of your ideal candidate.  Once the Position Profile is written and 
approved, it will serve as the foundation for our determination of a candidate’s "fit" within the 
organization and community.  Profiles include the following: 

♦ A description of the ideal candidate’s qualifications

Years of related experience and education required 

Ideal personality traits and work habits 
♦ Organization-specific information

Description of the organization, position and key responsibilities 

Priorities and challenges facing the organization  
♦ Community-specific information

Overview of the region 

Description of the environment and quality of life details 
♦ Compensation package details
♦ Information on how to apply

91



7 

Recruitment and Advertising Strategy (Locating Qualified Candidates) 
We recognize that often the best candidates are not actively looking for a new position--this 
is the person we want to reach and recruit.  We have an aggressive recruitment strategy 
which involves the following: 

♦ Print and Internet-based Ads placed nationally in professional publications,
journals and on related websites.

♦ Direct Mail Recruitment Brochures sent directly to hundreds of highly qualified
city management professionals who are not actively searching for a new position.

♦ Direct Contact Calls placed directly to city management professionals we know.
♦ Posting the Position Profile on the Prothman Website, which receives

thousands of hits per month.

Candidate Screening (Narrowing the Field) 
Once the application deadline has passed, we will conduct an extensive candidate review 
designed to gather detailed information on the leading candidates.  The screening process 
has 4 key steps: 

1) Application Review: Using the Position Profile as our guide, we will screen the
candidates for qualifications based on the resumes, applications, and
supplemental questions (to determine a candidate’s writing skills, analytical
abilities and communication style). After the initial screening, we take the yes's
and maybe's and complete a second screening where we take a much deeper
look into the training, work history and qualifications of each candidate.

2) Personal Interviews: We will conduct in-depth videoconference or in-person
interviews with the top 8 to 15 candidates.  During the interviews, we ask the
technical questions to gauge their competency, and just as importantly, we
design our interviews to measure the candidate's fit within your organization.

3) Internet Publication Background Search:  We conduct an internet publication
search on all semifinalist candidates prior to their interviews.  If we find anything
out of the ordinary, we discuss this during the initial interview and bring this
information to you.

4) Work Session:  We will prepare a detailed summary report which includes each
candidate's application materials and the results of the personal interviews and
publication search. We will travel to Prosser and advise you of the candidates
meeting the qualifications, our knowledge of them, and their strengths and
weaknesses relative to fit within your organization.  We will give you our
recommendations and then work with you to identify the top 4 to 6 candidates to
invite to the final interviews.  We will discuss the planning and design of the final
interview process during this meeting.

Final Interview Process (Selecting the Right Candidate) 
The design of the final interviews is an integral component towards making sure that all 
stakeholders have the opportunity to learn as much as possible about each candidate.   

♦ Elements of the design process include:

Deciding on the Structure of the Interviews 
We will tailor the interview process to fit your needs.  It may involve using 
various interview panels (which can include community stakeholders), a 
public evening reception or one-on-one interviews with the decision makers. 

Deciding on Candidate Travel Expenses 
We will help you identify which expenses your organization wishes to cover. 

Identifying Interview Panel Participants & Panel Facilitators  
We will work with you to identify the participants of different interview panels 
to ensure that all stakeholders identified have been represented.  

92



8 

♦ Public Reception
We recommend that you have a public reception the evening before the interview
so that community members and city staff have a chance to meet the finalist
candidates.  We will facilitate the reception.

♦ Background Checks
Prior to the final interviews, we will conduct a background check on each of the
finalist candidates.  Background checks include the following:

References   
We conduct 3-5 reference checks on each candidate. We ask each candidate 
to provide names of their supervisors, subordinates and peers for the last 
several years.    

Education Verification, Criminal History, Driving Record and Sex 
Offender Check 
We contract with Sterling for all driving record, education verification, criminal 
history, and sex offender checks.  We will conduct a criminal history, driving 
record and sex offender check on each candidate in the states in which they 
have worked. 

♦ Candidate Travel Coordination
For those candidates who will be traveling to the final interviews, we work with
the candidates to organize the most cost effective travel arrangements.

♦ Final Interview Binders
We will provide Final Interview Binders.  They are the tool that keeps the final
interview process organized and ensures that all interviewers are “on the same
page” when it comes to evaluating each candidate.

♦ Final Interviews with Candidates
We will travel to Prosser and facilitate the interviews.  The interview process
usually begins with a morning briefing where schedule and process will be
discussed with all those involved in the interviews.  Each candidate will then go
through a series of one hour interview sessions, with an hour break for lunch.

♦ Panelists & Decision Makers Debrief:  After the interviews are complete, we
will facilitate a debrief with all panel participants where the panel facilitators will
report their panel's view of the strengths and weaknesses of each candidate
interviewed. The decision makers will also have an opportunity to ask panelists
questions.

♦ Candidate Evaluation Session: After the debrief we will facilitate the evaluation
process, help the decision makers come to consensus, discuss next steps, and
organize any additional candidate referencing or research if needed.

♦ Facilitate Employment Agreement:  Once the top candidate has been selected,
we will offer any assistance needed in developing a letter of offer and negotiating
terms of the employment agreement.

Warranty 

♦ Repeat the Recruitment:  Should a top candidate not be chosen, we will repeat
the recruitment with no additional professional fee.

93



9 

FEE, EXPENSES & GUARANTEE

Professional Fee 

The fee for conducting a City Administrator recruitment with a one-year guarantee is $18,500, 
plus expenses.  The professional fee covers all Prothman consultant and staff time required to 
conduct the recruitment.  This includes all correspondence and three on-site meetings with the 
client, writing and placing the recruitment ads, development of the candidate profile, creating 
and sending invitation letters, reviewing resumes, coordinating and conducting semifinalist 
interviews, coordinating and attending finalist interviews, coordinating candidate travel, 
professional reference checks on the finalist candidates and all other search related tasks 
required to successfully complete the recruitment.   

Expenses  
Expenses vary depending on the design of the recruitment. We work diligently to keep 
expenses at a minimum and keep records of all expenditures.  The City of Prosser will be 
responsible for reimbursing expenses Prothman incurs on your behalf.  Expense items include 
but are not limited to: 

Newspaper, trade journal, websites and other advertising (approx. $900 - 1,300) 

Direct mail announcements (approx. $1,200 - 1,600) 

Final Interview Binders & printing of materials (approx. $400 - 700) 

Delivery expenses for Interview Binders (approx. $150 - 250) 

Consultant travel: mileage at IRS rate, travel time at $45 per hour and lodging if needed 
(approx. $400 per trip) 

Background checks performed by Sterling (approx. $175 per candidate)    

Any client-required licenses, fees or taxes 

Candidate travel:  We cannot approximate candidate travel expenses because they vary 
depending on the number of candidates, how far the candidates travel, length of stay, if 
spouses are included, etc.  If you wish, we will coordinate and forward to your organization 
the candidates' travel receipts for direct reimbursement to the candidates.  

A 3% charge will be added to all expenses which reflects our City of Issaquah and State B&O 
tax obligations on every dollar we invoice for.  Professional fees are billed in three equal 
installments throughout the recruitment. Expenses are billed monthly. 

Guarantee 

Our record of success in placing highly qualified candidates provides that Prothman will 
guarantee that if the selected finalist is terminated or resigns within one year from the 
employment date, we will conduct a replacement search with no additional professional fee; on 
the conditions that Prothman has conducted a full recruitment process and the position has 
been recruited at market rate salary.   

Cancellation 

You have the right to cancel the search at any time.  Your only obligation would be the fees and 
expenses incurred prior to cancellation. 

94



10 

CLIENT LIST 

City of Aberdeen, WA 
Public Works Director  

Association of Washington 
Cities (AWC) 
Chief Executive Officer 

City of Arlington, WA 
Community Development Director (2) 
City Administrator 
Fire Chief (2) 
Finance Director (2) 
Utilities Manager  
Public Works Director  
Building Official 
Police Chief 

City of Auburn, WA 
Planning, Building & Community Dir. 

City of Bainbridge Island, WA 
City Administrator (2) 
Finance Director 
Community Development Dir.  
City Attorney 
Deputy Finance Director  
Project Manager  
Engineer  

City of Bandon, OR 
City Manager  

Basin Disposal, Inc. (WA) 
Chief Financial Officer 

City of Battle Ground, WA 

Deputy City Manager  
Public Works Director  
Finance Director 
Police Chief 

City of Belgrade, MT 
City Manager 

City of Bellevue, WA 
Utilities Deputy Director 
Senior Planners  

City of Bend, OR 
Police Chief 

Benton County Emergency Svcs., 
WA 
Director of Emergency Services 
Emergency Management Manager 
Communications Manager 

Benton County Fire District 
#4, WA 
Fire Chief (2) 

City of Billings, MT 
City Engineer 
Engineering Division Manager 

City of Blaine, WA 
Public Works Director 
Finance Director 

Blaine County, ID 
County Administrator (2) 

City of Boardman, OR 
Police Chief 

City of Bonney Lake, WA 

Public Works Director 

City of Bothell, WA 
Public Works Director (2) 
Fire Chief (2) 
Human Resources Director (2) 
Deputy City Manager 
City Attorney 
Police Chief 
Assistant City Manager 
Parks & Recreation Director 
Community Development Director 

City of Bozeman, MT 
Chief Building Official 
Human Resources Director 
Parks & Recreation Director 
Public Works Director 
Community Development Director 

City of Bremerton, WA 

Public Works Director 
Police Chief 

Brigham City, UT 

Police Chief 

Camano Island Fire & Rescue, WA 
Fire Chief 

CAM-PLEX Multi-Event Facilities 
(WY) 
General Manager 

City of Canby, OR 
Police Chief 
City Administrator 

Canby Fire District 62, OR 
Fire Chief 

City of Carnation, WA 
City Manager (2) 
Public Works Director 

City of Casper, WY 
City Manager 

Central Valley Fire District, MT 
Fire Chief 
Fire Marshal 

Central Whidbey Island Fire & 
Rescue, WA 
Fire Chief 

City of Centralia, WA  
Community Development Director 
Economic Development Director 

City of Chehalis, WA 
City Manager 
Police Chief 
Finance Manager  

City of Chelan, WA 
City Administrator (2) 

Chelan County, WA 
Community Development Dir. 
Regional Justice Center Director 
RJC Deputy Director 

Chelan County Public Utility 
District (WA)  
Managing Director - HR, Labor & 
Safety 

Clackamas Community 
College, OR 
Director of Campus Safety 

Clackamas County, OR 
County Administrator 

Clackamas River Water Dist., 
OR 
General Manager 

Clatsop County, OR 
County Manager (2) 
Community Corrections Director 
Building Official 
Development Services Manager 

Clatsop County Sheriff’s 
Office, OR 

Jail Commander 

City of College Place, WA 
Environmental Services Director 

City of Colorado Springs, CO 
Assistant City Manager 

95



11 

City of Connell, WA 
City Administrator 

City of Covington, WA 
City Manager 

Covington Water District, WA 
Utilities Director 
District Engineer 
Water Resources Manager 
Assistant Water Resources Manager 
Project Engineer 
Business Manager 
Controller 

Cowlitz County, WA 
Building & Planning Director 
Engineer 3 

Cowlitz Sewer Operating 
Board, WA 

Superintendent 

Cowlitz-Wahkiakum  
Council of Governments, WA 

Executive Director 

City of Damascus, OR 
Community Development Dir. 
City Manager 

Deschutes County, OR 
County Administrator 

City of DuPont, WA 
City Administrator 
Planning Director 
Finance Director 
Public Works Director 

City of Duvall, WA 
Planning Director  
Accountant 
City Administrator 
Finance Director 

East Jefferson Fire Rescue, 
WA 
Fire Chief 

East Multnomah Soil & Water 
Conservation District (OR)  
Executive Director  

East Olympia Fire District #6, WA 
Fire Chief 

East Pierce Fire & Rescue (WA) 

Fire Chief 

Eastside Baby Corner (WA) 
Executive Director  

eCityGov Alliance (WA) 
Executive Director 

City of Edgewood, WA 
City Manager (2) 
Public Works Director 
Engineer 
Senior Planner 

City of Enumclaw, WA 
Finance Director 
Fire Chief 

City of Ephrata, WA 
Police Chief 

City of Federal Way, WA 

Finance Director 
Community Development Director 

City of Ferndale, WA 

Police Chief 
Public Works Director 

City of Fife, WA 

City Clerk 
Community Development Director 
City Manager 

City of Fircrest, WA 
City Manager 
Finance Director 

City of Gillette, WY 
Public Works Director 
Community Development Director 
City Administrator 

Grays Harbor Transit (WA) 
General Manager 

City of Great Falls, MT 

City Attorney 

City of Green River, WY 
Community Development Director 

Gunnison County, CO 
County Manager 
Community Development Director 
Airport Manager 
Human Resources Director 
Health & Human Services Director 
IT Director  
Deputy County Attorney 

City of Hailey, ID 
City Administrator 

City of Hermiston, OR 
City Manager 

City of Hood River, OR 
City Manager 

Intercity Transit, WA 
General Manager 

Issaquah Food & Clothing Bank, 
WA 

Executive Director 

City of Issaquah, WA 
Police Chief 
City Administrator 
Deputy City Administrator (2) 
Deputy Finance Director  

Jackson County, OR 
HR/Risk Management Director 

JEFFCOM 9-1-1, WA 

Director 

Jefferson County, WA 
County Administrator 

City of Kalama, WA 
Police Chief 

City of Kelso, WA 
Public Works Director 
Community Development Dir. 
City Manager  

City of Kemmerer, WY 
Public Works Director 

City of Kenmore, WA 
City Manager (2) 
Finance Director 
City Engineer (2) 
Community Development Director 

City of Kennewick, WA 
Planning Director 

City of Kent, WA 
Professional Land Surveyor 
Finance Director 
Information Tech. Director 

City of Ketchum, ID 
City Administrator 

Ketchum Community 
Development Corporation, ID 
Executive Director 

King County Housing 
Authority, WA 
Finance Director 

King County Sheriff’s Office, 
WA 
Chief Financial Officer 

96



12 

City of Kirkland, WA 
Water Division Manager 
Public Works Director 
Director of Fire & Building Services 

Kootenai County Fire & Rescue, ID 
Fire Chief 

City of La Center, WA 

Police Chief 

City of Lacey, WA 
City Manager 

Lacey Fire District 3, WA 
Fire Chief 

City of Lake Forest Park, WA 
City Administrator (3) 

City of Lake Oswego, OR 

City Manager 
Water Treatment Plant Manager 

Lake Stevens Fire (WA) 

Fire Chief 

City of Lakewood, WA 
City Manager 
Assistant City Manager  

Lane County, OR 
County Administrator 

City of Leavenworth, WA 
City Administrator (2) 
Public Works Director 
Finance Director/City Clerk 

City of Lebanon, OR 
City Manager 

Lewis County, WA 
Public Works Director/ 
County Engineer 
Director of Public Health &  
Social Services 
Community Development Director 

City of Lewiston, ID 

City Manager 

Lincoln City, OR 
Finance Director  
City Manager 

City of Littleton, CO 
Finance Director  

City of Long Beach, WA 
Community Development Director 

City of Longview, WA 
City Manager 

Los Alamos County, NM 
County Administrator  

LOTT Clean Water Alliance, WA 
Finance Manager 

City of Louisville, CO 
City Manager  

City of Lynden, WA 
Public Works Director (2) 
City Administrator 

City of Lynnwood, WA 
Public Works Director 
Assistant Fire Chief 
Finance Director 

Manchester Water District, WA 
General Manager 

City of Marysville, WA 
Police Chief  
Public Works Director 
Engineering Services Manager 
Streets/Surface Water Manager 
Community Development Director 

Marysville Fire District, WA 

Fire Chief 

Mason County, WA 
Public Works Director 

City of McMinnville, OR 
City Manager 

City of Medford, OR 

Planning Director 

City of Medina, WA 
Public Works Director 

Metro Parks Tacoma, WA 
Director of Planning & Development 

City of Mill Creek, WA 
City Manager 

City of Milwaukie, OR 

City Manager 

City of Minot, ND 
City Manager 

City of Moscow, ID 
Asst. Community Development Dir. 

City of Mountlake Terrace, WA 
City Manager 
Police Chief 

City of Mukilteo, WA 
City Administrator 
Finance Director 
Management Services Director 

Multnomah County, OR 
Human Resources Manager (2) 

Municipal Research & Services 
Center of Washington - MRSC 
Executive Director 

MuniFinancial, WA 

Senior Financial Analyst 
Financial Analyst 1 

City of Newcastle, WA 

City Manager  
Public Works Director (2) 

City of Normandy Park, WA 

Deputy City Manager/Finance Dir. 
Planning Director 
City Manager  

North Beach Public  
Development Authority, WA 
General Manager 

City of Oak Harbor, WA 
City Attorney 

City of Olympia, WA 

Public Works Finance Manager 

City of Ontario, OR 
City Manager (2) 

City of Othello, WA 
City Administrator 
Police Chief 
Community Development Director 

City of Pasco, WA 
City Manager 
Finance Director 

Pend Oreille County, WA 
Public Works Director 

City of Polson, MT 
City Manager 

City of Port Angeles, WA 

Police Chief 
City Manager 
Finance Director 
Public Works Director 

City of Port Townsend, WA 
Development Services Director 
Finance Director 

97



13 

City of Post Falls, ID 
City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

City of Poulsbo, WA 

Chief of Police (2) 

City of Prosser, WA 
City Administrator (2) 
Finance Director (2) 
City Clerk 

City of Puyallup, WA 

Assistant City Manager 
Human Resources Director 
City Manager (2) 

City of Red Lodge, MT 
Police Chief  
Community Development Director 

City of Richland, WA 
Transportation Engineer 
Public Works Director  
Parks Superintendent 

Richmond (VA) Redevelopment & 
Housing Authority - RRHA 
Sr. VP - Property Management &  
Assisted Housing 

City of Ridgefield, WA 
City Manager 

City of Riverton, WY 
City Administrator 

City of Salem, OR 

Human Resources Director 

City of Sammamish, WA 
Transportation Program Engineer 
Senior Project Engineers (3) 
Project Engineer 
Parks Project Manager 

San Juan County, WA 
Public Works Director 
County Manager 

City of Sandy, OR 
Police Chief 

City of Scappoose, OR 

City Manager 

City of Seattle, WA 
Fire Chief 
Labor Standards Division 
Director  
Dir. of Administration - Human 
Resources 

Port of Seattle, WA 
Fire Chief 

City of Sequim, WA 
Public Works Director 
Human Resources Director 

City of Shelton, WA 
City Administrator 
Community Development Director 
Management Assistant 
Public Works Director (2) 
Police Chief 

City of Shoreline, WA 
Deputy City Manager 
City Engineer (2) 
Planning Director 
Public Works Director (2)  
City Manager 
City Attorney 
Parks, Rec. & Cultural Svcs. Dir. 
Administrative Services Director 

City & Borough of Sitka, AK 

Deputy Finance Director 

Skagit County, WA 
Public Works Director 
Assistant County Engineer 
Youth & Family Services Admin. 

City of Snohomish, WA  

City Engineer 
Public Works Utilities Manager 
Finance Director 

Snohomish County, WA 

Executive Director 
Human Services Director 

Paine Field - Snohomish 
County Airport (WA) 
Airport Director 

Snohomish County 
Emergency Radio System, WA 
Radio System Manager (2) 

Snohomish Health District, 
WA 
Deputy Director 

SNOPAC 9-1-1, WA 

Executive Director 

City of Snoqualmie, WA 
Fire Chief 
Community Development 
Director 

Southwest Clean Air Agency, 
WA 
Executive Director 

Southwest Washington 
Regional Transportation 
Council 
Executive Director 

City of Spokane Valley, WA 
City Manager 
Deputy City Manager (2) 
Finance Director (2) 
Public Works Director (2) 
Community Development Dir. (2) 
Building Official (2) 
Parks & Recreation Director (2) 
City Clerk 
Assistant City Clerk 
City Attorney (2) 

Spokane Valley Fire 
Department, WA 
Fire Chief 

City of Stanwood, WA 
Finance Director (2) 
City Administrator  

City of Stevenson, WA 
City Administrator 

City of Sultan, WA 

City Administrator (2) 

Summit County, UT 
County Manager 

City of Sun Valley, ID 
City Administrator 

City of Sunnyside, WA 

Finance/Admin. Svcs. Director 
City Manager 

City of Tacoma, WA 

Public Works Director 
Finance Director 
Labor Negotiator 

City of Thorne Bay, AK 
City Administrator 

Thurston County, WA 

Human Resources Director 
Assistant CAO  

Tulalip Tribes, WA 

Police Chief 

Twin Transit, WA 
General Manager 

City of Vancouver, WA 
Budget & Planning Manager 
Human Resources Director 
Parks & Recreation Director 
City Attorney 

98



14 

Vashon Island Fire & Rescue, 
WA 
Fire Chief 
Assistant Fire Chief 

City of Waldport, OR 
City Manager 

City of Walla Walla, WA 

City Manager 
Public Works Director 
Finance Manager  

City of Warrenton, OR 
Public Works Director 

Washington Association of 
County Officials 
Executive Director  

Washington School 
Information Processing 
Cooperative (WSIPC) 
Executive Director  

Whatcom Transportation 
Authority, WA 
General Manager 
Finance Director 

City of Whitefish, MT 
City Manager 

City of White Salmon, WA 
City Administrator/ 
Public Works Director 
Public Works Operations Manager 

City of Wood Village, OR 
City Administrator 

City of Woodburn, OR 
City Administrator  
Community Development Director 
Human Resources Director  
Finance Director 

City of Woodinville, WA 
City Manager  
Development Services Director 

City of Woodland, WA 
Fire Chief 

City & Borough of Wrangell, 
AK 
Borough Manager 

Town of Yarrow Point, WA 
Town Clerk 

99



EXAMPLE OF POSITION PROFILE 

100



CITY MANAGER 

$145,000 - $165,000 
Plus Excellent Benefits 

Apply by 

May 4, 2014 
(open until filled) 

City of Pasco 

WASHINGTON 

Pop.:  65,398 
FTE's:  310 

Budget:  $143 million 

101



C I T Y O F P A S C O , W A S H I N G T O N ♦ C I T Y M A N A G E R

2 

WHY APPLY? 

Nestled among the 
Columbia, Yakima, 
and Snake Rivers in 
southeastern Wash-
ington, Pasco is a 
growing community 
that enjoys 300 days 
of sunshine a year. 
The exceptional cli-

mate, combined with the area's inviting water-
ways, enables residents and visitors to enjoy a 
multitude of outdoor activities, from water sports to 
golf to wine touring to outdoor theater. 

After 30 years as Pasco's City Manager, Gary 
Crutchfield is retiring.  The City is highly regarded 
in the community for its organizational integrity 
and for the quality of services it provides. It is fi-
nancially sound and has a dedicated team of em-
ployees and a supportive City Council.  The new 
City Manager will be presented with a great oppor-
tunity to continue to positively shape the future of 
Pasco as it continues its transformation from a 
small city to a large, vibrant city of 65,000 citizens. 
If you are city manager looking to lead a team of 
dedicated staff to provide exceptional service to a 
growing community, this is the position for you! 

THE COMMUNITY 

A thriving community of more than 65,000, Pasco 
has seen tremendous growth in the last decade 
along with an increased sense of community and 
public safety. Aesthetic and recreational charisma 
surrounded by natural beauty makes this desert 
community rich in agriculture and a popular recre-
ation destination.  

In the late 1990s, several developers purchased 
large farm circles in Pasco for residential and 
commercial development. Since that time, Pasco 
has undergone a transformation that has not only 
seen its population overtake the neighboring city 
of Richland, but also has resulted in growth in the 
city's retail and tourism industries. The west side 
of the city has exploded into new housing tracts, 
apartments, and  retail services.  

Pasco, along with the neighboring cities of Rich-
land and Kennewick, comprise the Tri-Cities met-
ropolitan area with a population of 248,400. Pasco 
is just a few hour’s drive from the major urban cen-

ters of Seattle, Spokane and Portland. The Tri-
Cities Airport in Pasco has direct flights to Seattle, 
Denver, Salt Lake City, Las Vegas, Minneapolis, 
Los Angeles, Phoenix and San Francisco. 

The Tri-Cities offers breathtaking parks, nostalgic 
downtown areas, upscale dining and retail, art gal-
leries, antique shops, and a variety of entertain-
ment venues. Residents and visitors enjoy endless 
recreational opportunities, including water sports, 
fishing, biking, hunting, skiing and more. Golf is 
one of the most popular sports enjoyed year round 
with over ten premier courses. The massive Co-
lumbia River separates Pasco from its neighboring 
communities and features many waterfront parks, 
trails, and easy river access. 

The Tri-Cities is a sports minded community, 
which is reflected in the many public athletic facili-
ties and is home to 3 professional sports teams: 
Tri-City Americans WHL Ice Hockey, Tri-City Dust 
Devils, a professional affiliate of the Colorado 
Rockies (playing at the GESA Stadium in Pasco), 
and the Tri-Cities Fever, a member of the Arena 
Football 2 League. Pasco has its share of fine 
sports venues in the mix, boasting a state-of-the-
art, six-field softball complex and a world class, 
15-field soccer facility. 

102



C I T Y O F P A S C O , W A S H I N G T O N ♦ C I T Y M A N A G E R

3 

Known as the “Heart of Washington Wine Coun-
try,” the region is home to over 160 wineries pro-
ducing some of the finest wines in the world.  Tri-
Cities has enjoyed many awards over the years, 
including ranking #1 for top U.S. cities people are 
moving to in 2012, #5 in best job growth since the 
recession in 2012, #1 for most secure mid-sized 
U.S. City in 2011, and #1 in the nation for housing 
in 2010, and lowest cost of living in the state of 
WA in 2010.  

THE CITY 

The City of Pasco operates under the "Council-
Manager" form of government.  The Pasco City 
Council is comprised of seven elected officials, 
each serving four year terms. Five Council mem-
bers each represent a district, two are elected at 
large. The Council selects a member to serve as 
Mayor every two years. The city employs 310 
FTEs, and its 2014 adopted budget totals 
$143,744,293. 

Pasco is a full service city. City departments in-
clude Public Works, Community and Economic 
Development, Administrative and Community Ser-
vices, Police, Fire and Municipal Court. 

THE POSITION 

Appointed by and serving at the pleasure of City 
Council, the City Manager is the chief executive 
officer of the City and is responsible to the City 
Council for the proper delivery of municipal ser-
vices consistent with Council policy and direc-
tives.  The City Manager provides direct supervi-
sion over all city departments.  The Executive De-
partment, with the assistance of the Deputy City 

Manager, also provides general administrative 
oversight and oversees all personnel matters and 
external communications for the City.  

Other responsibilities include: 

 Supervises and provides managerial leader-
ship to the City's department heads.

 Plans and organizes workloads and staff as-
signments.

 Establishes administrative policies, proce-
dures, work rules and performance standards
to assure the efficient and effective operation
of the City government within the framework of
the City Council’s policy and federal, state, and
local laws.

 Coordinates interdepartmental projects and
programs and activities with outside govern-
ment agencies.

 Supervises the selection, training, evaluation,
promotion, disciplining, and discharging of
staff.

 Conducts and oversees performance evalua-
tions.

 Administers labor contracts.
 Provides planning leadership and direction.
 Develops short- and long-range plans, goals

and objectives for City operations.
 Reviews and updates annual and comprehen-

sive plans.
 Directs the preparation and administration of

the City budget based on staffing and resource
requirements, cost estimates, departmental
budgets and objectives, and overall City goals.

 Monitors the budget to assure compliance with
approved budget levels and standards.

 Establishes fiscal policies and financial objec-
tives and allocates financial resources.

103



C I T Y O F P A S C O , W A S H I N G T O N ♦ C I T Y M A N A G E R

4 

CHALLENGES & OPPORTUNITIES 

1. Municipal Growth Area: The Pasco Urban
Growth Area (UGA) includes about two-square 
miles of unincorporated area surrounded by the 
city. While the City has extended water service to 
much of the area (and has a policy of collecting 
annexation agreements from property owners in 
exchange for water service), some areas are less 
developed.  The City Manager will face a major 
challenge and opportunity to resolve the inefficien-
cies for the public entities that result from this ir-
regular boundary while addressing the concerns of 
residents and property owners in the UGA. 

2. Tax Base: The City grew very rapidly between
2000-2008, principally due to residential construc-
tion. A major challenge for the City is to expand 
the industrial tax base to better balance the as-
sessed value in the community and increase the 
assessed value per capita. The City Manager 
must be able to work with the Port of Pasco, 
TRIDEC (Tri-City Development Council), and key 
land owners to accomplish this goal over time.  In 
the meantime, the City has committed to keep the 
property tax rate as low as possible to help offset 
the impact of the tax rate required by the school 
district to accommodate construction and opera-
tional costs of new schools.   

3. Regional Collaboration: Pasco is an integral
part of Tri-Cities metropolitan area, but is physical-
ly separated by the Columbia River, so it is easy to 
be isolated from the balance of the Tri-Cities.  Re-
gional collaboration has grown markedly in the 
past decade or two, particularly in police and fire 
services.  The formation of a regional public facili-
ties district has been a particular recent effort, 
though not successful in voter approval. The City 
Manager is a key player in fostering/implementing 
regional collaboration efforts with neighboring cit-
ies. 

4. Old Town/New Town: Much of the population
explosion in the City occurred on the western 
“plateau” representing about 30,000 new residents 
and related new homes and commercial facilities 
(“New Town”).  The other half of the population is 
located in the central and eastern portion of the 
City and is characterized by older housing stock, 
lower incomes, predominately Hispanic popula-
tion, surrounding an aging downtown recently 
transitioning to Hispanic goods and services (“Old 
Town”).  The City needs to be mindful of the per-

ception held by old town that new town gets all the 
attention, despite the City’s long-abiding effort to 
revitalize downtown and the higher number of 
parks and associated recreation programs in the 
older part of downtown. 

IDEAL CANDIDATE PROFILE 

Pasco is looking for a conservative manager who 
understands all aspects of municipal government. 
He or she will have had previous experience in an 
organization of similar size and complexity recog-
nized for excellent customer service and continu-
ous improvement. The candidate will have a prov-
en track record of delivering results, building ac-
countability for staff and creating a positive work-
ing environment characterized collaborative 
teamwork with department directors.   

The successful candidate will be a manager who 
understands the importance of providing Council 
with information and keeping them informed at all 
levels. He or she will be able to assist council 
members in team building and reaching consen-
sus, and build an atmosphere of trust, mutual re-
spect and cooperation.   

104



C I T Y O F P A S C O , W A S H I N G T O N ♦ C I T Y M A N A G E R

5 

Pasco is seeking a manager who is a good com-
municator and relationship builder.  This position 
will require the new manager to work closely with 
several other governmental agencies to build posi-
tive relations and form and maintain partnerships 
at the local, state and federal levels.  

The "donut hole" annexation will be a large project 
for the next city manager.  Prior experience in 
community development and economic develop-
ment is a plus.  Excellent negotiating skills and 
experience with labor negotiations and police and 
fire unions will also be a plus. 

EXPERIENCE & EDUCATION 

A bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or 
university in public or business administration, or 
related field; and at least seven to ten years of 
progressively responsible experience in municipal 
government, including five years of senior man-
agement responsibility is required. Any combina-
tion of experience and education which provides 
the applicant with the level of required knowledge 
and abilities may be considered.   

COMPENSATION & BENEFITS 

 $145,000 - $165,000 DOQ
 Medical, Dental and Vision
 Life Insurance
 Vacation Time
 Sick Leave
 11 Paid Holidays
 Retirement Plan
 ICMA Deferred Compensation Plan
 Employee Assistance Program
 Flexible Spending
 Fitness Center Membership

www.pasco-wa.gov 

The City of Pasco is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  All qualified candidates are strongly encouraged to 
apply by May 4, 2014 (first review, open until filled).  Applications, supplemental questions, resumes and 
cover letters will only be accepted electronically.  To apply online, go to www.prothman.com and click 
on "submit your application" and follow the directions provided.  Resumes, cover letters and supplemental 
questions can be uploaded once you have logged in.    

www.prothman.com

371 NE Gilman Blvd., Ste 350 
 Issaquah, WA 98027 

206.368.0050 

105

http://www.prothman.com/


Proposal for Executive Search Services 

City Manager 
City of Prosser, Washington

August 2015 

Strategic Government Resources 

Ron Holifield, CEO 
PO Box 1642 

Keller, Texas 76244 
817-337-8581 

Ron@GovernmentResource.com 

106

ATTACHMENT 5

mailto:Ron@GovernmentResource.com


 P O Box 1642 Keller, Texas 76244 817-337-8581 www.GovernmentResource.com 

August 26, 2015

Honorable Mayor Paul Warden and City Council 
City of Prosser
601 7th Street
Prosser, Washington 99350

Dear Mayor Warden:

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this full service proposal to assist the City 
of Prosser in your search for a new City Manager.

SGR is one of the top three local government executive search firms in the nation and has the 
unique ability to provide a personalized and comprehensive search service to meet your 
needs.  

I would like to draw your attention to a few key items that distinguish SGR from other search 
firms: 

 SGR has over 75,000 email subscribers to my weekly “10 in 10 Update on Leadership
and Innovation” e-newsletter.

 SGR will send targeted emails to our database of over 4,400 city/county management
officials.

 SGR’s website, where this position would be posted, receives over 23,000 local
government official visitors each month, with over 210,000 page hits per month –
more than any other local government search firm website in the nation.

 SGR’s Job Board (a separate website), where this position would also be posted, is the

2nd largest local government job board in the nation, with over 16,000 local
government job seeker visitors each month, and over 1,200 jobs listed at any given
time.

 SGR is the only search firm with social media experts on staff, which provides a
comprehensive social media marketing campaign that includes email, Facebook,
Twitter, and LinkedIn.

The simple fact is that no other firm can touch our reputation for being trusted by both clients 
and candidates, and for successful long term placements.  

We are truly excited about the prospect of doing this search for the City of Prosser. I look 
forward to discussing in more detail how we can help you select an exceptional City Manager 
and am available to visit in person with you at your convenience. 

107



Respectfully submitted, 

Ron Holifield 
Chief Executive Officer 
SGR Executive Search 
Ron@GovernmentResource.com 
214-676-1691 

108

mailto:Ron@GovernmentResource.com


Table of Contents 

Tab 1 Company Contact Information 

Tab 2 Company Profile 

Tab 3 Unique Qualifications 

Tab 4 Key Personnel for this Project 

Tab 5 Project Methodology 

Tab 6 Proposed Timeline 

Tab 7 Project Cost 

Tab 8 Provision of Service Guarantee 

Tab 9 References 

Tab 10 Recent Executive Search Clients and Positions Recruited 

Tab 11 Unsolicited Feedback 

Tab 12 Sample Position Profile Brochure 

Tab 13 Sample Comprehensive Background Screening Report 

Tab 14 Sample DiSC Management Profile Report 

109



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 1 

110



Contact Information 

Contact Information for Binding Official / Primary Contact 

Cyndy Brown, Managing Director of Recruitment & Administration 
Strategic Government Resources 

Address: P.O. Box 1642, Keller, TX 76244 
Cell: 817-919-4778 
Office: 817-337-8581 
Fax: 817-796-1228 
Email: CyndyBrown@GovernmentResource.com  
Website: www.governmentresource.com  

Alternate Contact 

Ron Holifield, CEO 
Strategic Government Resources 

Address: P.O. Box 1642, Keller, TX 76244 
Cell: 214-676-1691 
Office: 817-337-8581 
Fax: 817-796-1228 
Email: Ron@GovernmentResource.com 
Website: www.governmentresource.com  

111

mailto:CyndyBrown@GovernmentResource.com
http://www.governmentresource.com/
mailto:Ron@GovernmentResource.com
http://www.governmentresource.com/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 2 

112



Company Profile 

Background 
Strategic Government Resources (SGR) was founded in 1999 and is fully owned by former City 
Manager Ron Holifield. Ron spent two high profile decades in city management, which included 
service as City Manager in several cities. He founded SGR for the express purpose of helping 
local governments be more successful by recruiting, assessing, and developing innovative, 
collaborative, authentic leaders. We specialize in executive recruitment, live training, online 
training, leadership development, assessments, consulting, and various other services geared to 
promote innovation in local governments. 

Mission & Core Values 
SGR’s mission is to facilitate innovative leadership in local government. The simple fact is that in 
today’s world of limited resources, local governments must innovate to survive. SGR has and 
continues to be a leader in spurring innovation in local government.  

SGR’s core values are: Customer Service; Integrity; Philanthropy; Continuous Improvement; 
Flexibility; The Golden Rule; Collaboration; and, Protecting Relationships. 

Office Locations 
SGR’s corporate headquarters is in the Dallas/Fort Worth Metro area in Keller, Texas. SGR also 
has satellite offices in: 

Texas  Florida  Louisiana Oklahoma 
Abilene Kissimmee Baton Rouge Edmond 
Cleburne Sarasota Stillwater 
College Station 
Coppell 
Dallas 
Graham 
Greenville 
Murchison 
New Braunfels 
Seabrook 
Sugar Land 

Executive Search Team 

 Ron Holifield, Chief Executive Officer

 Cyndy Brown, Managing Director of Recruitment

 Melissa Valentine, Director of Executive Search Operations

 Lori Philyaw, Director of Interim Management Services

 Cindy Hanna, Executive Search Manager

 Claudia Deakins, Executive Search Manager

113



Executive Search Team (continued) 
 Katie Corder, Executive Search Manager

 Abi Compton, Executive Search Coordinator

 Muriel Call, Research Coordinator

 Bill Peterson, Senior Vice President, Executive Search

 Chester Nolen, Senior Vice President, Executive Search

 Gary Holland, Senior Vice President, Executive Search

 Marlin Price, Senior Vice President, Executive Search

 Mike Tanner, Senior Vice President, Executive Search

 Molly Deckert, Senior Vice President, Executive Search

 Ron Robinson, Senior Vice President, Executive Search

 Tommy Ingram, Senior Vice President, Executive Search

114



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 3 

115



Unique Qualifications 

Marketing and Networking 

 SGR’s 10 in 10 Update on Leadership and Innovation e-newsletter, where all executive
searches conducted by SGR are announced, reaches over 75,000 subscribers.

 SGR has a database of over 4,400 city/county management professionals.

 SGR has formal collaborative partnerships with Maryland Municipal League, Ohio
City/County Management Association, Missouri Municipal League, Oklahoma Municipal
League, National Public Employers Labor Relations Association, Emerging Leaders in
Local Government, City Management Association of Oklahoma, and Texas Fire Chiefs
Association.

 SGR trains approximately 800 local government employees each month in live training
classes.

 SGR has almost 300 local government clients in 41 states for our recruitment, training,
and leadership development business lines combined.

Each executive recruiter has many years of experience in local government and a national 
network of relationships. The entire executive search group works as a team to leverage their 
networks to assist with each search. SGR team members are active on a national basis, in both 
local government organization and professional associations. Many SGR team members 
frequently speak and write on issues of interest to local government executives. Only SGR can 
work all of the relevant networks as a peer and insider, resulting in better recruitment, better 
investigation, better intelligence, better information, and better final decisions. 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment 
SGR’s executive recruiting services are unequaled. Our role is to find the candidate who is the 
best match for your organization. SGR devotes a tremendous amount of energy to 
understanding your organization’s unique culture, environment, and local issues to ensure a 
great “fit” from values, philosophy, and management style perspectives. 

Finding qualified candidates is not difficult; the hard part is finding qualified candidates who are 
the right fit for your organization. A leading edge candidate and a safe harbor candidate often 
look the same on paper, but will have profoundly different impacts on your organization.  

Accessibility 
Your executive recruiter is accessible at all times throughout the search process and can be 
reached by candidates or clients, even at night and on weekends, by cell phone or email. 

Responsive to You 
If a problem arises, or you have questions, you can count on SGR staff to be available, prepared, 
and prompt.  

116



Trust of Candidates 
SGR has a track record of remarkable confidentiality and providing wise counsel to candidates 
and next generation leaders; we have earned their trust. As a result, SGR is typically able to get 
exceptional prospects to become candidates, even if they have declined to become involved in 
other search processes, because candidates trust SGR to assess the situation well, communicate 
honestly and bluntly, and maintain their confidentiality. 

Listening to Your Unique Needs 
SGR is more interested in listening than in talking. Some firms depend on their tried and true 
stable of reliable candidates. These firms do not really need to listen to the client because the 
search will result in the same list of finalists, no matter the type of information they receive 
from the client. SGR devotes tremendous energy to actively listening to your organization and 
helping you define and articulate your needs. SGR does not just go through the motions and 
then provide you with a list of qualified names from a stable of regulars. We work hard to 
conduct a comprehensive search that is unique to you. 

Recorded Online Interviews with Candidates 
SGR’s unique online recorded interview process allows the search committee to see candidates 
in an interview setting prior to the finalist stage of the search process, and without having to 
pay travel expenses. 

Comprehensive Media Reports 
One of the worst things that can happen for your organization is to be surprised by undisclosed 
information about a finalist, especially if the surprise comes in the form of a newspaper article 
that is found by your critics. SGR has never had a client embarrassed by surprises about a 
candidate. SGR produces a comprehensive media search report on each finalist candidate. Each 
Media Report is compiled from information gathered using our proprietary online search 
process. This is not an automated process, and produces far superior results than a standard 
Google search which is typically utilized by other search firms. The report length may be as long 
as 350 pages per candidate and may include news articles, links to video interviews, blog posts 
by residents, etc. No other firm provides such comprehensive media reports.  

Comprehensive Background Investigation Reports 
SGR provides the most comprehensive background investigations in the industry, and we are 
the only search firm to use a licensed private investigation firm for these services.  

Psychometric Assessments 
SGR uses the DiSC Management psychometric assessment to provide a detailed understanding 
of how candidates will lead and manage an organization. The psychometric assessment report 
also provides valuable information regarding candidates’ strengths and weaknesses.  

117



Recruitment Videos 
SGR offers the option of developing a custom video recruitment ad for posting on YouTube and 
linking to the video in other media sources. A sample SGR recruitment video for the City of 
Owasso, Oklahoma, can be viewed at http://bit.ly/OwassoOKCM.  

Equal Opportunity Commitment 
SGR strongly believes in equal opportunity. SGR does not discriminate and is careful to follow 
both the letter and the spirit of laws regarding equal employment opportunities and non-
discrimination. More importantly, however, SGR believes that equal opportunity is an ethical 
issue. SGR quite simply will not enter into an engagement with an entity or organization that 
directs, or expects, that bias should, or will be, demonstrated on any basis other than those 
factors that have a bearing on the ability of the candidate to do the job. You can anticipate that 
SGR will make a serious and sincere effort to include qualified women and minority candidates 
in the finalist pool. Although SGR obviously cannot, and would not, guarantee the makeup of 
the finalist group, SGR does have relationships and contacts nationwide to encourage the 
meaningful participation of women and minority candidates.  

Value 
For a variety of reasons that are detailed in this proposal, SGR will provide the most cost-
effective executive search for your city. Some firms low ball their price, and make up for it by 
reducing the amount of time they commit, or charging extra for additional time required. SGR 
gives you a fixed price, and we are with you until the end of the process regardless of how 
many hours are required.  

Emerging Leaders 
SGR has a unique and unparalleled reputation of engaging and mentoring emerging leaders and 
young professionals. We will utilize our frequent personal interaction with emerging leaders, as 
well as our entire team’s social media networks, to market this position and to identify 
potential applicants.  

Five Way Guarantee 
SGR provides the strongest guarantee in the industry. 

1. Our price is our price. You will never be charged an additional fee because we need
to come to another meeting or spend extra time.

2. You always have 24/7 cell phone and email access to the executive recruiter and
SGR’s CEO.

3. If you do not find the right candidate, we will start the process over with no
additional professional fees.

4. If we place a candidate who stays less than two years, we will conduct the search
again at for no additional professional fees.

5. If we place a candidate with you, we will not directly solicit them for another job.

118

http://bit.ly/OwassoOKCM


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 4 

119



Key Personnel for this Project 

Ron Holifield, CEO 
Ron Holifield is the Founder and CEO of SGR.  He previously served as Assistant City Manager in 
Plano, Texas as well as City Manager in Garland, DeSoto, Farmersville and Sundown, and on the 
City Manager’s staff in Lubbock.  

In 1996, he left city management and purchased Government Relations Specialists which he 
grew into the 49th largest lobby firm in Texas, before selling it to an employee. In 1999, Ron 
founded Strategic Government Resources to specialize in facilitating collaboration among local 
governments, with a particular emphasis in employee training and development of next 
generation leaders.   

He has grown SGR into the largest private sector training company that specializes in 
leadership, management and customer service for local governments in the nation. He is a 
frequent speaker at state and national conferences and remains high profile in the city 
management profession.  

Ron holds a Bachelor of Arts in Government from Abilene Christian University and a Master’s in 
Public Administration from Texas Tech University. 

120



Ron Holifield 
Resume – July 2014 

Strategic Government Resources, P.O. Box 1642, Keller, Texas 76248 
Cell: 214-676-1691, Ron@GovernmentResource.com  

PROFESSIONAL HISTORY 

Strategic Government Resources – Owner & CEO 
January 1999 to Present 

 Owner and CEO of this strategic management firm, helping local governments Recruit,
Assess and Develop Innovative, Collaborative and Authentic Leaders.   Clients have
include over 350 local governments.

 SGR is the largest provider of live and online training in the nation designed specifically
for local government, training over 1,000 local government employees every month in
41 states.

 Interviewed and/or quoted by numerous news publications and media outlets including:
National Public Radio, Entrepreneur Magazine, Texas City Manager Magazine, Texas
Town and City, Government Technology Magazine, GovWire Online Magazine, Federal
Computer Week Magazine, CIO Magazine, Dallas Morning News, Dallas Business
Journal, Plano Star Courier, DFW Tech Biz, Today Newspapers, Focus on the News, D
Magazine, International Association of Chiefs of Police Journal, WOAI TV and KRLD and
KTET Radio, as well as the ABC and NBC affiliates in Tulsa and WAMU radio in
Washington, DC.

Government Relations Specialists – Owner & CEO 
August 1996 to September 2001 

 Owner and CEO of this 20 year old governmental consulting firm which represented
businesses doing business with government and in legislative advocacy efforts.

 Doubled it in size, becoming the 49th largest lobby firm in Texas, and then sold it to an
employee to focus all efforts on the launch of SGR.

 Major clients included over 40 Fortune 500 firms including American Express, Aramark,
Automated Licensing Systems, Children's Comprehensive Services, IBM, Quorum Health
Group, Library Systems and Services, PeopleSoft, SCT, Space Imaging, TXI, Verizon, Xerox
and many others.

121

mailto:Ron@GovernmentResource.com


Ronald Mack Holifield  Page 2 of 7 

City of DeSoto, Texas – City Manager 
October 1994 to August 1996 

 City Manager of this highly diverse suburban community.

 Hired to lead a rapid cultural change at City Hall, into a City known for being aggressively
customer service driven, highly successful in the economic development arena, and
operating in a very cost effective manner.

 Significant accomplishments include:

- Named by Texas Business Magazine as a top 20 Texas city to relocate a business.  
- Named by Texas Outlook Magazine as a top 25 city for economic development. 

- Named by Texas Business Magazine as one of the “Best Run Cities in Texas.”  

- Increase in commercial building permits in excess of 1,000% over previous year. 
- Lowest crime rate of any major city in the Dallas-Fort Worth Metroplex. 

City of Garland, Texas – City Manager 
November 1991 to June 1994 

 City Manager of this rapidly growing city, which owns and operates an electric
production and distribution system, a regional wastewater treatment system, a regional
landfill, and a heliport, and offers a variety of social services and strong cultural arts.
The ninth largest city in Texas, Garland’s population was in excess of 220,000 with over
2,300 employees, and an annual operating and capital budget in excess of $350 million.

 Hired to take this very traditional manufacturing-based community and rapidly position
it as a statewide leader, transforming its one-dimensional image and reputation as a
blue-collar suburb into that of a leading first tier city.

City of Plano, Texas – Assistant City Manager, Assistant to the City Manager 
November 1986 to November 1991 

 Served in a variety of capacities in this rapidly growing, premier city, including: Assistant
City Manager of Community Services, Assistant City Manager of Administration, Acting
Assistant City Manager for Development, and Assistant to the City Manager.

 Significant accomplishments while with Plano include:

- Designed a program that doubled mid- and upper-level management minority 
and female representation in four years. 

- Designed a Disadvantaged Business Purchasing Program that dramatically 
increased minority business contracts without quotas. 

- Served as Project Manager for a $19.5 million Civic Center Project, bringing it in 
$2 million under budget. 

- Assisted in negotiating details of the JC Penney headquarters relocation from 
New York City to Plano. 

122



Ronald Mack Holifield  Page 3 of 7 

- Created Plano’s first Convention/Visitor’s Bureau that exceeded year six sales 
and bookings projections in the first year. 

- Initiated Plano’s first Neighborhood Integrity Program. 
- Creatively designed construction projects for EDS and JC Penney to achieve a 

$750,000 sales tax windfall for the city. 
- Designed an Employee Wellness Program which resulted in participant health 

care costs equaling only one-third those of non-participants. 

City of Farmersville, Texas – City Manager 
1984 to 1986  

 First City Manager of this full service city, which operates an electric distribution system
and two city lakes.

City of Sundown, Texas – City Manager 
1982 to 1984  

 City Manager of this full service city, which operates a natural gas distribution system
and a municipal golf course.

City of Lubbock, Texas – City Administrative Intern to the City Manager 
1981 to 1982  

 Administrative Intern to the City Manager of this major city, which operates a
municipally owned electric utility.

EDUCATION 

 Texas Tech University – Masters of Public Administration

 Abilene Christian University – Bachelor of Arts, Government Major / Student Association
President

MAJOR AWARDS for Municipal Organizations Managed 

 3CMA Economic Development Marketing Campaign Savvy Award Certificate of
Excellence for International Development and Local Realtor Ads - Garland

 International Association of Chiefs of Police, Excellence in Policing Award for
Neighborhood Service Team - Garland

 Finalist, Governor’s Environmental Excellence Award - Garland

 Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission Award for Excellence - Garland

 American Society of Landscape Architects, Texas Chapter, Environmental Stewardship
Award for Garland’s Spring Creek Forest Preserve - Garland

123



Ronald Mack Holifield  Page 4 of 7 

 Dallas Business Journal, “Metroplex Real Estate Deal of the Year (Existing Building),” –
Garland

 Dallas Business Journal “Metroplex Real Estate Deal of the Year (New Construction),” -
Garland

 GFOA Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation, every year, 1987-1996

 GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, 1987-1991

CURRENT PROFESSIONAL PARTICIPATION 

 ICMA Task Force on Inclusiveness

 National Institute for Governmental Purchasing Talent Management Council

 Missouri Municipal League Governance Institute Fellow

 Member, Texas Fire Chief’s Association Best Practices Recognition Board

 Author, “the 16%” weekly blog, 2013-present

 Author, “Fourth Dimension Leadership”, 2010

 Member, International City/County Management Association (ICMA), 1982-present

 Member, Texas City Management Association (TCMA), 1982-present

 Member,  Texas Municipal Human Resources Association, 2006 - present

 Member, Governmental Finance Officers Association, 2010 - present

PREVIOUS PROFESSIONAL PARTICIPATION 

 Author of a Monthly Column in Texas City Manager Magazine on “Innovations that
Make a Difference”

 ICMA Task Force on Employment Agreements

 ICMA Management Innovations Panel

 ICMA Conference Evaluation Committee

 ICMA/Innovation Groups National Management Practices Panel

 Author, “The Public Executive’s Complete Guide to Employment Agreements”, book
published by ICMA and the Innovation Groups

 Texas Innovation Groups Executive Committee

 Author, “Crossing Department Lines – Garland’s Neighborhood Service Team”, article
published in the International Association of Chiefs of Police National Journal

 Author, “Redefining Thinking, Structures and the Rules of the Game in Government”,
article published in Texas Town and City Magazine

 Contributor, State Comptroller Bob Bullock’s handbook for municipalities: “Standard
Financial Management System for Texas Cities”

 Texas Municipal League Advisory Committee on Legislative Affairs – Personnel Issues

 TCMA Ethics and Professional Standards Committee

 TCMA Annual Conference Committee

124



Ronald Mack Holifield  Page 5 of 7 

SPEAKING ENGAGEMENTS 

 National Forum for Black Public Administrators DFW Chapter Conference, 2014

 Public Purchasing Association of North Texas, 2014

 Missouri Intergovernmental Risk Association Annual Conference, 2014

 Texas City Management Association Annual Conference, 2014

 American Public Works Association Midwest Annual Conference, 2014

 Governmental Finance Officers Association Annual Conference, 2014

 National Public Employers Labor Relations Association Annual Conference, 2014

 North Texas Municipal Clerks Association, 2014

 National Institute for Governmental Purchasing Lone Star Conference, 2014

 Missouri Municipal Clerks and Finance Officers Association Annual Conference, 2014

 South Texas City Manager’s Association 2014

 Urban Counties Annual Conference, 2014

 SGR Annual Conference on Creating a Learning Organization, 2014

 National Public Employers Labor Relations Association Annual Conference, 2013

 National Parks and Recreation Annual Conference 2013

 Missouri Municipal League Annual Conference, 2013

 Washington City/County Management Association Annual Conference, 2013

 Nebraska City/County Management Association Annual Conference, 2013

 Tennessee Municipal League Annual Conference, 2013

 Texas City Manager’s Association Annual Conference, 2013

 Government Finance Officers Association of Texas Annual Conference, 2013

 American Public Works Association Regional Conference, 2013

 Kansas Public Works Association Annual Conference, 2013

 Texas Recreation and Parks Association Annual Conference, 2013

 Texas Public Purchasing Association Annual Conference, 2013

 Colorado City County Management Association Annual Conference, 2013

 Kansas City County Management Association Annual Conference, 2012

 National Parks and Recreation Management School, 2012

 Texas City Management Study Group, 2012

 International City County Management Association Annual Conference, 2012

 National Procurement Institute, 2012

 Missouri Municipal League Annual Conference, 2012

 Texas City Clerk’s Association Annual School, 2012

 Texas County Clerk’s Association Annual School, 2012

 Kansas Governmental Finance Officers Association Annual Conference, 2011

 Texas City Management Association Annual Conference, 2010

 Public Risk Management Assoc. Annual Conference, 2010

 Oklahoma City Manager’s Association Annual Conference, 2010

 Northwest States City Management Association Annual Conference, 2010

 Ohio City/County Management Assoc. Annual Conference, 2009

 West Texas City Management Association Annual Training Conference, 2009

125



Ronald Mack Holifield  Page 6 of 7 

 Texas Municipal League Regional Meeting, 2009

 Texas Municipal Human Resources Association Annual Nuts and Bolts Conference, 2009

 East Texas City Management Association Annual Training Conference, 2008

 East Texas City Management Association Annual Training Conference, 2007

 International City/County Management Association Conference, 2006

 Certified Public Manager Program, 2006

 North Texas Municipal Clerks Association Management Institute, 2006

 City of Carrollton, Texas, Leadership Academy, 2006

 City of Arlington, Texas, Leadership Academy, 2005

 Urban Management Assistants of North Texas Annual One Day Conference, 2005

 Leadership Southwest, 2004, 2006, 2008

 International City/County Management Association Annual Conference, 2003

 Keynote Speaker (along with the Deputy Secretary of Defense), Government Electronics
and Information Technology Association Information Technology and Defense
Electronics Forecast Annual Conference – State and Local Homeland Security, 2002

 Transforming Local Government Conference, 2001

 National Association of Counties Annual Conference, 1999

 World Services Congress – Building Public Private Partnerships, 1999

 Central Texas City Management Association, 1999

 Carolinas-Virginia Hospital Trustee/Physician Conference, 1999

 Quorum Ohio CEO Conference, 1999

 Chairman of the Board In-Service Training, Quorum,  1999

 Quorum Foundations for the Future, 1999

 Quorum Chairman of the Board Training, 1998

 International City County Management Association, 1998

 Iowa Municipal Management Institute, 1997

 Quorum Foundations for the Future, 1997

 Quorum Board of Trustees Training, 1997

 Urban Management Assistants of North Texas, Conference of Minority Public
Administrators, and National Forum for Black Public Administrators Workshop – 1996

 Innovation Groups Regional Conference, 1996

 Texas City Management Association Annual Conference, 1996

 Florida City/County Management Assoc. Annual Conference, 1996

 North Carolina City/County Management Association Annual Conference, 1996

 Quorum Foundations for the Future, 1996

 International City/County Management Association Conference, 1996

 Texas City Management Association Conference, 1995

 Kansas Innovation Groups Regional Workshop, 1995

 City-County Communications & Marketing Association National Conference, 1994

 National League of Cities Innovations in Government National Conference, 1994

 Innovation Groups Regional Workshop, 1994

 Texas Foundation for the Improvement of Local Government Institute, 1994

126



Ronald Mack Holifield  Page 7 of 7 

OTHER HONORS AND ACTIVITIES 

 American MENSA member

 Distinguished Alumni, Abilene Christian University

 Abilene Christian University Public Administration Visiting Committee

 Texas Tech University, Center for Public Service, Alumni of the Year

127



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 5 

128



Project Methodology 

SGR provides a comprehensive scope of executive search services, and each executive search 
service contract is tailored to meet the client’s specific needs. However, a full service executive 
search typically entails the following: 

1. Organizational Inquiry and Analysis

 Outline Project Plan and Timeline

 Individual Interviews with Search Committee/ Key Personnel/ Community Leaders (if desired)

 Development of Position Profile and Professional Production of Brochure

2. Advertising and Recruitment

 Ad Placement

 Recruitment Video (optional)

 Social Media and Marketing of Position

 Ongoing Communication with Applicants and Prospects

3. Initial Screening and Review

 Management of Applications

 Evaluation and Triage of Resumes

 Search Committee Briefing to Facilitate Selection of Semifinalists

4. Evaluation of Semifinalist Candidates

 Personal Interaction with Semifinalist Candidates

 Written Questionnaire

 Recorded Online Interviews

 Media Search Stage 1

 Semifinalist Briefing Books

 Search Committee Briefing to Select Finalists

5. Evaluation of Finalist Candidates

 Comprehensive Media Search Stage 2

 Comprehensive Background Investigation Report

 DiSC Management Assessment

 I-OPT Assessment

 Finalist Briefing Books

 Press Release (if desired)

 Stakeholder Engagement (if desired)

6. Interview Process

 First Year Game Plan (if desired)

 Assessment Exercise

 Conduct Interviews

 Deliberations

 Reference Checks

7. Negotiations and Hiring Process

 Determine the Terms of an Offer

 Negotiate Terms and Conditions of Employment

 Transition Strategy

8. Post-Hire Team Building Workshop (supplemental service, if desired)
 . I-OPT Team Building Workshop 

129



Step 1: Organizational Inquiry and Analysis 
In the Organizational Inquiry and Analysis Stage, SGR devotes tremendous energy to 
understanding your organization’s unique culture, environment, and goals to ensure you get 
the right match for your particular needs.  

Outline Project Plan and Timeline 
SGR will meet with the client at the outset of the project to finalize the search plans and 
timeline. At this time, SGR will also request that the client provide additional information about 
the community, organization, and position. Information requested will include general 
information and available resources about the community, school district, economic vitality, 
political leadership, organization, strategic plan, governing body goals and objectives, budget 
information, major projects, job description, salary range, benefits package, etc. 

Individual Interviews with Search Committee and Key Personnel (if desired) 
Fully understanding your organizational needs is the most critical part of conducting a 
successful executive search. SGR conducts individual interviews with the Search Committee, key 
staff, and/or direct reports to find out more about the position, special considerations, and the 
political environment. These interviews last approximately 30 minutes to one hour each and 
identify individual issues that may affect the dynamics of the search, as well as develop a 
composite understanding of the organization’s preferences. This process helps with 
organizational buy-in and will assist us in developing the Position Profile as we look for any 
significant staff issues or major disconnects that may not otherwise be apparent. 

Development of Position Profile Brochure 
Following the individual interviews and internal analysis, SGR will develop a draft Position 
Profile Brochure that is reviewed and revised in partnership with your organization until 
everyone agrees it accurately reflects the sought-after leadership and management 
characteristics. A sample brochure is included with this proposal document. 

Step 2: Advertising and Recruitment 
The Advertising and Recruitment stage includes ad placement, email distribution of the Position 
Profile, responding to inquiries about the position, and ongoing communication with applicants 
and prospects. 

Ad Placement/ Social Media and Marketing of Position 
The Executive Recruiter and client work together, to determine the best ways to advertise and 
recruit for the position. Ads are typically placed in various state and national publications, 
targeting the most effective venues for reaching qualified candidates for that particular 
position.  

SGR’s preferred strategy is to rely on email distribution of the Position Profile brochure to key 
opinion leaders and potential prospects across the country. The position will be announced in 
our “10 in 10” e-newsletter, which reaches over 75,000 local government professionals, in 

130



addition to a targeted email announcement to specific professional categories and/or areas of 
the country. By utilizing an email distribution strategy, these brochures tend to “get legs” of 
their own, resulting in a very high penetration rate at minimal cost. 

SGR will utilize Facebook, Twitter, personal phone calls, personal emails, and LinkedIn to 
promote the position. This communication is both to solicit high potential candidates and to 
encourage key local government professionals to share information within their professional 
circles. 

Recruitment Video 
SGR offers the option of developing a custom video recruitment ad, which can be posted on 
YouTube and linked to other media sources. It is estimated that job postings with video icons 
are viewed 12 percent more than traditional job postings, and that the job application rate 
increases by an average of 34 percent when video is added. A sample SGR recruitment video for 
the City of Owasso, Oklahoma, can be viewed at: http://bit.ly/OwassoOKCM.  

Ongoing Communication with Applicants and Prospects 
SGR communicates with all applicants on a frequent and ongoing basis to ensure applicants stay 
enthusiastic about the opportunity. Outstanding prospects often will not submit a resume until 
they have done considerable homework on the available position. A significant number of 
inquiries will be made, and it is essential that the executive search firm be prepared to answer 
those questions with fast, accurate, and complete information, and in a warm and personal 
manner. This is one of the first places a prospective candidate will develop an impression about 
organization, and it is an area in which SGR excels. SGR also utilizes Google Alerts for each client 
organization and provide updates to our Executive Recruiters and applicants of any references 
made regarding the client organization in various media outlets. 

Step 3: Initial Screening and Review 
This stage of the executive search involves managing the flow of resumes, and screening and 
evaluating resumes. 

Management of Applications 
Handling the flow of resumes is an ongoing and significant process. On the front end, it involves 
tracking resumes and promptly acknowledging their receipt. It also involves timely and personal 
responses to any questions or inquiries.  

Evaluation and Triage of Resumes 
SGR uses a triage process to identify high probability, medium probability, and low probability 
candidates. The triage ranking is focused on overall assessment based on interaction with the 
applicant, qualifications, any known issues regarding previous work experience, and evaluation 
of cultural fit with the organization.  

In contrast with the triage process described above, which focuses on subjective assessment of 
the resumes and how the candidates present themselves, we also evaluate each candidate to 

131

http://bit.ly/OwassoOKCM


make sure that the minimum requirements of the position are met, and which of the preferred 
requirements are met. This sifting process assesses how well candidates’ applications fulfill the 
recruitment criteria outlined in the Position Profile. 

Search Committee Briefing / Selection of Semifinalist Candidates 
At this briefing, SGR will provide a comprehensive progress report via PowerPoint presentation 
and will facilitate the selection of approximately 10-12 semifinalists. The presentation will 
include summary information on the process so far, the candidate pool overall, and any trends 
or issues that have arisen, as well as a briefing on each candidate and their credentials. No 
other firm offers this level of reporting detail and transparency. 

Step 4: Evaluation of Semifinalist Candidates 
Reviewing resumes is an important and valuable step in the executive search process. However, 
the simple fact is that resumes can be misleading. They tell you nothing about the individual’s 
personal qualities or his/her ability to get along with other people. Resumes can also 
exaggerate or inflate accomplishments or experience. SGR’s responsibility is to go more in-
depth than the resume to ensure that those candidates who continue in the process are truly 
outstanding. 

Personal Interaction with Semifinalist Candidates 
SGR’s goal is to have a clear understanding of the person behind the resume and what makes 
him/her an outstanding prospect for you. The evaluation of semifinalist candidates includes 
follow-up by phone when appropriate to ask any questions about underlying issues.  

Written Questionnaire 
SGR will ask semifinalist candidates to complete a comprehensive written exercise designed to 
provide greater insight into candidate thought processes and communication styles. SGR’s 
written instrument is custom-designed around the priorities identified by the Search 
Committee and usually includes about 20 questions focusing on 5-6 key areas of particular 
interest to the client. This written instrument will be included with the semifinalist briefing 
book with the cover letters and resumes. 

Recorded Online Interviews 
SGR offers recorded online videos of candidates answering pre-recorded questions. This 
provides a very insightful, efficient and cost effective way to gain additional insights to utilize in 
selecting finalists you want to come in for live interviews. The online interviews allow the 
Search Committee to evaluate technological competence, demeanor, verbal communication 
skills, and on-camera presence. Online interviews also convey to candidates that the 
organization is using leading edge technology in its business processes and provide an 
opportunity for the Search Committee to ask candidates questions on specific topics of special 
interest. Online interviews are emailed to the Search Committee for viewing prior to selection 
of finalist candidates. 

132



Media Search Stage 1 
Stage 1 of our media search involves a comprehensive review of all newspaper articles on the 
candidate in major news outlets within the previous two years. These media reports at the 
semifinalist stage have proven helpful by uncovering issues that were not previously disclosed 
by prospective candidates. The Executive Recruiter will communicate any “red flags” to the 
Search Committee immediately upon discovery. 

Search Committee Briefing / Selection of Finalist Candidates 
Prior to this briefing, SGR will provide each member of the Search Committee with a briefing 
book on the semifinalist candidates. The briefing book will include written questionnaires, 
online interviews, and any additional information obtained about the candidate. The purpose of 
this briefing is to facilitate narrowing the list to 4-6 finalists who will be invited for personal 
interviews.  

Step 5: Evaluation of Finalist Candidates 
Once the finalists have been selected, SGR will coordinate with you to schedule interviews. 

Comprehensive Media Search Stage 2 
These Stage 2 Media Reports are compiled by utilizing our proprietary media search process 
including variations of the candidates’ names and states/cities in which they have lived or 
worked, and searches of local papers where the candidates have lived or worked. We also 
search social media sites. The Media Reports typically range from 20-300 pages per candidate 
and may include news articles, links to video interviews, blog posts by residents, etc. The Media 
Reports are put into an easy-to-read format and recorded onto flash drives for the Search 
Committee. The candidate’s name is highlighted each time it appears. 

These media reports have proven helpful to Search Committees by uncovering issues that were 
not previously disclosed by candidates and that would likely not have been discovered through 
an automated search or Google search, typically used by other search firms. The Media Reports 
also give the Search Committee an overview of the type and extent of press coverage that a 
candidate has experienced over the course of his/her career. 

Comprehensive Background Investigation Reports 
Through SGR’s partnership with FirstCheck, a licensed private investigations company, we are 
able to provide our clients with comprehensive background screening reports that include 
detailed information such as:  

 Social Security number trace

 Address history

 Driving history/motor vehicle records

 Credit report

 Federal criminal search

 National criminal search

 County wants and warrants

133



 Global homeland security search

 Sex offender registry search

 State criminal search (for current and previous states of residence)

 County criminal search (for every county in which candidate has lived or worked)

 County civil search (for every county in which the candidate has lived or worked)

 Education verification
A sample Background Investigation Report is included with this proposal document. 

Assessments (DiSC and I-OPT) 
It is critical for you to know as much as you can about your new executive before hiring 
him/her. Historically, employers have depended upon resumes, references, and interviews as 
sources of information for making hiring decisions. In practice, these sources have often proved 
inadequate for consistently selecting successful employees. The use of assessments has 
become essential for employers who want to place the right people in the right positions.  

SGR uses a DiSC Management assessment tool, which is among the most validated and reliable 
personal assessment tools available. The DiSC Management Profile analyzes and reports 
comprehensively on the candidate’s preferences in five vital areas: management style, directing 
and delegating, motivation, development of others, and working with his/her own manager.  

The I-OPT Assessment is a tool that measure how a person perceives and processes 
information. How someone perceives and processes information has a profound impact on 
what motivates a person, how a person sees an issue, and how that person interacts with 
others on team projects. Understanding one’s own I-OPT Profile makes it possible to be more 
self-aware. Understanding another’s I-OPT Profile helps predict how he or she will approach 
any given situation. (In a City Manager search, this will include I-OPT reports of the finalist 
candidates, direct reports, and city council. In department head searches, this will include I-OPT 
reports of the finalist candidates, City Manager, Assistant City Manager, peer department 
heads, and direct reports.) 

Press Release (if desired)  
Until you have “sealed the deal,” you need to be cautious in order to avoid the embarrassment 
of a premature announcement that does not work out. You also want to try to notify all senior 
staff and unsuccessful candidates before they read about it in the newspaper. SGR will assist 
with this coordination and with drafting any announcements or press releases. 

Stakeholder Engagement (if desired) 
At the discretion of the Search Committee, we will work closely with your organization to 
engage stakeholders in the recruitment process. Our recommendation is that we design a 
specific stakeholder engagement process after we learn more about the organization and the 
community. Different approaches work best in different communities. Below is an array of 
options we have used in the past, but we will collaborate with your organization to determine 

134



which option, or combination of options, will be the most effective for the unique needs of the 
organization.  

 Interviewing community leaders at the outset of the search;

 Holding a public forum for citizen engagement at the outset of the search;

 Facilitating a Q&A series in the local newspaper with finalist candidates. This would run
a week or two prior to the interviews;

 Utilize a citizen committee to conduct the early stage candidate screening and then turn
over a semifinalist list to the City Council;

 Community leader reception;

 Meet and greet;

 Search Committee and key community leader dinner meeting;

 “Round Robin” forum meetings with various community groups during a multi-day
interview process; and,

 Site visits by citizen committee members to the finalist candidates’ communities to
report back.

Step 6: Interview Process 
Once the finalists have been selected, SGR will coordinate with you to schedule interviews. 

First Year Game Plan (if desired) 
“First Year Game Plan” process where finalist candidates are provided with elected official, key 
staff, and community leader contact information, and the candidates are given free rein to 
make contact with all of them in advance and use those insights to develop a “first year game 
plan” based on what they know so far. Feedback is received from the key contacts on their 
impressions of the finalist candidates from the interactions with the candidates prior to the 
interviews. 

Assessment Exercise 
This is a proprietary assessment exercise customized to your search. Our assessment exercise 
provides the opportunity to evaluate candidates’ written and interpersonal communication 
skills, as well as critical analysis skills. 

Conduct Interviews 
SGR will schedule interviews at a date/time convenient to your organization. This process can 
be as simple, or as complex, as your organization desires. SGR will help you determine the 
specifics you need. SGR will prepare sample interview questions and will participate throughout 
the process to make it smooth and efficient. 

Deliberations 
At this meeting, SGR will facilitate a discussion about the finalist interviews and assist the 
Search Committee in making a decision on whether to bring back one or more candidates for a 
second interview. 

135



Reference Checks 
Our reference checks are the most comprehensive in the industry. We place very little 
confidence on the references provided by the candidates since those can be expected to be 
biased. Instead, we will typically talk to as many as 20 professional contacts for a given 
candidate including elected officials, direct supervisors, direct reports, internal organizational 
peers, professional peers in other organizations, civic leaders, and media representatives. We 
always seek out the candidate’s greatest critics and greatest fans to ensure a complete, yet 
balanced, perspective and overview of each candidate.  

Step 7: Negotiations and Hiring Process 
Once the organization is ready to make an offer, SGR can provide additional assistance to the 
client in the following areas. 

Determine the Terms of an Offer 
Upon request, SGR will provide comparative data for selected organizations, appropriate 
employment agreement language, and other similar information to assist you in determining an 
appropriate offer to extend to your candidate of choice. 

Negotiate Terms and Conditions of Employment 
SGR will assist to whatever degree you deem appropriate in conducting negotiations with the 
chosen candidate. SGR will determine and define any special needs or concerns of the chosen 
candidate, including anything that could be a complicating factor. SGR is experienced and 
prepared to help craft win-win-solutions to negotiation “log-jams.” 

Transition Strategy 
There are a variety of transition issues when hiring a new executive. SGR will brief the client on 
transition issues that need to be addressed and will provide a recommendation on what actions 
to take. Together, we will create a transition strategy that builds the foundation for a successful 
long-term relationship. 

Step 8: Post-Hire Team Building Analysis (supplemental service) 

SGR can provide a customized team building workshop after you hire for the position. SGR 
utilizes I-OPT, which is a validated measurement tool that shows how a person perceives and 
processes information. Because people “see” different things when they assess a situation, they 
are motivated to take various courses of action, so understanding you and your colleagues’ I-
OPT Profiles will enable you to work much more effectively as a team. Price is $4,000 for a half-
day onsite workshop, plus travel expenses, and $150 per person for I-OPT reports (if not 
previously completed as part of the search process), which include Individual Analysis Report, 
Emotional Impact Management Report, Change Management Report, and Team Management 
Report. Two-Person Reports can be ordered for an additional fee of $50 per report.  

136



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 6 

137



Timeline (Standard Search) 

Task Weeks 

 Contract Executed
 Outline Project Plan, Timeline
 Individual Interviews with Search Committee/ Key Personnel/

Community Leaders (if desired)

Weeks 1 

 Development of Position Profile Brochure
 Search Committee Reviews and Approves Brochure

Weeks 2-3 

 Ad Placements
 Accept Applications
 Email Distribution and Marketing of Position Profile

Weeks 4-7 

 Triage and Scoring of Resumes Week 8 

 Search Committee Briefing (Slide Presentation)/Select Semifinalists
 Candidates Complete Questionnaire and Online Interviews
 Stage 1 Media Searches

Week 9 

 Deliverable: Semifinalist Briefing Books Week 10 

 Search Committee Briefing/Select Finalist Candidates Week 11 

 Comprehensive Media Search Stage 2
 Comprehensive Background Screening Report
 Candidates Complete DiSC Management Assessment
 Candidates Complete I-OPT Assessment

Weeks 12-13 

 Deliverable: Finalist Briefing Books Week 14 

 Stakeholder Engagement (if desired)
 Conduct Interviews
 Deliberations
 Reference Checks
 Negotiations
 Announcement/Press Release

Week 15 

*Each search timeline is different based on the particular needs of the organization. SGR has completed searches
in as little as 45 days, although this is not the recommended approach. We have also extended searches well 
beyond 15 weeks, based on the preference of the client. 

138



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 7 

139



Project Cost 

All-Inclusive Not-to-Exceed Maximum Price 

Professional Services Fee: $ 18,500 
Not-to-Exceed Expenses: $   8,500 
All-Inclusive, Not-to-Exceed Maximum Price: $ 27,000* 

Not-to-Exceed Expense Items (Included in Pricing Above) 
SGR considers incidentals to be covered by the professional services fee, and we do not bill the 
client for any expenses except for those explicitly detailed herein. 

Not-to-Exceed Expense items include: 

 Professional production of a high quality brochure. This brochure (typically 3-4 pages) is
produced by SGR’s graphic designer for a flat fee of $1,500.

 Ad placement in appropriate professional publications, including trade journals and
websites, and related advertising to announce the position. This is billed at actual cost,
with no markup for overhead.

 Printing of documents and materials. Reproduction costs for reports and briefing books
presented to the client at 23 cents per copy, plus the cost of binders/binding. Electronic
discs are billed at $5 each. Flash drives are billed at $10 each.

 Online interviews. There is a cost of $200 for each recorded online interview. SGR
recommends conducting online interviews at the semifinalist stage (up to 12
semifinalists).

 Psychometric Assessments. There is a cost of $150 per candidate for the DiSC
Management Profile. There is a cost of $150 per candidate for the I-OPT Assessment as
well (up to 6 finalists).

 Comprehensive Media Reports – Stage 2. There is a cost of $350 per candidate. SGR
recommends conducting Stage 2 media searches on the finalist candidates (up to 6
finalists).

 Comprehensive Background Investigation Reports. There is a cost of $300 per candidate
for comprehensive background screening reports prepared by our licensed private
investigations provider. SGR recommends conducting comprehensive background
investigations on the finalist candidates (up to 6 finalists).

 Travel and related costs for the Project Manager incurred for the benefit of the client.
Meals are billed back at a per diem rate of $10 for breakfast, $15 for lunch, and $25 for
dinner. Mileage will be reimbursed at the current IRS rate. All other travel-related
expenses are billed back at actual cost, with no markup for overhead.

140



*Supplemental Services
The supplemental services listed below are not included in the maximum price above. These 
include: 

 Candidate Travel. Candidates are typically reimbursed directly by the client for travel
expenses. If the client prefers a different arrangement for candidate travel, SGR will be
glad to accommodate the client’s wishes.

 Recruitment video. SGR offers the option of a customized recruitment video for a cost of
$5,000.

 Post-Hire Team Building Analysis. A half-day onsite workshop is $4,000, plus travel
expenses, and $150 per person for I-OPT reports (if reports were not previously
completed as part of the search process), which include Individual Analysis Report,
Emotional Impact Management Report, Change Management Report, and Team
Management Report. Two-Person Reports can be ordered for an additional fee of $50
per report.

 Site Visits to Communities of Finalist Candidates. If desired, the Project Manager will
travel to the communities of the finalist candidates to conduct onsite visits. Site visits
will be charged at a day rate of $1,000 per day, plus travel expenses.

 In the unexpected event the client shall request that unusual out of pocket expenses be
incurred, said expenses will be reimbursed at the actual cost with no mark up for
overhead.

 If the client desires any supplemental services not mentioned in this section, an
estimate of the cost and hours to be committed will be provided at that time, and no
work shall be done without approval. Supplemental services will be billed out at $250
per hour.

Billing 
Professional fees for the search are billed in three equal installments during the course of the 
search. The initial installment is billed after the Organizational Inquiry and Analysis is completed 
and the position profile has been created. The second installment is billed when semifinalists 
are selected. The final installment is billed at the conclusion of the search. Expense 
(reimbursable) items and supplemental services will be billed with each of the three 
installments, as appropriate. 

141



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 8 

142



Provision of Service Guarantee 

SGR guarantees that you will be satisfied with the results of the search process, or we will 
repeat the entire process at no additional professional fee until you find a candidate that you 
desire. Additionally, if you select a candidate who resigns or is released within 24 months of 
their hire date, SGR will repeat the process at no additional professional fee to the client. We 
also guarantee that we will not directly solicit a candidate we bring to you for another job. 

143



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 9 

144



References 

Doug Schulze, City Manager 
City of Bainbridge Island, Washington (pop. 
21,000) 
Email: dschulze@bainbridgewa.gov 
Phone: 206-780-8626 

Jennifer Fadden, City Manager 
City of Colleyville, Texas (pop. 24,000) 
Email: jfadden@colleyville.com  
Phone: 817-503-1116 

Jon Amundson, Assistant City Manager 
City of Richland, Washington (pop. 47,000) 
Email: jamundson@ci.richland.wa.us 
Phone: 509-942-7380 

Lynn Barboza, Human Resources Manager 
City of Las Vegas, Nevada (pop. 567,000) 
Email: lbarboza@lasvegasnevada.gov 
Phone: 702-229-4879 

Matt Mueller, Town Manager 
Town of Little Elm, Texas (pop. 5,100) 
Email: mmueller@littleelm.org    
Phone: 214-975-0405 

Passion Hayes, Director of Human Resources 
Town of Addison, Texas (pop. 15,000) 
Email: phayes@addisontx.gov 
Phone: 972-450-2819 

Ronnie C. Kidd, Managing Director for 
Administration 
City of Abilene, Texas (pop. 117,000) 
Email: Ronnie.Kidd@abilenetx.com 
Phone: 325-676-6469 

Shanna Sims-Bradish, Assistant City Manager 
City of Richardson, Texas (pop. 103,000) 
Email: shanna.sims@cor.gov  
Phone: 972-744-4210 

145

mailto:dschulze@bainbridgewa.gov
mailto:jfadden@colleyville.com
mailto:jamundson@ci.richland.wa.us
mailto:lbarboza@lasvegasnevada.gov
mailto:mmueller@littleelm.org
mailto:phayes@addisontx.gov
mailto:Ronnie.Kidd@abilenetx.com
mailto:shanna.sims@cor.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 10 

146



Recent City Manager and Deputy/Assistant City Manager Searches 

2015 

City/Town Manager 

 Abilene, Texas (pop. 118,000)

 Altus, Oklahoma (pop. 19,000)

 Alvin, Texas (pop. 23,000)

 Arcadia, Florida (pop. 7,500)*

 Azle, Texas (pop. 11,500) – in process

 Baytown, Texas (pop. 70,000)

 Ballwin, Missouri (pop. 30,000)

 Bedford, Texas (pop. 49,000)

 Bridgeport, Texas (pop. 6,000)

 Casper, Wyoming (53,500) – in process

 Georgetown, Texas (pop. 50,000)

 Granbury, Texas (pop. 6,800)

 Guthrie, Oklahoma (pop. 10,000)

 Kaufman, Texas (pop. 8,900)

 Lamesa, Texas (pop. 9,300)

 Missouri City, Texas (pop. 74,000) – in process

 Montgomery, Texas (pop. 600)

 Muskegon Heights, Michigan (pop. 11,500) – in process

 Sealy, Texas (pop. 6,000) – in process

Deputy/Assistant City Manager 

 Amarillo, Texas, ACM (pop. 195,000) – in process

 Bellevue, Washington, DCM (126,600) – in process

 Fort Worth, Texas, ACM (pop. 790,000)

 Waco, Texas, ACM (pop. 129,000)

2014 

City/Town Manager 

 Chapel Hill, Tennessee (pop. 1,500)*

 Converse, Texas (pop. 19,500)*

 Duncanville, Texas (pop. 36,400)

 Fate, Texas (pop. 7,000)

 Galveston, Texas (pop. 56,000)*

 Joshua, Texas (pop. 6,000)

 Kilgore, Texas (pop. 13,000)

 Kyle, Texas (pop. 30,500)

 Lindale, Texas (pop. 5,000)

 Miami, Oklahoma (pop. 13,500)

 Nolensville, Tennessee (pop. 3,100)*

 Port Arthur, Texas (pop. 56,700)

 Stephenville, Texas (pop. 17,400)

 Tyler, Texas (pop. 98,800) 147



Deputy/Assistant City Manager 

 Addison, Texas, DCM (pop. 15,700)

 Denison, Texas, ACM (pop. 24,000)

 El Paso, Texas, DCM-Transportation and Public Works (672,000)*

 Manhattan, Kansas, ACM (pop. 56,000)*

 Plainview, Texas, ACM (pop. 3,200)*

2013 

City/Town Manager 

 Bellaire, Texas (pop. 17,000)

 Big Spring, Texas (pop. 27,500)*

 Burien, Washington (pop. 49,000)

 Burkburnett, Texas (pop. 10,500)

 College Station, Texas (pop. 98,000)

 Delray Beach, Florida (pop. 62,000)*

 Fate, Texas (pop. 800)

 Ferris, Texas (pop. 2,500)

 Henderson, Texas (pop. 14,000)

 League City, Texas (pop. 88,000)

 Manhattan, Kansas (pop. 56,000)*

 Owasso, Oklahoma (pop. 31, 500)

 Pearland, Texas (pop. 96,000)

 San Marcos, Texas (pop. 50,000)

 Sikeston, Missouri (pop. 16,000)

 South Padre Island, Texas (pop. 3,000)

 Wills Point, Texas (pop. 3,500)

Deputy/Assistant City Manager 

 Amarillo, Texas, ACM- Development Services (pop. 195,000)

 Cape Girardeau, Missouri, ACM-Development Services (pop. 38,500)*

 Cape Girardeau, Missouri, ACM-Administrative Services (pop. 38,500)*

 McKinney, Texas, DCM (pop. 143,000)*

 Orange County, North Carolina, ACM (pop. 138,000)*

2012 

City Manager 

 Argyle, Texas (pop. 3,500)

 Bainbridge Island, Washington (pop. 23,000)

 Breckenridge, Texas (pop. 5,500)

 Burkburnett, Texas (pop. 11,000)

 Canton, Texas (pop. 3,500)

 Cleveland, Texas (pop. 7,600)

 Duncanville, Texas (pop. 39,000)

 Elk City, Oklahoma (pop. 12,000)

 Fate, Texas (pop. 7,500)

 Flower Mound, Texas (pop. 67,500)148



 Guthrie, Oklahoma (pop. 10,500)*

 Hot Springs, Arkansas (pop. 35,000)

 Huntsville, Texas (pop. 39,500)

 Jacksboro, Texas (pop. 4,000)

 La Porte, Texas (pop. 34,500)

 Little Elm, Texas (pop. 28,500)

 Miami, Oklahoma (pop. 13,500)

 Paris, Texas (pop. 25,000)

 Piney Point Village, Texas (pop. 3,200)*

 Rockwall, Texas (pop. 39,000)

 San Angelo, Texas (pop. 95,500)

 Texarkana, Texas (pop. 37,000)

 Van Alstyne, Texas (pop. 3,000)

 Willow Park, Texas (pop. 4,000)

Deputy/Assistant City Manager 

 Brentwood, Tennessee, ACM (pop. 39,000)*

 Cedar Park, Texas, ACM (pop. 58,000)

 Corpus Christi, Texas, ACM (pop. 312,000)

 Victoria, Texas, ACM (pop. 64,000)*

2011 

City Manager 

 Breckenridge, Texas (pop. 5,500)

 College Station, Texas (pop. 98,000)*

 Gonzales, Texas (pop. 7,000)

 Kilgore, Texas (pop. 13,500)

 Van Alstyne, Texas (pop. 3,000)

 Yoakum, Texas (pop. 5,500)

2010 

City Manager 

 Amarillo, Texas (pop. 195,000)

 Burkburnett, Texas (pop. 10,500)

 Denison, Texas (pop. 23,000)

Deputy/Assistant City Manager 

 Midland, Texas, ACM (pop. 119,000)*

*Component based services include, but are not limited to, social media and marketing,
application management, psychometric assessments, background investigation reports, 
media search reports, reference checks, and resume evaluations. 

Population numbers are approximate. Resource: www.City-Data.com 

149

http://www.city-data.com/


Executive Search Recruited Positions 
Administration 
City Manager/City Administrator 
Deputy City Manager 
Assistant City Manager 
Assistant County Manager 
City Secretary 

Administrative Services/Internal Services 
Administrative Services Director 
Manager of Town Services 
Management Assistant 
Chief Performance Officer 
Human Resources/Civil Services Director 
Director of Human Resources & Risk Management 
Intergovernmental Services Manager 
Fleet Equipment Services Manager 
Facilities Services Manager 
Assistant Municipal Garage Superintendent 
Fixed-Base Operator Services 
Arts Director 

Animal Services/Environmental Health 
Animal Services Manager 
Animal Shelter Manager 
Animal Welfare Director 
Animal Welfare Manager 
Chief Medical Examiner 
Environmental Health Director 
Assistant Director of Code Compliance/Animal 
Welfare 
Director of Regional Animal Services 

Development Services 
Community Development Director/Manager 
Development Services Director 
Deputy Director of Development Services 
Tourism and Community Development Director 
Community Services Administrator 
Senior Building Inspector/Building Inspector 
Chief Building Official 
Building Official 
City Inspector 
New Urbanist 

Economic Development, CVB 
Assistant Economic Development Director 
CVB Executive Director 
Downtown Development Director 
Economic Development Director/Executive Director 
Economic Development Corporation President/CEO 

Executive Director of Port & Harbor Commission 
Vice President/Chief Econ Development Officer 

Finance 
Finance Director 
Chief Financial Officer 
Finance Manager 
Assistant Director of Finance 
Finance Controller/Auditor/Comptroller 
Senior Accountant 
Budget Officer 

Information Technology 
IT Director 
Chief Technology Officer/Chief Information Officer 
IT Assistant Director 
IT Manager 
IT Manager (Police Department) 
IT Developer 
GIS Manager 
Senior Software Developer 

Legal 
City Attorney (Individual and Firm) 
First Assistant City Attorney 
Court Administrator 

Library 
Library Director 
Librarian 

Marketing and Community Engagement 
Director of Marketing and Community Engagement 
Community Relations Manager 
Community Services Director 
Public Information Officer 

Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Director of Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Museum 
Museum Director 

Parks and Recreation 
Parks and Recreation Director 
Park Superintendent 
Program Area Manager (Parks) 
Recreation Superintendent 

150



Executive Search Recruited Positions 

Public Safety/EMS/Emergency Management 
Emergency Management Coordinator 
EMS Executive Director 
Executive Director 
Police Chief 
Assistant Police Chief 
Fire Chief 
Assistant Fire Chief 
Lieutenant 

Public Works/Utilities/ Engineering 
City Engineer 
Assistant City Engineer 
Director of Public Services 
Public Works Director 
Public Works Assistant Director 
Water District Executive Director 
Water District General Manager 
Planning & Engineering Director 
Director of Projects & Engineering 
Engineering Project Manager 
City Planner 
Chief Plant Operator 
Assistant Utilities Director 
Director of Utilities 
Engineering Services Manager for Water District 
Assistant General Manager for Water District 

151



Executive Search Clients 

Abilene, Texas 

Addison, Texas 

Alamo Heights, Texas 

Alice, Texas 

Allen, Texas 

Altus, Oklahoma 

Alvin, Texas 

Amarillo, Texas 

Anna, Texas 

Arcadia, Florida 

Argyle, Texas 

Arlington, Texas 

Atlanta, Texas 

Azle, Texas 

Bainbridge Island, 
Washington 

Ballwin, Missouri 

Baytown, Texas 

Bedford, Texas 

Bellaire, Texas 

Big Spring, Texas 

Breckenridge, Texas 

Brentwood, Tennessee 

Bridgeport, Texas 

Burkburnett, Texas 

Burleson, Texas 

Burien, Washington 

Burnet, Texas 

Canton, Texas 

Cape Girardeau, Missouri 

Cedar Hill, Texas 

Cedar Park, Texas 

Chapel Hill, Tennessee 

Chickasha, Oklahoma 

Cleveland, Texas 

College Station, Texas 

Colleyville, Texas 

Colorado River Municipal 
Water District, Texas 

Commerce, Texas 

Converse, Texas 

Copper Canyon, Texas 

Corpus Christi, Texas 

Dalhart, Texas 

Delray Beach, Florida 

Denison, Texas 

Denton, Texas 

Denton County Fresh 
Water Supply District 1-A, 
Texas 

Duncanville, Texas 

El Paso, Texas 

El Paso MPO, Texas 

Elk City, Oklahoma 

Farmers Branch, Texas 

Farmersville, Texas 

Farmington, New Mexico 

Fate, Texas 

Ferris, Texas 

Flower Mound, Texas 

Forney, Texas 

Fort Worth, Texas 

Freeport, Texas 

Friendswood, Texas 

Gainesville, Texas 

Galveston, Texas 

Georgetown, Texas 

Gonzales, Texas 

Granbury, Texas 

Grand Prairie, Texas 

Grapevine, Texas 

Greenville, Texas 

Guthrie, Oklahoma 

Hancock County Port & 
Harbor Commission, 
Mississippi 

Harris County ESD No. 48, 
Texas 

Henderson, Texas 

Hewitt, Texas 

Highland Park, Texas 

Hot Springs, Arkansas 

Hudson Oaks, Texas 

Huntsville, Texas 

Hutto EDC, Texas 

Irving, Texas 

Jacksboro, Texas 

Jacksonville Development 
Corporation, Texas 

Joshua, Texas 

Kaufman, Texas 

Keller, Texas 

Kilgore, Texas 

Kyle, Texas 

La Porte, Texas 

Lakeland, Florida 

Lakeway, Texas 

Lamesa, Texas 

Lancaster, Texas 

Las Vegas, Nevada 

Lawton, Oklahoma  

152



Executive Search Clients 

League City, Texas 

Leander, Texas 

Lenexa, Kansas 

Lindale, Texas 

Little Elm, Texas 

Longview, Texas  

Lorena, Texas 

Los Lunas, New Mexico 

Lufkin, Texas 

Manhattan, Kansas 

McKinney, Texas 

McKinney EDC, Texas 

Memorial Villages PD, 
Texas 

Miami, Oklahoma 

Midland, Texas 

Midlothian, Texas EDC 

Montgomery, Texas 

Mount Pleasant, Texas 

Mustang, Oklahoma 

Nolensville, Tennessee  

North Richland Hills, Texas 

North Texas Emergency 
Communications Center, 
Texas 

Orange County, North 
Carolina 

Overland Park, Kansas 

Owasso, Oklahoma 

Palestine, Texas 

Paris, Texas 

Pearland, Texas 

Piney Point Village, Texas 

Plainview, Texas 

Plano, Texas 

Port Arthur, Texas 

Port Lavaca, Texas 

Prosper, Texas 

Red Oak, Texas 

Richardson, Texas 

Richland, Washington 

Richland Hills, Texas 

Riverbend Water District, 
Texas 

Rockwall, Texas 

Round Rock, Texas 

Rowlett, Texas 

Royse City, Texas 

San Angelo, Texas 

San Marcos/Hays County 
EMS, Texas 

San Marcos, Texas 

Seabrook, Texas 

Seagoville, Texas 

Sealy, Texas 

Shoreline, Washington 

Shreveport, Louisiana 

Sikeston, Missouri 

Socorro, Texas 

Southlake, Texas 

South Padre Island, Texas 

St. Charles, Missouri 

Stephenville, Texas 

Sugar Land, Texas 

Sunny Isles Beach, Florida 

Temple, Texas 

Terrell, Texas 

Texarkana, Texas 

TexAmericas Center 

Thompson’s Station, 
Tennessee 

Tomball, Texas 

Trophy Club, Texas 

Tyler, Texas 

Van Alstyne, Texas 

Victoria, Texas 

Waco, Texas 

Washoe County, Nevada 

Waxahachie, Texas 

Weatherford, Texas 

Westlake, Texas 

West Lake Hills, Texas 

Westworth Village, Texas 

Wheat Ridge, Colorado 

Willow Park, Texas 

Wills Point, Texas 

Yoakum, Texas 

153



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 11 

154



Unsolicited Feedback Regarding SGR’s Performance 

Following are a few unsolicited quotes from emails we have received. This unsolicited feedback 
demonstrates that our practice of using the Golden Rule to determine how we treat everyone 
leaves no doubt in the minds of both clients and candidates that we are truly superior to the 
competition. We do not include names to avoid the suggestion of an endorsement, which is 
prohibited under the ICMA Code of Ethics. 

July 2015: “You have been ‘top notch’ in your communication and willingness to share 

resources.” 

June 2015: “Please allow me to tell you how very much I appreciate your kind and thoughtful e-
mail. Civility and class never go out of style.” 

May 2015: “Thank you for the update. While it may not end positively for me, this has been 
one of the best experiences I have had during my search. I appreciate how [Executive Recruiter] 

and your organization have managed the entire process.” 

April 2015: “I’m very impressed with how well SGR works on recruitment. I really appreciated 

all of the follow-up emails and how much communication you provide. Should any city I work 
for in the future seek an executive recruitment, I would not hesitate to recommend SGR.” 

April 2015: “This is the most informative and personable search communication that I’ve ever 
received from an executive search firm. Kudos to you! I’ve been receiving the notification 

updates.” 

March 2015: “Thanks, [Executive Recruiter]. You and [SGR staff] made it an enjoyable 

experience and I am very pleased with the results. I hope we don’t need your services anytime 
soon, but if we do, I will call you first.] 

January 2015: “Even though it didn’t work out, I appreciate you and your staff at SGR. Very 
professional and helpful; simply the best.” 

November 2014: “It was a pleasure working with you and your team, [Executive 

Recruiter].  SGR is a great organization and I’m very proud to work with you all!” 

November 2014: “Thank you for your time and consideration. The communication received 

during this process was outstanding and very rare to receive in today’s world. Thanks again.” 

October 2014: “Fantastic, you are making this whole process easy, informative and 

pleasant.  Thank you for your attention and patience.” 

September 2014: “Thanks for all your great work. Your team is the best!” 

August 2014: “Amazing customer service. It is so obvious that your whole team really cares and 

is very passionate about what they do. It is the best I have ever experienced.” 

155



August 2014: “Thanks for the great news! My experience during this process has been excellent. 

It can be unnerving to be on this side of the recruitment. You and your team have provided 
excellent communications and updates. Your efforts are greatly appreciated. I am very pleased 

to continue in the process.” 

August 2014: “Thanks so much for the quick response. I just have to ask - do you folks work 

24/7? I get emails from you, [SGR staff] and Ron on the weekends, late at night, early in the 
morning. I must say, I've been in local government a long time and have never experienced a 

firm as responsive, prompt, courteous, and informative you all at SGR. You guys are fantastic!” 

July 2014: “Not the news I was hoping for, but I'm glad you have such a great field of 

candidates. Once again, from my experience, you and your team execute the most professional 
search!” 

July 2014: “I wanted to thank you for the great job that [Executive Recruiter] has done on our 
position. She was responsive to our needs and did a superb job of organizing and presenting the 

candidates. It has made our job much easier in moving forward in the process. It is great to be 

able to work with professionals like [Executive Recruiter] in the difficult task of finding the right 
individuals for our organization.” 

July 2014: “I was very impressed with our meeting and I feel like you were really listening to all 

the concerns and suggestions of the committee. Thank you very much for keeping me posted 

and I look forward to hearing from you soon.” 

July 2014: “Thank you for the professional handling of this search and the communication to 

the candidates. Makes us feel very much appreciated and not just ‘another number’. “ 

July 2014: “Thank you for letting me know the status of the search process. I appreciate the 
informative and timely updates from both you and [SGR staff]. I wasn't familiar with your firm 

prior to this search and am most impressed with the high level of personal service and 

professionalism that I have experienced over the past week. “  

July 2014: “I just want to thank you for the work that [Executive Recruiter] and SGR did on our 
recent Fire Chief search. Once again, you guys knocked it out of the park. [Executive Recruiter] 

was extremely accommodating, extremely accessible and extremely patient. He even indulged 

me when I asked tons of questions. You both are such great guys. I feel privileged to work with 
you guys and consider you friends. Thanks again.” 

July 2014: “I just wanted to take a moment and validate what I am sure you already 
know…your staff is top shelf! I recently went through the [city] [position] search with your 

company and everybody that I worked with at SGR was stellar; it was a pleasure working with 
each of them. [SGR staff] and especially [Executive Recruiter] were true professionals and kept 

me abreast of the process every step of the way with no surprises. It speaks volumes about SGR 

that you can attract and retain such quality individuals.” 

June 2014: “The selection process has ended for me as the [city] has gone with another 

candidate but I wanted to express my thanks to you for the assistance you provided me 

156



during my preparation. The information you provided was valuable and assisted me greatly. 

Thank you again, and I wish you and SGR all the best in the future.” 
 

June 2014: “I can already tell the SGR executive recruitment process is quite an experience. 
You and your team do a great job and I have no doubt you drive additional business through 

your courtesy and responsiveness to candidates. In short, extremely well done!” 

 
June 2014: “Thanks for keeping us all updated...it speaks volumes for SGR's corporate culture 

and your personal integrity. I know that you know full well what we go thru. You guys are 

awesome and no matter the outcome of this process I will chalk it up to another positive 
experience with working with SGR.” 

 
May 2014: “We really appreciate all your help. Note: every candidate complimented [Executive 

Recruiter] and SGR!”  

 
April 2014: “My compliments again to SGR and the [city] on a well-organized, innovative, and 

highly responsive recruitment process.” 

 
March 2014: “I really appreciate all your help from start to finish in our search for a new city 

manager. I will definitely call you the next time we have an opening we need help filling. There 
is no doubt we, as a city, made the right decision to select SGR to bring us quality candidates.” 

 

March 2014: “Just a brief note to thank you both, and particularly [Executive Recruiter], for the 
professional and thorough search effort. Our final selection of [candidate] received unanimous 

support. This result speaks to the merits of the SGR process in recruiting and selecting the kind 

of top talent we were after.” 
 

October 2013: “I cannot begin to thank [SGR] enough for the services that were provided. SGR 
did an incredible job with this search. It ran very smoothly and efficiently. I cannot think of one 

thing that could be improved. Thank you so much!” 

 
October 2013: “Just a short note to thank you for the multiple communications regarding your 

search. You folks are a class act as one rarely hears a thing from a search these days.” 
 

September 2013: “Thank you so much for a superb effort in assisting us in a search for 

[position]. … I would recommend SGR to anyone. Your process is one that is highly likely to 
lead to success, certainly more so than a typical head-hunting outfit.” 

 

September 2013: “This was without a doubt as professional as I have seen. You did an amazing 
job. I look forward to working with you in the future. Thank again.” 

 
September 2013: “Thank you for the professionalism that you brought to this community when 

it was needed the most.” 

 
July 2013: “Just a brief note to say thank-you for considering me for [position]. While I am 

obviously disappointed in the final outcome, I cannot help but view the overall experience 

positively…I would also like to thank you for your professionalism through the process. You are 
a credit to your firm, and do all of us who serve the public a great service.” 

157



July 2013: “On behalf of [Department Head] and our entire HR team, I just want to thank you 
and your team members for making this search such a smooth and easy process for us.” 

June 2013: “I want you to know that [Executive Recruiter] did a fantastic job for us. He got us 

an outstanding list of applicants, made excellent recommendations regarding who we should be 

considering, and it was just a really terrific effort on SGR’s part all the way around. [SGR staff] 
was most helpful during the posting process and wonderful to deal with over the phone. Your 

company added tremendous value to the process.” 

June 2013: “I am impressed with the technology, thoroughness and professionalism of SGR in 

the selection process you’re conducting for [client].” 

May 2013: “THANK YOU FOR ALL YOUR ASSISTANCE! What an AMAZING team at 

SGR… I’m loving this experience working with you all.” 

May 2013: “Just wanted to pass along my sincere THANKS to you and [Executive Recruiter]. 

[SGR’s] efforts to support our search for [position] were extremely professional and meshed well 
with our constrained timeline. We feel confidence that the candidate selected will perform to 

our high level of expectation. Thanks again.” 

April 2013: “It has been a pleasure being considered for the position [with client]. Although not 

chosen for the position, I feel I am better prepared for future interviews (live or recorded) due to 
my interaction with Strategic Government Resources. The level of professionalism shown by 

your entire staff at SGR has been exemplary. Throughout the entire process phone messages 

and emails were returned promptly, enabling me to become more prepared for the interview 
process. If I can be of any assistance to you in the future, please do not hesitate to call upon 

me.” 

March 2013: “…having been part of a few national searches over the past year, I sincerely 

appreciate the prompt and meaningful communication you and your firm embraced in this 
process. It made it a refreshing experience.” 

February 2013: “[Executive Recruiter] and SGR deserve significant credit for not only helping 

us find the best fit for our community but moreover for being an integral component in ensuring 

the [client] has vital human resources necessary to meet [department] challenges ahead and 
excel beyond the goals set before us. For your guidance and expertise, we are truly 

appreciative.” 

January 2013: “Thank you. The fact that you have continually taken the initiative to keep me up 

to date speaks volumes to your ethics and professionalism. Quite honestly, both of these 
qualities have become less evident in the field.” 

December 2012: “Your firm and employees have a level of caring and customer service our 
organization aspires to. You have made excellence of product and service the standard for your 

firm. You guys are one of very few firms (maybe the only one I know of) that has made superior 

customer service its everyday standard to the point where even great customer service would be 
a letdown.” 

158



November 2012: “Thanks for the simple and continuous communications throughout the 
process. I have submitted over 20 applications and you are the only one that has provided 

communication throughout. I truly appreciate the communication in a tough process to find 
employment.” 

November 2012: “I wanted to thank you for an outstanding experience regardless of eventual 
outcome. [The search] was very well done, head and shoulders above any past experience that I 

have had…well done and thanks!” 

September 2012: “I have really enjoyed being able to participate in the recruitment process to 

date. I was especially intrigued with the use of online interview technology…I also really like 
the way you’ve organized the First Year Game Plan exercise. It’s a really neat way for the 

candidates, city staff and council members to get to know one another better before the formal 

interviews take place.” 

September 2012: “Like many in the city manager profession, I have experienced and 

participated in a number of different search processes as a candidate as well as employer. The 
search process for the [client] City Manager position was my first experience with a search 

conducted by SGR. Without question, your process was the most thorough search I have 
experienced in 25 years and dozens of searches. As a candidate, I felt the process challenged me 

to be extremely well-informed about the position and the community. In addition, all SGR 

representatives provided me with accurate, timely and complete information throughout the 
search process. Congratulations and thank you!” 

June 2012: “Again, I want to THANK YOU and your staff I have had the pleasure to work 
with. There definitely is a reason you are swamped with searches. The “Golden Rule” is serving 

SGR well. Please know that [staff members] have all been great and they have certainly helped 
me through this transition.” 

June 2012: “Our organization continues to be delighted with our search results. When we made 
the commitment to take [the department] to the next level we only hope our search would equip 

us with the tools…man, did we get what we were looking for!” 

159



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 12 

160



THE COMMUNITY 
Located in the heart of prestigious West St. Louis County, Ballwin, Missouri is a 
dynamic community of more than 30,000 residents. Covering 10 square miles, the city 
is ideally situated in the St. Louis Metro area with easy access to Interstates 270, 64, 
and 44. Ballwin is the fifth largest city in St. Louis County which has a population of 
more than 1 million people. Ballwin is located 30 minutes from the St .Louis–Lambert 
International Airport and only 40 minutes from downtown St. Louis.

Ballwin was founded in 1800 by John and Mary Bray Ball. The town’s original name 
was Ballshow and was changed to Ballwin in 1837.  Ballwin grew from a small town 
with few homes and businesses to a small village of 750 people when it was 
incorporated on December 29, 1950 as a City of the Fourth Class under Missouri Law.

Named as “One of the Best Places to Live” by Money Magazine in 2005, 2011, and 
again in 2013, Ballwin prides itself on the wide range of programs and services 
available to its residents. Consistently recognized as one of the safest and best places 
to raise a family, Ballwin was designated “2nd Safest City in Missouri” and “9th Safest 
City in the US” by Neighborhood Scout.  In 2012, Ballwin was named by both 
Businessweek and Family Circle magazines as a “Top City for Family” and one of 
the “Best 10 Towns for Families” respectively. In 2014 Ballwin was recognized as the 
#7 Top Small City in Missouri by Cities-Journal.com. 

Ballwin offers a wide range of quality of life amenities. Two state-of-the-art recreational 
facilities, The Pointe at Ballwin Commons Community Center and North Pointe Family 
Aquatic Center, provide exceptional opportunities for family fun, leisure time, and 
personal fitness.  Ballwin’s municipal golf course is recognized as the best public nine- 
hole facility in the area and was acclaimed with the prestigious “Editor’s Choice Award” 
by St. Louis magazine as “Best Quality Golf.”

Beautiful Vlasis Park is the crown jewel of the City’s parks system and covers 31 acres 
featuring baseball diamonds, tennis courts, ponds, a pavilion, volleyball courts, and an 
array of outdoor and recreational elements. The park is home to the annual Ballwin 
Days festival featuring activities for the entire family including a parade, carnival rides, 
fireworks, live entertainment, and the Ballwin Days 5K and 1 Mile Run.

Residents and visitors enjoy easy access to various professional sports teams 
including the St. Louis Cardinals, the St. Louis Blues, and the St. Louis Rams. With 
Castlewood State Park and Meramac River nearby, there are ample opportunities for a 
variety of outdoor adventures.

City Administrator Position Profile
CITY OF BALLWIN, MISSOURI

161



THE COMMUNITY, continued
Quality education is a priority in Ballwin. The community is served by two AAA rated 
districts.  The premiere Rockwood School District serves 21,351 students in grades 
Pre-K through 12 on 30 campuses. Rockwood SD is recognized for high student 
achievement, outstanding teachers and staff, and great community support.  
Parkway School District serves 17,148 students in grades Pre-K through 12.  
Parkway’s college entrance exam scores are among the best in the county and the 
District has 14 nationally recognized “Blue Ribbon” schools of excellence.  
Additionally, Parkway is accredited and recognized for “Distinction in Performance 
for High Achievement,” the highest rating available by the Missouri Department of 
Elementary and Secondary Education.

Several major universities and colleges are located nearby including Washington 
University, St. Louis University, Maryville University of St. Louis, Missouri Baptist 
University, Webster University, St. Louis Community College, Lindenwood 
University, and University of Missouri-St. Louis.

The median income in Ballwin is $81,351, and the average home price is $210,000. 

GOVERNANCE & ORGANIZATION
The City of Ballwin operates under a Mayor-Alderman-City Administrator form of 
government. The Mayor and eight Aldermen make up the governing body and serve 
two-year terms. The Mayor is elected at large, and two Aldermen are elected from 
each of four wards. The City Administrator is the chief administrative official of the 
City and is responsible to the Mayor and Alderman for the day-to-day operations of 
the organization. The City Administrator is designated by ordinance to retain 
authority for all personnel decisions.

The City has 142 employees organized into four departments including 
Administration, Parks and Recreation, Police, and Public Works. Administration 
encompasses legislation, public relations, occupancy/building permits and 
inspections, code enforcement, planning, zoning, licensing, finance, human 
resources, and municipal court.

The City has a 2015 operating budget of $18.9 million. There has been no municipal  
property tax since 1987, and City services are financed primarily by sales tax, utility 
gross receipts taxes, and recreational revenues. Real estate taxes are collected by 
St. Louis County, the area school districts, and other governmental agencies. The 
utility tax rate is 7% and the sales tax rate is 8.113%.

City of Ballwin, Missouri // City Administrator Position Profile

162



LEADERSHIP & INNOVATION
There will be several key issues for the new City Administrator to address:

• Currently under review is the method of pooled sales tax distribution to
municipalities in St. Louis County. Regardless, the new City Administrator
should be prepared to explore viable new revenue sources to augment
sales tax revenues.

• Several long-tenured department directors are expected to retire in the next
three to seven years. It will be essential that the new City Administrator
prepare for succession management and glean the significant “institutional
memory” from these key staff members.

• Retention and attraction of retail businesses will be an important goal to
ensure Ballwin’s continued economic growth in the region.

• The City seeks an initiative to encourage development of housing options
for residents aged 55 and over with the City Administrator playing an
important role in devising a plan.

• As with many communities, Ballwin has aging housing stock and aging
infrastructure. The new City Administrator will need to develop a strategy to
address these issues.

• The City Administrator will lead the development of a new city hall facility.

IDEAL CANDIDATE
The City of Ballwin has a very stable governing board. The Mayor and Aldermen 
seek a new City Administrator to lead the organization that includes a long-tenured 
senior staff and a dedicated work force that delivers a slate of high quality municipal 
services to residents. The current City Administrator is retiring after serving Ballwin 
in that role for 27 years.

The ideal candidate will:

• Desire to make Ballwin home for the long term
• Be energetic, yet have a calm and diplomatic leadership style
• Lead by example, maintain positive staff morale, and reward good work

efforts
• Possess excellent presentation skills
• Be skilled at providing guidance to the governing board
• Have demonstrated knowledge of information technology and the use of

social media
• Be active in the community
• Embrace innovation and be an “idea” person
• Have the ability to establish a leadership position among the city managers

in St. Louis County

City of Ballwin, Missouri // City Administrator Position Profile

163



EDUCATION & EXPERIENCE
A Bachelor's Degree in public or business administration or a related field from an 
accredited college or university is required. A Master’s Degree is required. The new 
City Administrator must have seven years of city management experience in a 
comparable community, or assistant city management experience in a larger city. 
Experience in a suburban community is a plus.

COMPENSATION & BENEFITS
The salary range for this position is $120,000 - $150,000 depending on 
qualifications and experience. The City participates in Missouri’s Local Government 
Employees’ Retirement System (LAGERS), and a full range of leave and insurance 
benefits is also provided. It is preferred that the chosen candidate establish 
residency in Ballwin. A car allowance and a relocation expense reimbursement are 
also provided.

APPLICATION PROCESS
Please apply online at http://bit.ly/SGRCurrentSearches

For more information on this position, contact:

Gary Holland, Senior Vice President
Strategic Government Resources
GaryHolland@GovernmentResource.com 
405-269-3445

The position is open until filled. To view the status of this position, please visit:
http://bit.ly/SGRCurrentSearches

The City of Ballwin is an Equal Opportunity Employer and values diversity in its 
workforce. Applicants selected as finalists for this position will be subject to a 
comprehensive background check.

RESOURCES

City of Ballwin, MO
www.ballwin.mo.us 

Parkway School District
www.parkwayschools.net

Rockwood School District
www.rockwood.k12.mo.us 

City of Ballwin, Missouri // City Administrator Position Profile

164

http://bit.ly/SGRCurrentSearches
http://bit.ly/SGRCurrentSearches
mailto:GaryHolland@GovernmentResource.com
mailto:GaryHolland@GovernmentResource.com
http://bit.ly/SGRCurrentSearches
http://bit.ly/SGRCurrentSearches
http://www.ballwin.mo.us
http://www.ballwin.mo.us
http://www.parkwayschools.net
http://www.parkwayschools.net
http://www.rockwood.k12.mo.us
http://www.rockwood.k12.mo.us


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 13 

165



Background Screening Report 
First Check

PO BOX 92033
Southlake, TX 76092

Phone: 888-588-2525 / 888-588-2525
Fax: 888-213-9341 

FILE NUMBER 70100 
REPORT TO STRATEGIC GOVERNMENT RESOURCES 

(20002)
1117 Bourland Rd
Keller, TX 76248
Phone: 214-676-1691
Fax: - 

REPORT DATE 04-02-2015 
ORDER DATE 04-02-2015   MELISSA VALENTINE 
TYPE EXECUTIVE SEARCH - BACKGROUND 

CHECK 

Application Information
APPLICANT TESTCASE, JANET SSN XXX-XX-6789 DOB 10-05-1962 
ADDRESS(ES) 19 FOREST DR CITY / STATE / ZIP BEDROCK, TX 75214 

Identity Development

Person Search - SSN TRACE/ ADDRESS VERIF
RESULTS Records Found 
SSN SEARCHED XXX-XX-6789 SEARCH DATE 04-02-2015 1:48 PM MDT 

Applicant Information
FULL NAME / SSN DOB ADDRESS PHONE REPORTED DATE(S)

JANET TESTCASE 19 FOREST HILL
BEDROCK, TX 
County: HIDALGO

First: 2015-01-16
Last: 2015-04-02

JANET LYNN 
TESTCASE

1962-10-05  19 FOREST HILL
BEDROCK, TX 
County: HIDALGO

(954)547-3984 First: 1995-02-13
Last: 2015-04-02

JANET TESTCASE 1962-10-05 19 FOREST HILL
BEDROCK, TX 
County: HIDALGO

First: 1995-02-13
Last: 2015-04-02

JANET L TESTCASE 7863 SLEEPING LILY 
DR
LAS VEGAS, MO 89178
County: JACKSON

(702)812-1460 First: 1991-12-31
Last: 1996-05-23

SSN Information
SSN VALID ISSUED LOCATION ISSUED DATE RANGE

XXX-XX-6789 Y 1975-1976

WARNING: This search may not be used as the basis for an adverse action on an applicant. It should only be used to 
verify or correct an applicant's information, or as a tool to further research of public records or other verifications. 

Credit
Credit Summary

TOTAL TRADELINES 0 30 DAYS LATE 0
CURRENTLY SATISFACTORY 0 60 DAYS LATE 0
CURRENTLY DELINQUENT 0 90 DAYS LATE 0
PREVIOUSLY DELINQUENT 0 NEWEST TRADE

COLLECTION/CHR OFFS 0/0 OLDEST TRADE

PUBLIC RECORDS 0 INQUIRIES 0
Financial Summary

# PAYMENT TTL BALANCE PAST DUE UTILIZATION

MORTGAGE 0 $0 $0 $0
INSTALLMENT 0 $0 $0 $0

OPEN 0 $0 $0 $0
REVOLVING 0 $0 $0 $0

OTHER 0 $0 $0 $0

0 $0 $0 $0
Warning; Use careful judgment the past due column of this financial summary may possibly combine amounts of an original creditor with amounts from 

a collection agency collecting for the original creditor. A single debt could be included as a trade amount and with the collection agency. In a few cases, 

this single debt can appear as a judgment in the public records section, as well. 

Variations

Personal Information Comparison

Page 1 of 10File # 70100 : TESTCASE, JANET

4/2/2015https://firstcheck.instascreen.net/editor/printReport.taz?file=70100

166



NAME SOC SEC DOB AKA

APPLICANT TESTCASE, JANET XXX-XX-6789 10/05/1962
TU TESTCASE, JANET MISMATCH 

Address Comparison
ADDRESS REPORTED

APPLICANT TU 19 FOREST DR , BEDROCK, TX 75214 04-02-2015
Employment Comparison

COMPANY POSITION REPORTED

NO EMPLOYERS DEVELOPED

Credit Bureau Report

Credit History

CREDITOR OPENING DATE
REPORTED 

DATE
HIGH 

CREDIT BALANCE
   PAST DUE
   AMOUNT

        HISTORICAL
    TIMES
  PAST DUE

TYPE
PRESENT STATUS

E
C
O
AMONTHS 

REVIEWED DLA
30 60 90+ TERMS

NO TRADELINES DEVELOPED
ECOA KEY: B = BORROWER; C = CO-BORROWER; S = SHARED; J = JOINT; U = UNDESIGNATED; A = AUTHORIZED USER 

Public Records
NO PUBLIC RECORDS DEVELOPED

Prior Inquiries
CREDITOR INQUIRY TYPE DATE SRC KIND OF BUSINESS ECOA

NO PRIOR INQUIRIES DEVELOPED
Repository Remarks

TU High Risk Fraud Alert;Available and Clear (H01)
TU A SUMMARY OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT

PARA INFORMACION EN ESPANOL, VISITE WWW.CONSUMERFINANCE.GOV/LEARNMORE O ESCRIBE A LA 
CONSUMER FINANCIAL PROTECTION BUREAU, 1700 G STREET N.W., WASHINGTON,DC 20006.

THE FEDERAL FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT (FCRA) PROMOTES THE ACCURACY, FAIRNESS, AND PRIVACY OF 
INFORMATION IN THE FILES OF CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCIES.  THERE ARE MANY TYPES OF CONSUMER 
REPORTING AGENCIES, INCLUDING CREDIT BUREAUS AND SPECIALTY AGENCIES (SUCH AS AGENCIES THAT 
SELL INFORMATION ABOUT CHECK WRITING HISTORIES, MEDICAL RECORDS, AND RENTAL HISTORY 
RECORDS). HERE IS A SUMMARY OF YOUR MAJOR RIGHTS UNDER THE FCRA. FOR MORE INFORMATION, 
INCLUDING INFORMATION ABOUT ADDITIONAL RIGHTS, GO TO 
WWW.CONSUMERFINANCE.GOV/LEARNMORE, OR WRITE TO: CONSUMER FINANCIAL PROTECTION BUREAU, 
1700 G STREET N.W., WASHINGTON, DC 20006.

- YOU MUST BE TOLD IF INFORMATION IN YOUR FILE HAS BEEN USED AGAINST YOU.
ANYONE WHO USES A CREDIT REPORT OR ANOTHER TYPE OF CONSUMER REPORT TO DENY
YOUR APPLICATION FOR CREDIT, INSURANCE, OR EMPLOYMENT - OR TO TAKE ANOTHER
ADVERSE ACTION AGAINST YOU - MUST TELL YOU, AND MUST GIVE YOU THE NAME,
ADDRESS, AND PHONE NUMBER OF THE AGENCY THAT PROVIDED THE INFORMATION.

- YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO KNOW WHAT IS IN YOUR FILE. YOU MAY REQUEST AND OBTAIN
ALL THE INFORMATION ABOUT YOU IN THE FILES OF A CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCY
(YOUR "FILE DISCLOSURE").  YOU WILL BE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE PROPER
IDENTIFICATION, WHICH MAY INCLUDE YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER. IN MANY CASES,
THE DISCLOSURE WILL BE FREE. YOU ARE ENTITLED TO A FREE FILE DISCLOSURE IF:

  - A PERSON HAS TAKEN ADVERSE ACTION AGAINST YOU BECAUSE OF INFORMATION IN
  YOUR CREDIT REPORT;

  - YOU ARE THE VICTIM OF IDENTITY THEFT AND PLACE A FRAUD ALERT IN YOUR FILE;

  - YOUR FILE CONTAINS INACCURATE INFORMATION AS A RESULT OF FRAUD;

  - YOU ARE ON PUBLIC ASSISTANCE;

  - YOU ARE UNEMPLOYED BUT EXPECT TO APPLY FOR EMPLOYMENT WITHIN 60 DAYS.

  IN ADDITION, ALL CONSUMERS ARE ENTITLED TO ONE FREE DISCLOSURE EVERY 12
MONTHS UPON REQUEST FROM EACH NATIONWIDE CREDIT BUREAU AND FROM NATIONWIDE
SPECIALTY CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCIES. SEE WWW.CONSUMERFINANCE.GOV/LEARNMORE
FOR MORE INFORMATION.

- YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO ASK FOR A CREDIT SCORE. CREDIT SCORES ARE NUMERICAL
SUMMARIES OF YOUR CREDIT-WORTHINESS BASED ON INFORMATION FROM CREDIT BUREAUS.
YOU MAY REQUEST A CREDIT SCORE FROM CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCIES THAT CREATE
SCORES OR DISTRIBUTE SCORES USED IN RESIDENTIAL REAL PROPERTY LOANS, BUT YOU
WILL HAVE TO PAY FOR IT. IN SOME MORTGAGE TRANSACTIONS, YOU WILL RECEIVE
CREDIT SCORE INFORMATION FOR FREE FROM THE MORTGAGE LENDER.

- YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO DISPUTE INCOMPLETE OR INACCURATE INFORMATION. IF YOU
IDENTIFY INFORMATION IN YOUR FILE THAT IS INCOMPLETE OR INACCURATE, AND
REPORT IT TO THE CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCY, THE AGENCY MUST INVESTIGATE
UNLESS YOUR DISPUTE IS FRIVOLOUS. SEE WWW.CONSUMERFINANCE.GOV/LEARNMORE FOR
AN EXPLANATION OF DISPUTE PROCEDURES.

- CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCIES MUST CORRECT OR DELETE INACCURATE, INCOMPLETE,
OR UNVERIFIABLE INFORMATION. INACCURATE, INCOMPLETE, OR UNVERIFIABLE
INFORMATION MUST BE REMOVED OR CORRECTED, USUALLY WITHIN 30 DAYS. HOWEVER A
CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCY MAY CONTINUE TO REPORT INFORMATION IT HAS VERIFIED
AS ACCURATE.

Page 2 of 10File # 70100 : TESTCASE, JANET

4/2/2015https://firstcheck.instascreen.net/editor/printReport.taz?file=70100

167



- CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCIES MAY NOT REPORT OUTDATED NEGATIVE INFORMATION.
IN MOST CASES, A CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCY MAY NOT REPORT NEGATIVE
INFORMATION THAT IS MORE THAN SEVEN YEARS OLD, OR BANKRUPTCIES THAT ARE MORE
THAN 10 YEARS OLD.

- ACCESS TO YOUR FILE IS LIMITED. A CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCY MAY PROVIDE
INFORMATION ABOUT YOU ONLY TO PEOPLE WITH A VALID NEED - USUALLY TO CONSIDER
AN APPLICATION WITH A CREDITOR, INSURER, EMPLOYER, LANDLORD, OR OTHER
BUSINESS. THE FCRA SPECIFIES THOSE WITH A VALID NEED FOR ACCESS.

- YOU MUST GIVE YOUR CONSENT FOR REPORTS TO BE PROVIDED TO EMPLOYERS. A
CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCY MAY NOT GIVE OUT INFORMATION ABOUT YOU TO YOUR
EMPLOYER, OR A POTENTIAL EMPLOYER, WITHOUT YOUR WRITTEN CONSENT GIVEN TO THE
EMPLOYER. WRITTEN CONSENT GENERALLY IS NOT REQUIRED IN THE TRUCKING INDUSTRY.
FOR MORE INFORMATION, GO TO WWW.CONSUMERFINANCE.GOV/LEARNMORE.

- YOU MAY LIMIT "PRESCREENED" OFFERS OF CREDIT AND INSURANCE YOU GET BASED ON
INFORMATION IN YOUR CREDIT REPORT. UNSOLICITED "PRESCREENED" OFFERS FOR
CREDIT AND INSURANCE MUST INCLUDE A TOLL-FREE PHONE NUMBER YOU CAN CALL IF
YOU CHOOSE TO REMOVE YOUR NAME AND ADDRESS FROM THE LISTS THESE OFFERS ARE
BASED ON. YOU MAY OPT-OUT WITH THE NATIONWIDE CREDIT BUREAUS AT
1-888-567-8688 (888-5OPTOUT).

- YOU MAY SEEK DAMAGES FROM VIOLATORS. IF A CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCY, OR,
IN SOME CASES, A USER OF CONSUMER REPORTS OR A FURNISHER OF INFORMATION TO A
CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCY VIOLATES THE FCRA, YOU MAY BE ABLE TO SUE IN STATE
OR FEDERAL COURT.

- IDENTITY THEFT VICTIMS AND ACTIVE DUTY MILITARY PERSONNEL HAVE ADDITIONAL
RIGHTS. FOR MORE INFORMATION, VISIT WWW.CONSUMERFINANCE.GOV/LEARNMORE.

STATES MAY ENFORCE THE FCRA, AND MANY STATES HAVE THEIR OWN CONSUMER REPORTING LAWS. IN 
SOME CASES, YOU MAY HAVE MORE RIGHTS UNDER STATE LAW. FOR MORE INFORMATION, CONTACT YOUR 
STATE OR LOCAL CONSUMER PROTECTION AGENCY OR YOUR STATE ATTORNEY GENERAL. FOR 
INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR FEDERAL RIGHTS, CONTACT:

TYPE OF BUSINESS:                           CONTACT:

 1.a. BANKS, SAVINGS ASSOCIATIONS, AND       BUREAU OF CONSUMER FINANCIAL
      CREDIT UNIONS WITH TOTAL ASSETS OF     PROTECTION
      OVER $10 BILLION AND THEIR             1700 G STREET NW
      AFFILIATES                             WASHINGTON, DC 20006

   b. SUCH AFFILIATES THAT ARE NOT BANKS,    FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
      SAVINGS ASSOCIATIONS, OR CREDIT        CONSUMER RESPONSE CENTER -FCRA
      UNIONS ALSO SHOULD LIST, IN ADDITION   WASHINGTON, DC 20580
      TO THE BUREAU:                         1-877-382-4357

 2. TO THE EXTENT NOT INCLUDED IN ITEM 1     OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER OF THE
    ABOVE:                                   CURRENCY
   a. NATIONAL BANKS, FEDERAL SAVINGS        CUSTOMER ASSISTANCE GROUP
      ASSOCIATIONS, AND FEDERAL BRANCHES     1301 McKINNEY STREET, SUITE 3450
      AND FEDERAL AGENCIES OF FOREIGN BANKS  HOUSTON, TX 77010-9050
                                             1-800-613-6743

   b. STATE MEMBER BANKS, BRANCHES AND       FEDERAL RESERVE CONSUMER HELP
      AGENCIES OF FOREIGN BANKS (OTHER THAN  (FRCH)
      FEDERAL BRANCHES, FEDERAL AGENCIES     PO BOX 1200
      AND INSURED STATE BRANCHES OF FOREIGN  MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55480
      BANKS), COMMERCIAL LENDING COMPANIES   1-888-851-1920
      OWNED OR CONTROLLED BY FOREIGN BANKS,  WEBSITE ADDRESS:
      AND ORGANIZATIONS OPERATING UNDER      WWW.FEDERALRESERVECONSUMERHELP.GOV
      SECTION 25 OR 25A OF THE FEDERAL       EMAIL ADDRESS:
      RESERVE ACT                            CONSUMERHELP@FEDERALRESERVE.GOV

   c. NONMEMBER INSURED BANKS, INSURED       FDIC CONSUMER RESPONSE CENTER
      STATE BRANCHES OF FOREIGN BANKS, AND   1100 WALNUT STREET BOX #11
      INSURED STATE SAVINGS ASSOCIATIONS     KANSAS CITY, MO 64106

   d. FEDERAL CREDIT UNIONS                  NATIONAL CREDIT UNION
                                             ADMINISTRATION
                                             OFFICE OF CONSUMER PROTECTION (OCP)
                                             DIVISION OF CONSUMER COMPLIANCE AND
                                             OUTREACH (DCCO)
                                             1775 DUKE STREET
                                             ALEXANDRIA, VA 22314
                                             1-703-519-4600

 3. AIR CARRIERS                             ASST. GENERAL COUNSEL FOR AVIATION
                                             ENFORCEMENT & PROCEEDINGS
                                             DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
                                             400 SEVENTH STREET SW
                                             WASHINGTON, DC 20590
                                             1-202-366-1306

Page 3 of 10File # 70100 : TESTCASE, JANET

4/2/2015https://firstcheck.instascreen.net/editor/printReport.taz?file=70100

168



 4. CREDITORS SUBJECT TO SURFACE             OFFICE OF PROCEEDINGS, SURFACE
    TRANSPORTATION BOARD                     TRANSPORTATION BOARD
                                             DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
                                             1925 K STREET NW
                                             WASHINGTON, DC 20423

 5. CREDITORS SUBJECT TO PACKERS AND         NEAREST PACKERS AND STOCKYARDS
    STOCKYARDS ACT                           ADMINISTRATION AREA SUPERVISOR

 6. SMALL BUSINESS INVESTMENT COMPANIES      ASSOCIATE DEPUTY ADMINISTRATOR FOR
                                             CAPITAL ACCESS
                                             UNITED STATES SMALL BUSINESS
                                             ADMINISTRATION
                                             406 THIRD STREET, SW, 8TH FLOOR
                                             WASHINGTON, DC 20416

 7. BROKERS AND DEALERS                      SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
                                             100 F ST NE
                                             WASHINGTON, DC 20549

 8. FEDERAL LAND BANKS, FEDERAL LAND         FARM CREDIT ADMINISTRATION
    BANK ASSOCIATIONS, FEDERAL               1501 FARM CREDIT DRIVE
    INTERMEDIATE CREDIT BANKS, AND           McLEAN, VA 22102-5090
    PRODUCTION CREDIT ASSOCIATIONS

 9. RETAILERS, FINANCE COMPANIES, AND        FTC REGIONAL OFFICE FOR REGION IN
    ALL OTHER CREDITORS NOT LISTED ABOVE     WHICH THE CREDITOR OPERATES OR
                                             FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION: CONSUMER
                                             RESPONSE CENTER- FCRA
                                             WASHINGTON, DC 20580
                                             1-877-382-4357

Source Information

Creditors
CREDITOR SUB CODE ADDRESS PHONE

NO CREDITORS DEVELOPED
Submission Results

APPLICANT BUREAU DATE RESULT

APPLICANT TRANSUNION 04-02-2015 02:39:39 PM NO RECORD FOUND
Repository Referral

TransUnion Consumer Relations
www.transunion.com/myoptions
2 Baldwin Place
P.O. Box 1000
Chester, PA 19022
800-888-4213

Comments

*** End of Credit Report ***

Investigative

County Criminal Records Search
RESULTS Records Found 
NAME SEARCHED TESTCASE, JANET SEARCH DATE 04-02-2015 1:50 PM MDT 
DOB SEARCHED 10-05-1962 SEARCH SCOPE 10 years
JURISDICTION TX-HIDALGO

*** Abstract *** 
NAME ON RECORD JANET L TESTCASE CASE NUMBER CR- 1234565656
DOB ON RECORD 10/05/1962 COURT DISTRICT
OTHER IDENTIFIERS FILE DATE 03/04/2010
OTHER INFO 

Count-1
TYPE MISD CLASS B OFFENSE DRIVING WHILE INTOXICATED
DISPOSITION CONVICTED
DISPOSITION DATE 10/01/2010 OFFENSE DATE 03/04/2010
SENTENCE 18 MOS PROBATION/ $1000.00 FINE
OTHER INFO PROBATION EXPIRED: 04/06/2012
COMMENT 

WARNING: Based on the information provided First Check searched for public records in the sources referenced 
herein for criminal history information as permitted by federal and state law. 'Records Found' means that our 

researchers found a record(s) in that jurisdiction that matched the personal identifiers (i.e., Name, SSN, Date of Birth, 
Address) listed for the subject in the above abstract. First Check does not guarantee the accuracy or truthfulness of 

Page 4 of 10File # 70100 : TESTCASE, JANET

4/2/2015https://firstcheck.instascreen.net/editor/printReport.taz?file=70100

169



the information as to the subject of the investigation, but only that it is accurately copied from public records. 
Information generated as a result of identity theft, including evidence of criminal activity, may be inaccurately 

associated with the consumer who is the subject of this report. Further investigation into additional jurisdictions, or 
utilization of additional identifying information, may be warranted. Please call for assistance. 

COUNTY WANTS AND WARRANT

NO REPORTABLE RECORDS FOUND - DALLAS COUNTY
JANET TESTCASE

State Criminal Records Search
RESULTS No Reportable Records Found 
NAME SEARCHED TESTCASE, JANET SEARCH DATE 04-02-2015 1:46 PM MDT 
DOB SEARCHED 10-05-1962 SEARCH SCOPE 10 years
JURISDICTION TEXAS

CAUTION: Based on the information provided First Check searched for public records in the sources referenced herein 
for criminal history information as permitted by federal and state law. 'No Reportable Records Found' means that our 
researchers could not locate a record that matched at least two personal identifiers (i.e., Name, SSN, Date of Birth, 

Address) for the subject in that jurisdiction. Further investigation into additional jurisdictions, or utilization of 
additional identifying information, may be warranted. Please call for assistance. 

Federal Criminal Records Search
RESULTS No Reportable Records Found 
NAME SEARCHED TESTCASE, JANET SEARCH DATE 04-02-2015 1:47 PM MDT 
DOB SEARCHED 10-05-1962 SEARCH SCOPE 10 years
JURISDICTION TEXAS NORTHERN

CAUTION: Based on the information provided First Check searched for public records in the sources referenced herein 
for criminal history information as permitted by federal and state law. 'No Reportable Records Found' means that our 
researchers could not locate a record that matched at least two personal identifiers (i.e., Name, SSN, Date of Birth, 

Address) for the subject in that jurisdiction. Further investigation into additional jurisdictions, or utilization of 
additional identifying information, may be warranted. Please call for assistance. 

InstaCriminal National Search
RESULTS No Reportable Records Found 
NAME SEARCHED TESTCASE, JANET SEARCH DATE 04-02-2015 1:30 PM MDT 
DOB SEARCHED 10-05-1962 SEARCH SCOPE 

JURISDICTION NATIONWIDE
JURISDICTION(S) SEARCHED 

The search you have selected is a search of our criminal database(s) and may not represent 100% coverage of all 
criminal records in all jurisdictions and/or sources. Coverage details available upon request.

CAUTION: Based on the information provided First Check searched for public records in the sources referenced herein 
for criminal history information as permitted by federal and state law. 'No Reportable Records Found' means that our 
researchers could not locate a record that matched at least two personal identifiers (i.e., Name, SSN, Date of Birth, 

Address) for the subject in that jurisdiction. Further investigation into additional jurisdictions, or utilization of 
additional identifying information, may be warranted. Please call for assistance. 

Global Homeland Security Search
RESULTS No Reportable Records Found 
NAME SEARCHED TESTCASE, JANET SEARCH DATE 04-02-2015 1:30 PM MDT 
SOURCES Alabama Medicaid - Suspended Providers, America's Most Wanted Fugitive List, Australia Sex 

Offender Registry, Australian Dept of Foreign Affairs and Trade - Sanctions List, Australian Reserve 
Bank Sanctions List, Bank of England Sanctions List, California Medi-Cal - Suspended and Ineligible 
Providers, Connecticut Dept of Social Services - Admin Actions List, DEA Diversion Control Program - 
Admin Actions against Doctors, DEA Diversion Control Program - Cases against Doctors, Delaware 
Adult Abuse Registry, Directorate of Defense Trade Controls - Debarred Parties List, European Union 
Terrorism Sanctions List, FDA Office of Regulatory Affairs - Debarment List, FDA Office of Regulatory 
Affairs - Warning Letters, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) - Failed Bank List, Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) - Enforcement Decisions and Orders, Federal Reserve Board - 
Enforcement Actions, FinCEN - Enforcement Actions, FINRA - Disciplinary Actions, Florida Medicaid - 
Sanctioned Providers, Fugitive List, Health Resources and Services Administration - Health Education 
Assistance Loan - Defaulted Borrowers, HM Treasury - Consolidated List of Financial Sanctions, HM 
Treasury - Investment Ban List, Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission (SFC) - Enforcement 
Actions, HUD - Limited Denials of Participation List, Idaho Medicaid Provider - Exclusion List, Illinois 
Casino Exclusion List, Illinois Office of Inspector General - Sanctioned Providers, Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement (ICE) - Most Wanted, Interpol Most Wanted, Japan Ministry of Economy, 
Trade, and Industry (METI) - End User List, Kansas Dept of Health and Environment - Abuse 
Registry, Kentucky Medicaid - Excluded Providers, Maryland Medicaid - Exclusion List, MIPT Terrorism 
Knowledge Base, Mississippi Medicaid - Excluded Providers, Missouri Casino Exclusion List, Monetary 
Authority of Singapore - Enforcement Actions, National Credit Union Administration (NCUA) - 
Administrative Orders, Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS) - Most Wanted Fugitives, Nevada 
Gaming Control Board - Excluded Person List, New Jersey Casino Exclusion List, New Jersey Dept of 
Treasury - Debarment List, New York Office of the Medicaid Inspector General - Exclusion List, New 
York Stock Exchange Regulation - Disciplinary Actions, Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) - 
Specially Designated Nationals List, Office of Inspector General (OIG) - Health and Human Services 
Exclusion List, Office of Inspector General (OIG) - Most Wanted Health Care Fugitives, Office of 
Regulatory Affairs - Disqualified, Restricted and Assurances List for Clinical Investigators, Office of 
Research Integrity - Public Health Service - Administrative Actions List, Office of the Comptroller of 
Currency (OCC) - Enforcement Actions List, Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions 
(OSFI) - Canadian Sanctions List, Office of Thrift Supervision (OTS) - Enforcement Actions List, Ohio 

Page 5 of 10File # 70100 : TESTCASE, JANET

4/2/2015https://firstcheck.instascreen.net/editor/printReport.taz?file=70100

170



Medicaid - Sanctioned Providers, Ohio Medicaid - Suspended Providers, Palestinian Legislative Council 
List, Pennsylvania Medicheck - Precluded Providers List, Politically Exposed Persons List, SEC - 
Enforcement Actions, South Carolina Medicaid - Excluded Providers, Tennessee Dept of Health - 
Abuse Registry, Texas Employee Misconduct Registry, Texas Health and Human Services Commission 
Medicaid and Title XX Provider Exclusion List, TRICARE Sanctions List, UK Disqualified Directors List, 
United Nations Consolidated Sanctions List, US Commodity Futures Trading Commission (CFTC) - 
Disciplinary Actions, US Dept of Commerce - Denied Persons, Unverified, and Entity List, US Dept of 
Labor - Forced and Child Labor List, US Dept of State - Foreign Terrorist Organizations List, US Dept 
of State - Nonproliferation Sanctions, US Dept of State - Terrorist Exclusion List, US Dept of Treasury 
- Primary Money Laundering Concern List, US General Services Administration (GSA) - Excluded 
Parties List, World Bank Listing of Ineligible Individuals

CAUTION: Based on the information provided First Check searched for public records in the sources referenced herein 
for criminal history information as permitted by applicable laws. 'No Reportable Records Found' means that our 

researchers could not locate a record that matched. Further investigation into additional jurisdictions, or utilization of 
additional identifying information, may be warranted. Please call for assistance. 

Sex Offender Records Search
RESULTS No Reportable Records Found 
NAME SEARCHED TESTCASE, JANET SEARCH DATE 04-02-2015 1:47 PM MDT 
DOB SEARCHED 10-05-1962 SEARCH SCOPE 

JURISDICTION TEXAS

CAUTION: Based on the information provided First Check searched for public records in the sources referenced herein 
for criminal history information as permitted by applicable laws. 'No Reportable Records Found' means that our 

researchers could not locate a record that matched. Further investigation into additional jurisdictions, or utilization of 
additional identifying information, may be warranted. Please call for assistance. 

County Civil Records Search
RESULTS Records Found 
NAME SEARCHED TESTCASE, JANET SEARCH DATE 04-02-2015 1:42 PM MDT 
DOB SEARCHED 10-05-1962 SEARCH SCOPE 7 years
JURISDICTION MO-OSAGE

*** Abstract *** 
PLAINTIFF JANET TESTCASE CASE NUMBER CV556566
DEFENDANT CITY OF ROCKY ROAD COURT NAME COUNTY CT 456
FILE DATE 07/15/2011 JURISDICTION 

PLAINTIFF 
ATTORNEY 

MARK A FISHER CASE TYPE CIVIL - HARASSMENT

DISPOSITION DATE 06/12/2012 DISPOSITION JUDGMENT
COMMENT 

WARNING: Based on the information provided First Check searched for public records in the sources referenced 
herein for civil history information as permitted by federal and state law. 'Records Found' means that our researchers 
found a record(s) in that jurisdiction that matched the personal identifiers (i.e., Name, SSN, Date of Birth, Address) 

listed for the subject in the above abstract. First Check does not guarantee the accuracy or truthfulness of the 
information as to the subject of the investigation, but only that it is accurately copied from public records. Information 

generated as a result of identity theft, including evidence of civil activity, may be inaccurately associated with the 
consumer who is the subject of this report. Further investigation into additional jurisdictions, or utilization of additional 

identifying information, may be warranted. Please call for assistance. 

Credentials

Education Verification
RESPONSE RECEIVED Yes 
INSTITUTION NAME UNIVERSITY OF SYRACUSE SEARCH DATE 04-02-2015 1:51 PM MDT 
CITY, STATE SYRACUSE, NY CONTACT WRITTEN/ SC
INSTITUTION PHONE N/A SUBJECT JANET TESTCASE
INSTITUTION FAX 

INSTITUTION EMAIL 

SUBJECT-PROVIDED INFORMATION INSTITUTION-PROVIDED INFORMATION 
SOCIAL SECURITY 123-45-6789
DATES CLAIMED MAY 2013 DATE AWARDED: 05/15/2013
DEGREE(S) CLAIMED MASTERS OF PUBLIC ADMIN MASTERS PUBLIC ADMIN
MAJOR(S) CLAIMED PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION
GPA CLAIMED 

HONORS CLAIMED 

ATTENDING NAME 

COMMENTS 

Instant Driving Records
RESULTS License Found 

Page 6 of 10File # 70100 : TESTCASE, JANET

4/2/2015https://firstcheck.instascreen.net/editor/printReport.taz?file=70100

171



STATE OF ISSUE Texas SEARCH DATE 04-02-2015 1:37 PM MDT 
LICENSE NUMBER 09555186 

License Number: 01234567
License State: TX
Full Name: TESTCASE, JANET
DOB: 1962-10-05
Address: 19 FOREST DRIVE BEDROCK, TX 79501

License Info
Status: CLEAR
Class: C
Class Description: Non-Comm. C - Single or comb veh , not in class A or B
Expiration Date: 2018-10-05
Original Issue Date: 1978-03-16

Other License Info
Report Message: NO ENTRIES FOUND FOR THIS PERSON
MVR Status: MVR found
MVR History Length: 3
MVR Score: A valid driver license (active, clear, eligible, valid, etc) with at least 3 years of 
history and a clear MVR. (0)

Messages

Alert: Requested last name(TESTCASE) did not match.
Commercial Driver License (CDL) Indicator: N
THIS TYPE OF RECORD WILL NOT REFLECT COMPLETION OF A DRIVING SAFETY COURSE.
THIS RECORD REFLECTS CONVICTIONS AND CRASH INVOLVEMENTS THAT ARE ALLOWED TO BE
DISPLAYED BY LAW.

WARNING: Confidential Information - To Be Used As Per State And Federal Laws. Misuse May Result In A Criminal 
Prosecution. 

Page 7 of 10File # 70100 : TESTCASE, JANET

4/2/2015https://firstcheck.instascreen.net/editor/printReport.taz?file=70100

172



COMPREHENSIVE REPORT

Subject Information:  (Best Information for Subject)
Name:  JANET L TESTCASE    DOB:10/05/1962
SSN:  123-45-xxxx issued in TEXAS between  01/01/1975  and  12/31/1976

Age: 31

Names Associated With Subject:

       JANET L TESTCASE  LexID: 8071868866 DOB: 1962

       JANET TESTCASE LexID: 8071868866 DOB: 10/05/1962
      123-45-xxxx issued in TX   
Others Associated With Subjects SSN:
(DOES NOT usually indicate any type of fraud or deception)
       [None Found]

Comprehensive Report Summary:

       Names Associated With Subject: 
          2 Found
       Others Associated With Subjects SSN: 
          None Found

 Address Summary: 

          2 Found
 Active Address(es): 

          1 Found
 Previous & Non-Verified Addr: 

          1 Found
 Possible Criminal Records: 

          None Found
 Sexual Offenses: 

          None Found
 Driver's License: 

          1 Found
 Motor Vehicles Registered: 

          1 Found
 Concealed Weapons Permit: 

          None Found
       DEA Controlled Substances: 
          None Found

 Professional Licenses: 

          None Found
 Watercraft: 

          None Found
 Bankruptcies: 

          None Found
 Liens and Judgments: 

          None Found
 UCC Filings: 

          None Found
 Possible Properties Owned: 

          1 Found
 Possible Associates: 

          None Found

Address Summary:

       19 FOREST DR , BEDROCK,  TX 77469-1826, HIDALGO COUNTY ( 1995- Jan 2015) 
       12924 PECOS RD, KNOXVILLE  TX 37934-0885, KNOX COUNTY (Feb 2002 - Jan 2015) 
       7404 TOWN CENTER BLVD APT 808, ROSENBERG  TX 77471-6232, FORT BEND COUNTY (Apr 2011 - May 2014) 

Utility Locator - Connect Date:   4/28/2011
21027 JAMES LONG CT, RICHMOND  TX 77406-6453, FORT BEND COUNTY (Jun 2007 - Oct 2013) 

       1611 LAUREL AVE APT 303, KNOXVILLE  TN 37916-2078, KNOX COUNTY (Oct 2005) 
       135 WHITE DR APT -2, TALLAHASSEE  FL 32304-3090, LEON COUNTY (May 2004 - Jun 2004) 
       1505 W THARPE ST APT 3632, TALLAHASSEE  FL 32303-4575, LEON COUNTY (Sep 2002 - Jan 2004) 

Active Address(es):
19 FOREST HILL DR, BEDROCK, TX 77406-6453, HIDALGO COUNTY  

Name Associated with Address:
                     JANET TESTCASE

Current Residents at Address:
                     DAVID TESTCASE

Property Ownership Information for this Address
Property:

                             Parcel Number - 5121-06-001-0320-901
                            Owner Name: DAVID WTESTCASE  LexID: 2561089892
                            Owner Name 2: JANET TESTCASE  LexID: 2561096692
                             Property Address: - 19 FOREST HILL, BEDROCK  TX 77406-6453, HILDAGO COUNTY
                             Owner Address: 21027 JAMES LONG CT, RICHMOND  TX 77406-6453, FORT BEND COUNTY
                             Sale Date - 05/29/1995
                             Sale Price - $325,850
                             Subdivision Name - LONG MEADOW  
                             Total Market Value - $467,230
                             Assessed Value - $443,810
                             Land Value - $89,250
                             Improvement Value - $377,980

Page 8 of 10File # 70100 : TESTCASE, JANET

4/2/2015https://firstcheck.instascreen.net/editor/printReport.taz?file=70100

173



                             Land Size - 13,299 Square Feet
                             Year Built - 2006
                            Seller Name: HOUSTON VILLAGE BUILDERS INC
                             Legal Description - LONG MEADOW FARMS SEC 6, BLOCK 1, LOT 32
                             Loan Amount - $245,000
                             Lender Name - CITIMORTGAGE
                             Data Source - A

Previous And Non-Verified Address(es):

       1118 MESSINA LN, RICHMOND  TX 77469-1826, FORT BEND COUNTY ( 2014 - Jan 2015) 
Name Associated with Address:

                     DAVID TESTCASE
Current Residents at Address:

                    STEVEN FRYER
Property Ownership Information for this Address

Property:
                             Parcel Number - 6469-03-002-0010-901
                            Owner Name: STEVEN FRYER  LexID: 8071868866
                             Property Address - 1118 MESSINA LN, RICHMOND  TX 77469-1826, FORT BEND COUNTY
                             Owner Address: 1118 MESSINA LN, RICHMOND  TX 77469-1826, FORT BEND COUNTY
                             Sale Date - 04/15/2014
                            Seller Name: PULTE HOME OF TEXAS LP
                             Loan Amount - $149,168
                             Loan Type - NEW CONVENTIONAL
                             Data Source - B

       1 

Possible Criminal Records:
       [None Found]

Sexual Offenses:
       [None Found]

Driver's License Information:
       Name: JANET L TESTCASE
       LexID: 80718688 
       DL Number: xxxxxxxx
       State: Texas
       License Address: 19 FOREST DR, BEDROCK TX 77469-1826, FORT BEND COUNTY
       DOB: 10/05/1962
       Potential SSN : 123-45-xxxx
       Issue Date: 05/09/2014
       Data Source: Governmental

Motor Vehicles Registered To Subject:

Vehicle:
               Description: Gray Silver 2006 Toyota Camry - Sedan 4 Door
               VIN: 4T1BE30K26U67 
               State Of Origin: TEXAS
               Engine: 4 Cylinder 144 Cubic Inch 
               Anti Lock Brakes: 4 wheel standard
               Air Conditioning: Standard
               Daytime Running Lights: Standard
               Power Steering: Standard
               Power Brakes: Standard
               Power Windows: Standard
               Security System: Immobilizer and Alarm
               Roof: None / not available
               Price: 20375
               Radio: AM/FM CD
               Front Wheel Drive: Yes
               Four Wheel Drive: No
               Tilt Wheel: Unknown
               Data Source: Governmental 

Registrant(s)
                      Record Type: CURRENT
                      Name: JANET L TESTCASE
                      LexID: 8071868866
                      Potential SSN : 123-45-xxxx
                      Address: 19 FOREST HILL, BEDROCK  TX 77469-1826, FORT BEND COUNTY
                      DOB: 10/05/1962
                      Sex: FEMALE

                      Tag Number: BD9B1 
                      License State: TX
                      Earliest Registration Date: 10/1/2014
                      Latest Registration Date: 10/1/2014
                      Expiration Date: 9/30/2015
                      License Plate Type: Private

Concealed Weapons Permit: 
       [None Found]

DEA Controlled Substances:
       [None Found]

Professional License(s):
       [None Found]

Watercraft:

Page 9 of 10File # 70100 : TESTCASE, JANET

4/2/2015https://firstcheck.instascreen.net/editor/printReport.taz?file=70100

174



       [None Found]

Bankruptcies:

       [None Found]

Liens and Judgments:

        [None Found]

UCC Filings:
       [None Found]

Possible Properties Owned by Subject:

Property:
               Parcel Number - 6469-03-002-0010-901
              Owner Name: JANET L TESTCASE  LexID: 8071868866
               Property Address - 19 FOREST DR, BEDROCK TX 77469-1826, HIDALGO COUNTY

               Sale Date - 04/15/2014
              Seller Name: PULTE HOME OF TEXAS LP
               Loan Amount - $149,168
               Loan Type - NEW CONVENTIONAL
               Data Source - B

Possible Associates:

       NONE FOUND

Disclaimer
This report is furnished to you pursuant to the Agreement for Service between the parties and in compliance with the Fair Credit Reporting Act. This report is furnished 

based upon your certification that you have a permissible purpose to obtain the report. The information contained herein was obtained in good faith from sources deemed 
reliable, but the completeness or accuracy is not guaranteed. 

*** End Of Report ***

Page 10 of 10File # 70100 : TESTCASE, JANET

4/2/2015https://firstcheck.instascreen.net/editor/printReport.taz?file=70100

175



TAB 14
(Attached as separate file) 

176


	9-8-2015 Regular City Council Mtg Agenda
	Consent Item 6a
	Consent Item 6b
	Consent Item 6c
	Consent Item 6d
	Consent Item 6e
	Consent Item 6f
	Consent Item 6g
	Item 7a
	Item 7b
	Item 8a
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4
	Attachment 5



